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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE: 107TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

Notice is hereby given that the 107th Annual General Meeting of the Bank will be held on Wednesday, 30th  July, 
2025 at 4.00 p.m. at Ravindra Natya Mandir, Prabhadevi, Mumbai – 400 025   to transact the following business 
concerning the Bank:-

AGENDA 

1. To consider and approve the Annual Accounts which consist of the Report of the Board of Directors, the 
Report of the Statutory Auditors, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended  
31st March, 2025.

2. To appropriate Net Profit and declare Dividend on Equity Shares and Dividend on Perpetual Non Cumulative 
Preference Shares (PNCPS) as recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

3. To appoint Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2025-26 and to authorize the Board of Directors to 
fix their remuneration. The Board of Directors recommends M/s Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered Accountants, 
304/308/309, Udyog Mandir No. 1,7-C, Bhagoji Keer Marg, Mahim, Mumbai – 400 016 & M/s P.G. Bhagwat LLP, 
Chartered Accountants, Suite 102, Orchard, Dr. Pai Marg, Baner, Pune – 411 045, for appointment as Statutory 
Auditors.

4. To approve Amendment to Bank’s Bye-law No. 55.

5. To grant Leave of Absence to the members of the Bank who have not attended this 107th Annual General 
Meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors. 

sd/- 
Arti Patil 

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mumbai, June 12, 2025

Note:

•	 The	Annual	Report	of	the	Bank	consisting	of	the	Report	of	the	Board	of	Directors,	the	Report	of	the	Statutory	
Auditors, the Balance Sheet and the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2025 is annexed with 
this Notice.

•	 If	there	is	no	quorum	for	the	Meeting	at	the	appointed	time,	in	terms	of	Bye-law	No.	48,	the	Meeting	shall	stand	
adjourned to 5.00 p.m. on the same day and the Agenda of the Meeting shall be transacted at the same venue 
irrespective of the Rule of Quorum.

•	 Dividend,	when	declared,	will	be	paid	on	or	after	20th August, 2025 to those shareholders whose shares are 
fully paid as on 31st March, 2025 and whose names are on the record of the Bank as on 30th June, 2025.
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•	 If	any	member	desires	to	have	information	in	connection	with	the	Accounts,	he/she	is	requested	to	address	
a letter to the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Bank, to reach her office at Saraswat 
Co-operative Bank Ltd., Ekanath Thakur Bhavan, Plot No. 953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi,  
Mumbai - 400 025, not later than 25th July, 2025, so that the required information may be made available at 
the Annual General Meeting.

•	 Members	are	requested	to	bring	valid	photo	identity	proof	at	the	time	of	attending	Annual	General	Meeting	for	
security purpose.

TO SERVE YOU BETTER:

1. Shareholders are requested to intimate change in address, if any, to the Share Department along with a copy 
of proof of new residence at Ekanath Thakur Bhavan, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai – 400 
025 or by e-mail to shareholders@saraswatbank.com for updating the Bank’s records.

2. Shareholders are requested to avail of nomination facility by submitting prescribed Nomination Form, as 
required under Section 36 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and Bye-law No. 19 of the Bank.

3. Shareholders having Current / Savings / Cash Credit accounts with the Bank and desirous of crediting their 
dividends to their accounts are once again requested to record their Standing Instructions with the Share 
Department.

4. The Annual Report is available on the Bank’s website www.saraswatbank.com. Members desirous of having 
a printed copy are requested to collect the same from the nearest branch/Zonal Office or from the Registered 
Office of the Bank.

---------Unclaimed Dividend---------

Notice is hereby given that the Dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2022 (100th Dividend) if not drawn on or 
before 30th August 2025, will be forfeited by the Bank and credited to Reserve Fund in terms of Bye-law No. 68A.
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
Particulars FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31-03-2025 31-03-2024 % change
Total Income  5,064.53  4,443.17 13.98
Total Expenditure  4,328.14  3,656.74 18.36
Operating Profit  736.39  786.43 -6.36
Less: Provisions (Net)  42.60 (40.22) --
Less: Floating Provision for Advances  -  125.00 --
Profit Before Tax  693.79  701.65 -1.12
Less: Income Tax  175.54  198.66 -11.64
Profit after Tax carried to Balance Sheet  518.25  502.99 3.03
 AT THE YEAR END
Own Funds  5,484.91  5,118.87 7.15
Share Capital (Refer Note below)  326.33  335.00 -2.59
Reserves and Surplus  5,158.58  4,783.87 7.83

Deposits  55,481.27  49,457.31 12.18
Current  3,404.54  3,531.50 -3.60
Savings  11,247.12  11,321.14 -0.65
Term  40,829.61  34,604.67 17.99

Advances  36,332.80  32,567.46 11.56
Secured  36,066.56  32,222.89 11.93
Unsecured  266.24  344.57 -22.73
Total Business  91,814.07  82,024.77 11.93

Priority Sector (Average) 26,403.28  22,006.98 19.98
% to Adjusted Net Bank Credit (ANBC)
Priority 66.32% 62.85%
of which (a) Micro 8.06% 7.90%
of which (b) Weaker 11.79% 11.69%

Working Capital  65,374.07  58,581.22 11.60

Investments  17,703.06  17,788.50 -0.48

Borrowings and Refinance  2,231.73  1,826.72 22.17

Net NPAs (%) 0.00 0.00
Provision Coverage Ratio (%) 97.76  98.34

Capital Adequacy (%)  17.43  17.28

Number of Members
Regular (Shareholders holding 50 shares & above)  2,83,071  2,69,147
Nominal  1,40,658  1,28,645

Number of Branches 311 302
Number of Employees  5,424  4,545

Business per Employee (Rs. in crore) 16.61 17.87
Net Profit per Employee (Rs. in lakh) 9.55 11.07
Return on Average Assets (%) 0.85 0.91

CD RATIO (%) 65.49 65.85
NIM (%) 2.58 2.97
Cost to Income Ratio (%) 63.11 58.89

Note :

Reduction in Share Capital: In accordance with the RBI permission received, the call option for redemption of Perpetual  
Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS) was exercised by the Bank. Accordingly, the PNCPS redemption was effected in 
respect of the PNCPS holders eligible for the benefit of call option post completion of the minimum period of 10 years.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Dear Members,

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the 
107th Annual Report on the business and operations 
of the Bank together with the Audited Accounts for 
the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025.

1. THE GLOBAL ECONOMY AND INDIA

 The global economy exhibited resilience and 
steady growth during the financial year 2024-25, 
despite several challenges like slower pace of 
disinflation and policy uncertainties. The outlook 
remains uncertain amidst ongoing conflicts, 
rising geopolitical tensions and potential trade 
restrictions.

 The US economy demonstrated robust growth at 
2.8% in the year 2024 driven by strong consumer 
spendings, lower unemployment and Government 
spending. Rising wages and strong labour market 
also contributed to the optimism. The inflation 
rate continued its downward trend against the 
backdrop of interest rate hike by the US Federal 
Reserve, supply chain efficiencies and a decline 
in gasoline prices.

 With the inflation falling, the Fed embarked on 
monetary easing in September 2024, enacting 
a 1 percentage point in rate cut over September 
2024 to December 2024, thus lowering the federal 
funds rate target range from 4.50% to 4.25%.

 The Eurozone experienced moderate growth at 
0.9% during 2024-25 supported by real wage 
growth and resilient labour market. Major 
European countries experienced varying growth 
rates, with countries like France and Italy growing 
at 1.1% and 0.7% respectively. Countries like 
Austria, Germany, Finland experienced negative 
growth and remained laggards.

 The UK economy expanded 1.1% during the year. 
China’s economy returned to steady growth at 5% 
in 2024, driven by stimulus measures and strong 
export performance.

 The Japanese economy remained weak with 
mounting headwinds, including natural disasters, 
yen depreciation and global uncertainties.

 Amidst the global landscape, India consolidated 
its position as a robust and rapidly growing major 
economy and stands at fourth place in the world 
GDP rankings today.

 Indian Economy

 The Indian economy grew by 6.5% during the 
financial year 2024-25, amidst global uncertainty, 
supported by agriculture and services with stable 
private consumption.

 The industrial sector grew by 6.2% with strong 
construction growth offsetting manufacturing 
slowdown. The services sector expanded by 
7.2% led by financial services, IT and public 
administration. The agriculture sector grew 
by 3.8% driven by record kharif production, 
favourable monsoon and improved rural demand.

 The growth numbers marked a slowdown over 
earlier fiscal year growth rate. Despite the same, 
India continued to outpace its global peers and 
retained its position as the fastest growing 
economy in the world.

 Key Macro-Economic Indicators

 During the financial year 2024-25, Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) inflation initially inched upwards 
to touch a high of 6.2% by October 2024, primarily 
driven by spiralling food price inflation. With the 
moderation in food inflation, especially vegetable 
prices, headline inflation came off from its highs 
and moderated to 3.34% by March-end. Overall, 
the CPI inflation averaged 4.6% during the year.

 The softening of inflation opened up the Policy 
space for the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) 
to ease the Policy rates thereby supporting growth 
after a prolonged status-quo. The MPC reduced 
the Policy repo rate by 25 bps during February 
2025 to 6.25%. However, against the backdrop of 
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global uncertainties and trade policies, the MPC 
continued to remain watchful and maintained a 
neutral Policy stance. The Monetary Policy steps 
thus aimed to strike a balance between supporting 
economic growth and maintaining price stability.

 The Reserve Bank of India also had to intervene 
in the foreign exchange markets to curb Rupee 
volatility. Advance tax outflows as well as 
significant cash withdrawals during major 
festivals resulted in liquidity crunch, particularly 
in Q3. In order to infuse liquidity in the banking 
system, the MPC announced a CRR cut of 50 bps 
in the December 2024 Monetary Policy from 4.5% 
to 4% of Net Demand and Time Liability (NDTL). 
RBI also took a host of other steps including 
multiple Variable Rate Repo (VRR) auctions and 
significant Open Market Operations (OMOs). RBI 
also conducted dollar rupee swap facilities to 
manage forex liquidity. Amidst the constrained 
liquidity, Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs) 
pulled out from the Indian equity markets, which 
added to the woes. With these proactive steps by 
Reserve Bank of India, the liquidity deficit which 
had crossed Rs. 2 trillion in December 2024 
shifted back to a surplus by 31st March, 2025.

 The fiscal deficit for FY 2024-25 was contained 
at 4.8% of the GDP, which is being attributed 
to rationalisation of expenditure, particularly 
subsidies and improvement in revenue collection. 
The reduction is in line with the Government’s 
broader plan to reduce fiscal deficit below 4.5% by 
FY 2025-26.

 The Current Account Deficit (CAD) remained 
relatively contained at 1.1% of the GDP during FY 
2024-25, on the back of services trade surplus 
and remittances from abroad. The merchandise 
trade gap however widened as a result of sluggish 
export growth and rise in the merchandise imports, 
particularly crude oil.

 With muted corporate revenue growth and slowing 
earnings, a significant decline was seen in Foreign 
Portfolio Investment (FPI) inflows as FPIs shifted 
from India to US. With the strengthening of the US 

economy, resilient stock markets and attractive 
interest rates, investment flows were attracted 
towards US debt and equities resulting in capital 
flight from emerging economies including India.

 The country’s foreign exchange reserves 
increased from USD 645.6 billion at start of the 
year to USD 704.9 billion before finally moderating 
to USD 658 billion by 31st March, 2025. India’s 
foreign exchange reserves are sufficient to cover 
90% of external debt and provide import cover of 
more than 10 months.

 Dovish stance of global central banks, inclusion 
of Indian Government Bonds (IGBs) in global 
indices, domestic downward inflation trajectory 
and uncertainty over fears of looming trade tariffs 
leading to slowing growth were the collective 
factors which paved the way for RBI’s lowering of 
Policy rates. Repo rate cut of 25 bps by RBI during 
Q4 of FY 2024-25 as well as RBI’s aggressive 
and astute liquidity management boosted the 
investor demand for debt. The fiscal prudence 
maintained by the Government also remained a 
key positive for the bond markets. The 10-year 
G-Sec benchmark closed for 31st March, 2025 at 
6.48% from 7.06% as on 31st March, 2024.

 Equity markets during FY 2024-25 witnessed a 
sharp contrasting behaviour during H1 and H2. 
Driven by continuation of the Central Government 
and surge in domestic flows, the markets touched 
all-time highs by September 2024. However, global 
uncertainties, geopolitical risks, discouraging 
corporate revenue and earnings concerns led to 
heightened volatility and a sharp decline in the 
second half. The Sensex closed at 77,414.92 as on 
31st March, 2025 while Nifty closed at 23,519.35 
as on 31st March, 2025 after touching highs 
of 85,247.42 & 26,032.80 respectively during  
the year.

 Overall Assessment

 The Indian economy experienced a mix of 
challenges and opportunities during FY 2024-25. 
The country retained its position as the fastest 
growing economy in the world at the growth rate 
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of 6.5%, beating both its global and Asian peers. 
The key driver of this growth is the services sector, 
which has been ably supported by industrial 
expansion and strong agricultural output growth.

 The growth driven by sustained macroeconomic 
stability and domestic demand highlights India’s 
economic resilience despite global uncertainties. 
The growth rate however remained lower than 
expectations and the Government’s earlier 
projections. Global economic headwinds, supply 
chain disruptions, trade policies as well as 
domestic bottlenecks constrained growth to 
some extent, especially the manufacturing sector 
which remained underutilized. The appreciation 
of the US Dollar and rising global interest rates 
also led to capital outflows, thereby putting 
pressure on the Rupee during the financial year.

 Going forward, the World Bank has lowered India’s 
FY 2025-26 growth forecast to 6.3% from earlier 
6.7%. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) also 
lowered India’s GDP forecast to 6.2% from its 
earlier estimate of 6.5%. S&P has now projected a 
growth rate of 6.3% for India from 6.5% earlier. The 
downward revision in growth is largely attributed 
to external pressures primarily restrictive US 
trade policies front-loaded by ‘tariff war’, broader 
pushback against globalization, overall trade 
disruptions, capital flow shifts and currency 
fluctuations. 

 The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has prioritised 
growth against the backdrop of a lower inflation 
trajectory for the next 3 quarters. After successive 
rate cuts  of 25 bps in the repo rate in the February 
2025 and April 2025 Policies, RBI in its June 2025 
Monetary Policy meeting surprised by cutting 
the repo rate by 50 bps as also reducing the CRR 
by 100 bps. Despite the Policy impetus, RBI has 
continued to maintain the GDP estimates for 
FY 2025-26 at 6.5% as earlier. However, RBI has 
changed the Policy stance from accommodative 
to neutral, with the assumption that inflation will 
move upwards in FY 2026-27 due to base effect. 

 As rates trend lower, leading banks have already 
started reducing the lending rates. Lower 
borrowing costs could stimulate demand and 
will give impetus to auto, realty and consumption 
sector. The Government capex is expected to 
rise in the second half of FY 2025-26. With lower 
borrowing cost and abundant liquidity, private 
capex should aid in propelling growth. 

 On the agricultural front, stable monsoon patterns 
and a promising rabi sowing season are expected 
to support rural incomes. 

 Other supporting factors include tax policy 
reforms, higher purchasing power amid stable 
inflation rate, robust domestic demand and rich 
demographic dividend. 

 Overall, India will be better positioned to withstand 
global financial shocks and will continue to attract 
global investments, thereby ensuring economic 
resilience and growth. 

 On the banking front, with overall reduction 
in repo rate by 75 bps, the interest income of 
banks will drop in the first half of the financial 
year as lower lending rates will come into effect 
immediately. However, the cost of the renewing 
deposits will start falling with a lagged effect 
from Q3 onwards, which will then improve the Net 
Interest Margin (NIM) of banks. The NIM will thus 
have a U-shaped recovery with first half showing 
a drop in NIM only to recover in the second half of 
FY 2025-26.

2.  MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE BANKING AND 
FINANCIAL SECTOR IN INDIA

 During the year 2024-25, the banking and financial 
sector witnessed significant developments, 
driven by technological advancements and 
evolving regulatory requirements. Some of the 
measures undertaken are listed below:

	  RBI revised the definition of bulk deposits 
for Scheduled Commercial Banks and Small 
Finance Banks (SFBs) at Rs. 3 crore and 
above, and for Local Area Banks (LABs) at Rs. 
1 crore and above.
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	  RBI relaxed the interest rate ceilings on FCNR 
(B) deposits till 31st March, 2025 to attract 
more capital inflows. The ceiling for FCNR (B) 
deposits of one-year to less than three-year 
maturity was raised to overnight Alternative 
Reference Rate (ARR) plus 400 bps as against 
250 bps earlier while the ceiling for deposits 
of 3-5 years maturity was increased to 500 
bps as against 350 bps earlier.

	  RBI increased the limit for collateral free 
agriculture loans from Rs. 1.6 lakh to Rs. 
2 lakh per borrower to enhance credit 
availability to small and marginal farmers.

	  RBI directed banks and other regulated 
entities to undertake review of gold loan 
policies, identification of loopholes and 
initiation of remedial measures.

	  RBI further strengthened norms for Know Your 
Customer (KYC) requirement viz. validation 
by Additional Factor of Authentication 
(AFA), inclusion of remitter details as part of 
transaction message, identifier to identify the 
fund transfer as a cash-based remittance, 
etc.

	  RBI undertook several measures to address 
inoperative accounts and unclaimed deposits 
at banks viz. seamless KYC updation through 
mobile/internet banking, non-home branches, 
video based customer identification process 
etc.

	  RBI rationalized the methodology for early 
detection and identification of wilful default. 
As per the revised norms, all NPA accounts of 
outstanding Rs. 25 lakh and above will have 
to be examined for the ‘wilful default’ aspect 
by an Identification Committee.

	  RBI mandated Asset Reconstruction 
Companies (ARCs) to become members 
of Credit Information Companies (CICs) 
so as to keep track of borrowers’ credit 
history after transfer of loans by banks/ 
Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) 

to ARCs. It also subjected them to norms 
like mandating requirement of Independent 
Advisory Committee beyond certain threshold 
and minimum data submission frequency for 
overall stricter oversight.

	  Introduction of standardized framework 
for reporting and dissemination of 
credit information and safeguarding of 
confidentiality and security of sensitive credit 
data.

	  Amendment of Foreign Exchange 
Management Act (FEMA) guidelines to 
promote cross border rupee transactions viz. 
opening INR accounts for residents outside 
India by overseas branches of AD category 
banks, permitting Indian exporters to open 
foreign currency accounts abroad to settle 
trade transactions.

	  RBI issued several revised guidelines across 
a spectrum of issues viz. framework on Early 
Warning Signals (EWS) & Red Flagging of 
Accounts (RFA), norms for Housing Finance 
Companies, lending activities by banks and 
their group entities, etc.

  Other developmental measures include: -

	  Launching the Fintech and Emerging 
Technologies (Emtech) repository to capture 
information about technology usage of 
fintechs, especially Artificial Intelligence (AI), 
Machine Learning (ML), cloud computing, 
and other such advance technologies.

	  Launch of PRAVAAH viz. the Platform for 
Regulatory Application, Validation and 
Authorization - a secure and centralized web 
portal.

	  Measures for enhancing safety and trust in 
financial transactions viz. introduction of 
new domains, dedicated numbering series 
for calls and additional control measures for 
digital transactions.

	  Various measures by SEBI and other 
regulators for financial markets viz. reduction 



Business Overview Statutory Report Financial Statements

19Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) Annual Report 2024-25

in settlement cycle for NPS, rationalization of 
market timings, mandatory usage of UPI for 
debt securities upto certain threshold and 
additional norms/controls for Mutual Funds.

	  Encouraging digital transactions through 
various measures viz. accessibility of digital 
payments to people with disabilities, public 
repository of Digital Lending apps, increase in 
limit for tax payment through UPI, increase in 
wallet limits for UPI lite.

3.  MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE URBAN  
CO-OPERATIVE BANKING SECTOR

 In the FY 2024-25, RBI undertook rationalization 
of certain norms applicable to UCBs, thereby 
allowing greater operational flexibility.

 The prudential norms which have been reviewed 
are as under: -

 Exposure to loans and advances:- RBI has 
increased the ceiling per borrower from maximum 
Rs. 1 crore to Rs. 3 crore. This will allow UCBs 
to classify more loans under the small value 
segment, giving them more operational flexibility. 
As per RBI norms, UCBs will be required to have at 
least 50% of their aggregate loans and advances 
consisting of small value loans by 31st March, 
2026.

 Increase in Housing Loan limits:- RBI has 
increased the individual housing loan limits 
for UCBs, with graded limits based on the size  
of UCBs. Tier 4 UCBs are allowed to lend upto  
Rs. 3 crore as against Rs. 1.40 crore earlier.

 Real Estate exposure norms:-  RBI has also 
revised the real estate exposure norms, increasing 
the aggregate exposure limit to 25% of total 
loans and advances. The aggregate exposure to 
the real estate sector, excluding housing loans 
to individuals, is capped at 5% of its total loans 
and advances. The new norms have opened new 
opportunities for UCBs for garnering housing 
loans as the earlier limits on the priority sector 
housing loans are eased.

 Prompt Corrective Action (PCA) for primary 
Urban Co-operative Banks (UCBs):- RBI 
introduced a framework of Prompt Corrective 
Action (PCA) for Urban Co-operative Banks 
(UCBs) to enable supervisory intervention at an 
appropriate time. The framework has been put 
in place to initiate remedial measures in a timely 
manner for restoring the health of financially  
weak UCBs.

 Revised norms for loans against shares and 
debentures:- RBI has revised the linkage for 
overall ceiling for loans by UCBs against the 
security of shares and debentures from the limit 
of 20 percent of owned funds earlier to 20 percent 
of Tier 1 capital of the Bank, thus tightening the 
norms.

 Revised norms for BDDR appropriation:- RBI 
highlighted inconsistencies in the treatment 
of Bad and Doubtful Debt Reserve (BDDR) by 
different co-operative banks. In some instances, 
BDDR was created by recognizing it as an 
expense in the Profit & Loss account, while in 
other cases it was formed through appropriation 
of net profits. RBI has now aligned it with the 
Accounting Standards, under which regardless 
of whether they are accounted for under BDDR 
or any other head, the said provision must be 
charged as an expense to the P & L account in the 
accounting period in which they are recognized.

 Setting up of NUCFDC:- During FY 2023-24, 
the National Urban Co-operative Finance and 
Development Corporation Ltd (NUCFDC) - an 
Umbrella Organisation for Urban Co-operative 
Banks was established. NUCFDC is a  
self-regulatory organization for the UCB sector. 
Your Bank contributed a sum of Rs. 15 crore 
towards its initial capital. During the year under 
review, your Bank contributed an additional sum 
of Rs. 20 crore towards NUCFDC capital, taking 
its total contribution till now to Rs. 35 crore. Your 
Bank is thus fulfilling its obligation towards the 
co-operative segment as the role of NUCFDC will 
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be instrumental in strengthening the UCB sector, 
especially smaller UCBs in technology upscaling 
and capacity building.

4.  FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF YOUR BANK 
DURING FY 2024-25

 The details of the various business parameters 
during FY 2024-25 are given below:

 • The total business of your Bank increased 
from Rs. 82,024.77 crore as on 31st March, 
2024 to Rs. 91,814.07 crore as on 31st 
March, 2025 i.e. a rise of Rs. 9,789.30 crore 
in absolute terms and a rise of 11.93% in 
percentage terms.

Graph No. 1:
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	 •	 Deposits	increased	from	Rs.	49,457.31	crore	
as on 31st March, 2024 to Rs. 55,481.27 crore 
as on 31st March, 2025, a rise of Rs. 6,023.96 
crore in absolute terms i.e. a rise of 12.18%.  
The key driver of the growth was the sharp 
rise in term deposits of your Bank from Rs. 
34,604.67 crore to Rs. 40,829.61 crore i.e. 
around 18% in percentage terms.

	 •	 Advances	 increased	 from	 Rs.	 32,567.46	
crore as on 31st March, 2024 to Rs. 36,332.80 
crore as on 31st March, 2025 i.e. a rise of 
Rs. 3,765.34 crore in absolute terms, thus 
registering a growth of 11.56%. 

	 •	 During	 the	 preceding	 year,	 your	 Bank	 had	
devised a well-thought-out business model 

of increasing the Bank’s small ticket size 
advances through a focused approach on 
the small and medium sized enterprises. 
With this strategic objective, your Bank had 
set up a new small finance vertical viz. the 
Consumer & Commercial Banking Group 
(CCBG). This new vertical of the Bank, which 
became operational during the year under 
review, garnered retail advances to the tune of  
Rs. 1,059.44 crore. 

	 •	 The	 core	 Retail	 Advances	 of	 the	 Bank	
increased from Rs. 17,052.10 crore to  
Rs. 18,734.27 crore, a rise of Rs. 1,682.17 
crore in absolute terms i.e. a sharp rise of 
9.86% in percentage terms.

	 •	 The	 Wholesale	 Advances	 business	 also	
contributed to the overall rise as it increased 
from Rs. 15,515.36 crore as on 31st March, 
2024 to Rs. 16,539.09 crore as on 31st March, 
2025 i.e., a rise of 6.60% in percentage terms.

	 •	 The	Gross	NPAs	of	your	Bank	 reduced	 from	 
Rs. 937.49 crore as on 31st March, 2024 to 
Rs. 818.69 crore as on 31st March, 2025. In 
percentage terms, the Gross NPA to Gross 
Advances ratio reduced from 2.88% as on  
31st March, 2024 to 2.25% as on 31st March, 
2025.

Graph No. 2:
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	 •	 Further, your Bank continued to maintain Net 
NPAs at 0%, for the third consecutive year in a 
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row. The Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR) thus 
continues to remain at nearly 100% as on  
31st March, 2025.

	 •	 During	 the	 year	 under	 review,	 your	 Bank	
posted a Net Profit of Rs. 518.25 crore.

	 •	 The	own	funds	of	your	Bank	have	increased	
from Rs. 5,118.87 crore as on 31st March, 
2024 to Rs. 5,484.91 crore as on 31st March, 
2025 i.e. a rise of Rs. 366.04 crore in absolute 
terms and a rise of 7.15% in percentage 
terms.

	 •	 The	CRAR	of	your	Bank	has	further	improved	
from 17.28% as on 31st March, 2024 to 
17.43% as on 31st March, 2025. Of the same, 
Tier 1 capital is at 11.03% while Tier 2 capital 
stands at 6.40%.

Graph No. 3:
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5. SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

 (i) Retail Banking

  Retail Advances:

  Under Retail Advances, your Bank 
offers Schematic loans as well as Retail 
Business loans up to Rs. 10 crore for small 
entrepreneurs and start-ups.

  The disbursals under the retail schematic 
segment increased from Rs. 3,242 crore 
during FY 2023-24 to Rs. 4,034 crore during 
FY 2024-25 i.e. a rise of Rs. 792 crore. The key 
contributors include growth in car loans by  
Rs. 394.63 crore, Loan against Property by  
Rs. 229.73 crore and Saraswat Home Plus 
loans by Rs. 134.24 crore.

  Under Retail Commercial loan segment, the 
disbursement stood at Rs. 1,155 crore this 
year. i.e. 2024-25.

  The Retail Advances have increased from  
Rs. 17,052.10 crore as on 31st March, 2024 to 
Rs. 18,734.27 crore as on 31st March, 2025, a 
growth of 9.86% in percentage terms.

(Table No. 1) (Rs. in crore)
Advances 31-03-

2025
31-03-

2024
Rise in 

absolute 
terms

Rise in 
% terms

Retail 12,651.69 11,255.50 1,396.19 12.40%

Commercial 
up to Rs. 10 
crore 

3,898.94 3,738.56 160.38 4.29%

Retail 
Tangible/staff 
loans

2,183.64 2,058.04 125.60 6.10%

 Total 18,734.27 17,052.10 1,682.17 9.86%

  Retail Advances by CCBG:

  Consumer and Commercial Banking Group 
(CCBG) was formed as a Strategic Business 
Unit (SBU) in FY 2024-25 under the leadership 
of Shri Priyam Alok and started its business 
operations in October 2024. A new team 
was set up to give impetus to the retail and 
commercial segment and to form a granular 
book. CCBG currently has four Business 
Units (BUs), which are Business Banking, 
Mortgages-Prime LAP, Micro Business Loans 
and Auto Loans. All these Business Units 
operate as separate profit centres with a 
dedicated team of specialists who source, 
underwrite and disburse a particular banking 
product. Each Business Unit has separate 
dedicated teams for sales, credit underwriting, 
product management, credit monitoring and 
operations, thus ensuring better productivity, 
faster turn-around time, better credit quality 
and operational efficiency.

  In its six months of operations, CCBG 
disbursed 2,327 files with a disbursement 
amount of Rs. 1,317 crore at a portfolio yield 
of 10.15% and with no account in any SMA 
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category. The disbursement contributed to 
Rs. 1,059.44 crore of book growth in less than 
six months - with no NPAs, which was around 
30% of overall book growth of the Bank.

  With a full year in FY 2025-26 and a staff 
strength of around 1000, CCBG team is 
looking poised to maximize business and 
profitability on these product lines which were 
started in last financial year.

  At the macro-level, tie-ups have been 
undertaken by CCBG team with leading 
companies like Maruti Suzuki and Tata 
Motors for car loans.

  Tie-up with Maruti Suzuki

  Your Bank collaborated with Maruti Suzuki 
India Ltd. and signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MoU) to offer customized 
auto retail financing solutions to customers. 
This partnership aims to provide easy, flexible 
and personalized financing options, making 
car ownership more convenient.

  Tie-up with Tata Motors

  Your Bank also partnered with Tata Motors 
to offer competitive interest rates on vehicle 
financing. The partnership was formalized 
through a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MoU) between Tata Motors Passenger 
Vehicles (TMPV) and Tata Passenger Electric 
Mobility (TPEM) and is aimed at providing 
tailored retail financing options for both 
Internal Combustion Engine and Electric 
Vehicles. The collaboration not only expands 
the choices available to our customers but 
also promotes the EV culture in the country.

  With overall strengthening of the CCBG team 
and their innovative business approach, we 
are confident that CCBG will be delivering 
outstanding results in the coming days.

  Retail Deposits:

  During FY 2024-25, 1,25,789 new CASA 
accounts were opened. Out of which 1,13,181 
are Savings Bank accounts and 12,608 are 
Current accounts. The CASA percentage to 
overall deposits is 26.41%. 

 Position of CASA Deposits

(Table No. 2) (Rs. in crore)
Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024

Savings Deposits 11,247.12 11,321.14

Current Deposits 3,404.54 3,531.50

CASA Amount 14,651.66 14,852.64

Total Deposits 55,481.27 49,457.31

Increase in CASA (200.98) 875.57

   Business Development through Branch Sales 
Officers (BSOs) / Business Development 
Officers (BDOs):

  As part of our continued focus on deepening 
customer engagement and driving business 
growth, the Bank has strategically enhanced 
its frontline sales force with the deployment 
of Branch Sales Officers (BSOs) across key 
locations. Branch Sales Officers (BSOs) are 
positioned within our branches to capitalize 
on walk-in customers and to provide 
personalized assistance across a range of 
banking products and services.

  Your Bank also has a dedicated Business 
Development Officer (BDO) team , which has 
been provided with training by specialized 
trainers in areas of customer interactions, 
product knowledge and technology 
products. During the present financial 
year, the team garnered a total business of  
Rs. 1,314 crore, which includes advances of  
Rs. 743 crore, deposits of Rs. 568 crore 
and third-party business of Rs. 3 crore. 
The Business Development Officials have 
contributed towards strengthening our retail/
commercial business portfolio to improve 
business proportion in overall business of 
the Bank.
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  Third Party Products

  Insurance:

  Your Bank continues to provide customers 
the opportunity of taking insurance protection 
through the Bank. For the said purpose, tie-
up arrangement has been undertaken with 
various Insurance Partners, as below, with 
specified focus on life insurance, general 
insurance and health insurance.

(Table No. 3)

Segment Name of the Partner

LIFE

Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC)

HDFC Life Insurance Co. Ltd. (HDFC Life)

Future Generali Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

PNB Met Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

GENERAL
Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd. (BAGIC)

HDFC Ergo General Insurance Ltd.

HEALTH

Care Health Insurance Co. Ltd.

Manipal CIGNA Health Insurance Co. Ltd.

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd. (BAGIC)

OTHERS

Pradhan Mantri Bima Yojana

PMSBY – New India Assurance Co. Ltd.

PMJJBY - HDFC Life Co. Ltd.

  Partnership with PNB MetLife

  Your Bank forged a strategic bancassurance 
partnership with PNB Metlife to offer a 
comprehensive suite of life insurance 
solutions, including savings, protection, 
retirement, and group plans. The partnership 
is part of our continuous efforts to bring the 
best life insurance solutions to our customers 
and reinforces our vision of delivering 
comprehensive services that address every 
aspect of our customers’ financial well-being.

  During the FY 2024-25, your Bank has earned 
a total revenue of Rs. 90.99 crore from sale of 
Third-Party Insurance Products as given below:

(Table No. 4) (Rs. in crore)

Insurance Business progress:
Premium Mobilised Revenue Generated

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24

Life Insurance 138.53 132.17 78.78 43.75

General 
Insurance 

22.00 20.90 8.68 4.21

Health 
Insurance

18.48 19.30 3.52 3.75

Other Insurance 0.02 0.29 0.01 0.01

Total 179.03 172.66 90.99 51.72

  Mutual Funds

  Your Bank undertakes mutual funds 
distribution with LIC Mutual Fund, HSBC 
Mutual Fund, Nippon India Mutual Fund, 
Aditya Birla Mutual Fund, ICICI Prudential 
Mutual Fund and SBI Mutual Fund.

  During FY 2024-25, your Bank achieved a 
gross business of Rs. 213.17 crore from the 
mutual fund segment and earned income of  
Rs. 3.83 crore.

  Credit Cards

  Your Bank issues RuPay Platinum Credit 
cards in collaboration with National Payments 
Corporation of India (NPCI). As on 31st March, 
2025, your Bank has a card base of more than 
80,000 cards with an exposure of Rs. 52.34 
crore. During the year, an attractive feature 
of CC on UPI has been added, which enables 
the credit card to link to UPI apps like GPay, 
PhonePe to execute the transactions.

  Income recorded by Credit Card Department 
is as under:

(Table No. 5) (Rs. in crore)

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Interest Income 8.66 9.43

Interchange Income 2.73 2.78

Other Income 3.02 3.06

Gross Income 14.41 15.27
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  Demat - During the year under review, 1,188 
new demat accounts were opened at the Bank. 
During the year, your Bank supported IPOs 
through ASBA for 316 equity issues. Bank 
has received / processed more than 1,89,000 
IPO applications during the year. The total 
revenue earned from Demat services during 
the year was Rs. 4.33 crore. Total of 1,049 
trading accounts have been opened during 
the FY 2024-25.

  Priority Sector Advances:

  During the year under review, your Bank 
achieved Priority Sector and Sub-Sector 
Target which is a % of its Adjusted Net Bank 
Credit as under:

(Table No. 6)

Target Achievement

Priority Sector 60% 66.32%

Micro Enterprise 7.5%  8.06%

Weaker Sector 11.75% 11.79%

  The above target achievement is inclusive 
of the Priority Sector Lending Certificates 
(PSLCs) purchased for the said purpose.

  Customer Relations & Experience (CRE)

  Your Bank has in place the Customer 
Relations and Experience (CRE) Department, 
which continues to be the cornerstone of 
the Bank’s commitment to excellence in 
service delivery. Over the past year, the team 
has strengthened customer engagement by 
focusing on proactive grievance redressal, 
and seamless customer support across 
different channels. The team’s dedication 
has been crucial in building trust, loyalty and 
delivering exceptional banking experiences, 
thereby supporting the Bank’s growth and 
reputation.

  In FY 2024-25, the team successfully handled 
a significantly higher volume of customer 
interactions. Under the Operation Sparsh 
initiative, CRE Department handled and 

resolved total 613 unique customer calls/
queries during FY 2024-25. More than 1.37 
lakh calls/requests/queries were answered 
through our Contact Centre team and all 
these queries were resolved on priority basis.

  This year, your Bank successfully organised 
16 cultural events under ‘Celebration of Trust’ 
– a customer delight & engagement initiative 
across Maharashtra and Goa.

  Looking ahead, your Bank remains committed 
to raising service standards by embracing 
new ideas and technologies, enhancing 
employees’ skills and knowledge and 
prioritising customer needs.

 (ii) Wholesale Banking

  Wholesale Banking business has witnessed 
a decent growth of 6.59% in FY 2024-
25, keeping a focus on qualitative and 
disbursable sanctions. The total Wholesale 
Advances of the Bank stood at Rs. 16,539.09 
crore as on 31st March, 2025 as compared to 
previous year’s level of Rs. 15,515.36 crore, 
showing a growth of Rs. 1,023.73 crore. Out 
of total business, Letter of Credit Backed 
Bill Discounting (LCBD) exposure was  
Rs. 1,539.84 crore as on 31st March, 2025 as 
against previous year’s level of Rs. 1,211.89 
crore.

  In fiscal year 2024-25, fund-based limits of 
about Rs. 4,825 crore were sanctioned vis-
à-vis previous year sanctions of Rs. 3,669 
crore. Further disbursements of Rs. 3,668 
crore took place in FY 2024-25 as against 
previous year’s disbursements of Rs. 2,943 
crore, showing a growth of 25%.

  The credit growth pertaining to new sanctions 
during the year caters to industries such as 
‘Paper & Packaging’, ‘Renewable Energy’, 
‘Hospitality’, ‘Auto & Engineering’ and others.

  In line with the regulatory guidelines as well 
as the Bank’s overall business strategy, your 
Bank is moving towards attaining a 50:50 
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ratio for the Retail (exposure upto Rs. 3 crore) 
& Wholesale Book by the end of 2026. The 
focus this year therefore will be on exposure 
below Rs. 3 crore and hence the Wholesale 
Book may de-grow.

 (iii) Forex Business

  Your Bank has RBI license for foreign exchange 
business since 1979. The Bank caters to 
the foreign exchange requirements of its 
customers through well-established nine 
Forex Centres. Trade finance requirements 
and retail foreign exchange requirements of 
customers of SMEs & branches are handled 
through these Forex Centres. The Bank offers 
all major foreign exchange products to its 
customers.

  Bank has recorded foreign exchange merchant 
turnover of Rs. 31,268.93 crore during  
FY 2024-25. The net profit earned from the 
forex business for FY 2024-25 stood at  
Rs. 51 crore. Export finance outstanding as on  
31st March, 2025 was at the level of  
Rs. 1,236.12 crore.

  Bank has NOSTRO accounts in ten major 
currencies with leading international banks 
and correspondent relations with several 
reputed banks across the globe.

  Bank also handles foreign exchange business 
of customers of six selected co-operative 
banks which do not have RBI license to deal 
in foreign exchange, under line of credit 
sanctioned to them. During the year under 
review, lines of credit of Rs. 46.50 crore for 
foreign exchange business were continued to 
the six co-operative banks.

 (iv) Treasury Operations

  The Treasury Department of your Bank 
plays a pivotal role in the Bank’s financial 
management, focusing on optimizing liquidity 
and enhancing profitability within the available 
avenues of funds deployment. During the year 
under review, the Treasury Department of 

your Bank effectively navigated the dynamic 
market conditions and generated profitability 
by way of both trading profits as well as 
generation of interest income through astute 
deployment of available funds.

  Our Treasury Team also adeptly managed 
foreign exchange exposures as it catered to 
the foreign exchange requirements of retail 
clients.

  Overall, the Bank’s Treasury operations 
demonstrated resilience and adaptability, 
aligning with the Bank’s objectives and 
reinforcing commitment in delivering value to 
our stakeholders.

6.  NEW INITIATIVES BY THE BANK DURING THE 
YEAR:

 Digital Lending Project:

 Your Bank had taken an initiative in the last financial 
year to develop a robust “Digital Architecture” to 
offer seamless, automated, regulatory-compliant 
digital lending platform for products such as 
Personal loans, Auto loans, Housing loans, Two-
wheeler loans and MSME loans. Your Bank is 
presently working on the same, along with E&Y 
who is the technology and consultant partner for 
the project. Presently, groundwork for the same 
viz. addressing technical challenges, integration 
of various Application Programming Interfaces 
(APIs), co-ordination with various vendors and 
compliance alignment with evolving regulatory 
guidelines is ongoing. The platform for Personal 
Loan end to end journey is ready and is expected 
to go live in the current financial year. Car loan 
and Two-wheeler platform is presently under User 
Acceptance Testing (UAT) and is also expected to 
go live in the current financial year.

 With the increase in the permissible ticket size of 
housing loan, we have initiated development of 
the platform for housing loan for automated credit 
assessments, reduced turnover time and quicker 
loan approvals.

 Once the digital products are launched, supervision 
and assessment of all aspects of the digital 
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offerings will be an on-going process to ensure 
operational efficiencies, customer satisfaction 
and overall portfolio health.

7. HUMAN RESOURCES

 The HR Department plays the key role of 
nurturing and developing the Bank’s employees, 
synergizing between individual aspirations of 
employees and the Bank’s business goals and 
thus ensuring effective utilisation of the Bank’s 
Human Resources. Some of the initiatives taken 
by the HR Department during the year are as 
under:

 Recruitment:

 During the year under review, your Bank recruited 
1,375 employees of which 39 were in the Executive 
cadre, 765 were in the Management cadre and 
571 were in the Non-Management cadre. Out of 
the total recruitment of 1,375 employees, 848 
employees have been recruited for strengthening 
the newly formed Consumer & Commercial 
Banking Group (CCBG). The candidates selected 
for various positions in the CCBG have prior work 
experience in the various domains of banking, 
thus bringing in with them specific skill sets and 
relevant experience, strategy towards specific 
roles or goals.

 During the year, 496 employees ceased to be in 
the service of the Bank due to various reasons 
like retirement, VRS, resignation, death, dismissal 
and termination.

(Table No. 7)

The table below shows the Summary of Employees 
Recruited / Exited during the F.Y. 2024-25.

Number of Employees as on 31.03.2024 4,545

Number of Employees recruited during 
the year 2024-25

1,375

Sub- Total 5,920

Less : the number of Employees who 
exited during the year

496

Number of Employees as on 31.03.2025 5,424

Net Addition during the year 2024-25  879

 Promotions:

 In order to provide opportunities for growth and 
to create future leaders, your Bank promoted 
251 staff members to various positions in the 
Executive, Management and Non-Management 
cadres during the year.

 In the Executive cadre, 18 officials were 
promoted to various positions including 2 Dy. 
Chief General Managers, 3 General Managers, 
5 Dy. General Managers and 8 Assistant General 
Managers in view of their proven competence, and 
important assignments / portfolios as per business 
requirements are assigned to them in their new 
roles.

 In the Management Cadre, 205 staff members 
were promoted to the next higher cadre viz. 
17 Chief Managers, 35 Senior Managers, 14 
Managers and 139 Deputy Managers. In the Non-
Management Cadre, 28 employees were promoted 
to the grade of Junior Officer. These promotions 
were conducted based on the eligibility criteria 
and basis of selection decided by the Bank.

  Upgradation of employees from Grade B to Grade A:

 During the year under review, 143 staff members 
who had completed five or more years of service 
in Grade B pay scale were absorbed in Grade A 
pay scale.

 Star Awards:

 Awards can be a powerful motivator and can 
incentivise individual employees to strive for 
excellence, driving performance and enhanced 
productivity. Star Awards were instituted to 
recognise exemplary dedication and reward merit. 
During the year under review, 100 employees were 
selected as Star Award Winners (based on their 
performance for the preceding year) and were 
presented with a star badge and a Certificate 
along with Cash Prizes of up up to Rs. 2 lakh and 
averaging Rs. 1 lakh.

 Learning and Development (L&D):

 The Staff Learning Centre (SLC) of your Bank 
conducts a variety of training programs for 
employees across all cadres, to equip them 
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with the requisite skills. For holistic growth, the 
training programs are designed to provide the 
necessary role-specific inputs and are aligned to 
the corporate goals. The focus areas of training 
during the year were sourcing, compliance and 
Information & Cyber Security Awareness. Your 
Bank also nominated select employees for 
training programs organised by reputed external 
training institutions viz. RBI-CAB, NIBM, CAFRAL, 
IDBRT, IIBF, etc for specialised areas.

 Under the supervision of the Chairman of your 
Bank, a select set of employees was sent for 
a 360-degree assessment workshop based on 
Stephen Covey’s best-selling business book, “The 
7 Habits of Highly Effective People”.

 The training programs conducted during the FY 
2024-25, are as under:

(Table No. 8)

Type of 
Training 

(Internal / 
External)

No. of 
Programs

Employees 
Trained #

Management Non-
Management

Programs 
conducted 
in-house

133 5,994 3,105 2,889

Nominations 
to external 
programs

35 73 73 0

Total 168 6,067 3,178 2,889

# Some of the employees attended more than one training 
program during FY 2024-25.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

 Your Bank recognizes the importance of effective 
risk management and is committed to maintaining 
a strong risk management culture. The Risk 
Management framework of your Bank oversees 
various risks, as below, and is effectively managed 
by the Chief Risk Officer and overseen by the Risk 
Management Committee (RMC) of  the Board.

 Credit Risk:

 Credit Risk is defined as the possibility of losses 
associated with diminution in the credit quality 
of borrowers due to inability or unwillingness to 

meet commitments in relation to lending. Your 
Bank has in place the Credit Risk Management 
Policy and the Credit Security Management 
Policy for monitoring credit risk. The Credit Risk 
Management Policy helps the Bank to ensure the 
credit exposure remains within the Bank’s risk 
appetite. The Credit Security Management Policy 
covers prudent practices related to accepting, 
protecting, monitoring of securities and liquidation 
practices in use, across various units of the Bank.

 Market Risk:

 Market Risk is the risk of losses in positions 
arising from movements in market variables like 
prices and volatility. Your Bank has a well-defined 
Market Risk Management Policy in place, which 
lays down the various risk metrics for tracking 
the various market risk metrics including mark-
to-market of market risk exposures, Value-at-Risk 
(VaR), Modified Duration, Stress Testing, etc. 
The market risk capital charge of your Bank is 
also computed using the Standardised Duration 
Method at regular intervals.

 Liquidity Risk:

 Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Bank may not 
be able to meet its financial obligations on 
due date. The Bank has a well-defined Asset 
Liability Management Policy that outlines the 
framework for liquidity and interest rate risk 
management. Your Bank has in place the Asset 
Liability Management Committee (ALCO) which is 
instrumental in controlling and managing market/
liquidity risks.

 Operational Risk Management:

 Your Bank has in place a Board-approved 
Operational Risk Management Policy for 
managing operational risk, which arises from 
inadequate or failed internal processes, people, 
systems, or external events. Your Bank has defined 
operational loss tolerance limit and monitors 
breaches, if any. Your Bank has established the 
Business Level Risk Committee which proactively 
identifies and manages risks through defined 



Report of the Board of Directors

28 Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) Annual Report 2024-25

procedures. Further, the Operational Risk 
Management Committee (ORMC) oversees the 
overall operational risk management framework. 
Your Bank is in the process of adopting 
operational resilience approach to strengthen 
Operational Risk Management culture.

 Your Bank also has in place a robust Reputation 
Risk Management Policy to identify, monitor and 
manage reputation risk.

 Outsourcing Risk Management:

 Material Outsourcing Risk is the risk that may 
lead to breach in security/confidentiality, or 
non-compliance with legal and regulatory 
requirements due to failure of Material 
Outsourcing Arrangements. Your Bank has 
Material Outsourcing Risk Management Policy 
in place. Your Bank continues to engage in 
identifying gaps in outsourcing arrangements 
on an ongoing basis. It is also in the process of 
automating the vendor onboarding and review of 
associated processes.

 Fraud Risk Management (Vigilance):

 Your Bank has a robust Fraud Risk Management 
(FRM) Cell which undertakes vigilance activities 
in a proactive and pre-emptive manner. Your 
Bank has put in place 24x7 robust monitoring of 
all digital channels. The Bank has in place EFRM 
solutions for monitoring digital and non-digital 
transactions. The Fraud Risk Management Cell 
thus undertakes detective vigilance, punitive 
vigilance and corrective vigilance and timely 
reporting to the Reserve Bank of India as well as 
internally to the Board and Top Management. The 
role of FRM cell also includes scrutiny, analysis 
of incidents and creation of awareness to thwart 
recurrence of such frauds.

 Integrated Risk Management:

 Integrated Risk Management (IRM) is a 
holistic approach to managing risks across an 
organisation. It involves identifying potential 
risks, assessing their likelihood and impact, and 

implementing controls and strategies to mitigate 
or manage them. Your Bank is in the process of 
setting up the IRM framework which will help your 
Bank to have effective control on various types of 
risks.

 Overall, your Bank’s robust risk management 
framework includes risk identification, 
assessment, mitigation and monitoring and 
endeavours to adopt the best practices of Risk 
Management.

9. INTERNAL AUDIT

 Your Bank’s Internal Audit Department (IAD) 
plays a critical role in providing independent and 
objective assurance to the Board of Directors 
and Senior Management on the effectiveness of 
internal controls, risk management practices and 
governance processes. Your Bank has a robust 
Audit charter and Risk-based Audit Policy outlining 
the audit purpose, roles, stature, authority and 
responsibilities, and coverage of Internal Audit 
Department.

 IAD undertakes various audits of branches and 
departments within defined scope to assess 
system and processes along with efficacy of 
controls.

	  Information System (IS) Audit:

  RBI has mandated to undertake  
pre-implementation audit of new technology 
implementations. In line with these directions, 
IAD has appointed external auditors having 
specialised experience and certifications 
to carry out audits of our upcoming GOMO 
NEXT product by TAGIT and Digital Lending 
Platform products. Work of external auditors 
is closely monitored by IAD team for ensuring 
timely completion with quality.

  The broad coverage of IS Audit includes 
testing of IT General Controls related to key IT 
Applications, conducting Vendor Audits and 
Review of Core IT domains covering Network 
Infrastructure Security Review, Network 
Architecture Review, Data Centre Operations 
including Patch Management, Capacity 
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Management etc. Cyber Security Audits are 
based on various Regulatory requirements 
from UIDAI, IRDAI, NSDL/CDSL, SWIFT CSCF, 
IDRBT, NPCI etc.

	  Branch and Department Internal Audit:

  IAD in-house team also carries out 
independent checks based on automated 
account samples selection for advances, 
deposits as well as other operational areas 
at branches and key departments. Risk of the 
Branch is arrived based on composite risk 
i.e. combination of inherent and control risk. 
Audit frequency is based on risk profile of 
each branch. This risk-based audit approach 
allows the Audit Department to focus more 
on risk-prone areas and provide insights to 
management on a regular basis.

	  Credit Portfolio Audit (CPA):

  Considering the inherent risk in large 
commercial loans, your Bank undertakes 
Credit Portfolio Audit of commercial loans 
with exposure of Rs. 5 crore and above. IAD’s 
in-house team with credit expertise performs 
exclusive scrutiny of credit portfolio with 
focus on larger advances and exposures at 
regular intervals. Risk-based approach is 
also followed in this audit and borrowers are 
audited based on risk-profiling.

	  Concurrent Audit:

  Bank has a regular and well-defined process 
of concurrent audits by reputed Chartered 
Accountant firms for all branches and 
important functions such as treasury, demat, 
forex and credit card in line with regulatory 
guidelines. Detailed checklist covering 
various areas of audit is inbuilt in the Audit 
application so that standard scope and 
coverage of Audit is maintained across all 
branches.

	  Internal Control assessment:

  IAD independently carries out evaluation of 
the adequacy of all internal controls in various 
processes across various departments within 
the Bank, thereby ensuring the robustness of 

the systems and procedures. More than 49 
auditable areas are identified under various 
departments as part of audit universe and are 
being covered under audit.

	  Vendor Audit:

  Your Bank also has a robust internal audit 
system for all outsourced activities to ensure 
efficiency and effectiveness of implemented 
controls for managing risks in outsourced 
operations. This aspect is being covered 
under Vendor audits wherein the Bank’s 
compliance to risk management framework 
and regulatory guidelines is assessed.

  All audits, both internal as well as external are 
conducted through audit tool, compliances 
of which are tracked, monitored and regularly 
reported to the senior management and the 
Audit Committee of the Board (ACB). The 
process of External Auditor empanelment and 
appointment has also been automated. Data 
analytics is used as a mechanism to improve 
on audit quality.

  IAD endeavours to continuously improve the 
quality and effectiveness of various audits by 
way of continuous training and upgradation 
of skills, rotation of internal and external 
auditors, rating of external audit firms and 
assigning audit ratings to branches and other 
operating units post completion of audits. It 
thus remains committed to maintaining the 
highest standards of professionalism and 
integrity in audit practices.

10. COMPLIANCE

 Your Bank realises the importance of being 
aligned with regulatory compliances and accords 
topmost priority to strengthening its Assurance 
function. Towards this end, the Bank has a 
Compliance Department which is endowed with 
the responsibility of ensuring holistic regulatory 
compliances. The Bank has adopted an inclusive 
approach by involving all the Departments, 
Branches and Zones in this endeavour by 
designating Single Points of Contact at these 
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locations who are responsible for the regulatory 
compliances in their domains.

 With a view to propagating the compliance 
culture and spreading awareness for adhering to 
regulatory compliances, the Compliance officials 
engage in regular participation and interactions 
in various training programmes so that concern 
areas, as also proactive measures to be 
adopted to avoid pitfalls in non-compliances, 
are communicated to the branch officials. The 
Bank is deeply committed to being a compliant 
organisation on various regulatory fronts. The 
Bank is in the process of implementing one of 
the best Compliance tools from a leading fintech 
organisation which will further improve its 
regulatory compliances and provide it a complete 
overview over the entire regulatory compliance 
canvass.

 The AML KYC Cell - a subset of the Compliance 
function is involved actively in implementation of 
AML KYC related regulations as also conforming 
to the best practices in the industry in this regard 
through usage of state-of-the-art technology 
for the same. The AML KYC Cell is actively 
involved in overseeing completeness of KYC 
for its existing and new customers in strictest 
adherence with regulatory requirements. The 
Cell also ensures prompt and timely reporting 
to the regulatory authorities in areas of Money 
Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Prevention of 
Money Laundering Act (PMLA).

 Compliance Department is committed 
to upholding the highest standards of 
professionalism and respect for regulation to 
maintain its position as a pioneering entity in the 
Urban Co-operative Banking segment.

11.  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY & DIGITAL 
BANKING

 As a part of the customer-centric initiatives, your 
Bank has initiated the activity of providing monthly 
and yearly account statements over email to the 
customer’s registered email id. During the year, 
your Bank has undertaken upgradation of the DR 
setup which is now scaled up to be at par with 
the Data Centre setup. This infra-augmentation 
enhances the Bank’s capabilities to ensure 

business continuity in case of exigencies. Bank 
has implemented new applications to meet the 
regulatory requirements and/or to introduce 
process automation for improving the robustness 
of processes and reduce manual activities. Bank 
continues to enhance its technical capacities and 
capabilities to meet the ever-growing demands 
from the digital space and increasing business 
volumes, ensuring a seamless experience for the 
customers.

 Your Bank has a wide bouquet of digital products 
e.g. WhatsApp Banking, Mobile Banking, Retail 
Internet Banking, Corporate Internet Banking, 
UPI, NETC, BBPS, Gift Cards to meet requirements 
of customers from different strata and is 
continuously striving to introduce new facilities.

 The digital transactions of your Bank have 
continued to stand at 90% of total transactions 
for the year ending March 2025. UPI transactions 
have also increased and have been a major 
contributor with 85% of the digital transactions 
being routed through this channel.

 Bank has introduced the following functionalities 
on digital channels during FY 2024-25:

	 •	 Simplified	 IMPS	 in	 Retail	 Internet	 Banking-	
Bank has provided IMPS facility to retail 
customers for initiating IMPS transactions 
through Internet Banking. Customers can 
now initiate IMPS by simply entering Mobile 
Number and Bank Name.

	 •	 Digital	passbook	through	WhatsApp	banking-	
Customers can now generate digital passbook 
via Bank on WhatsApp and the same will be 
shared on the registered Email ID.

 •	 Face	 Authentication	 – Your Bank has 
completed the integration of Face 
Authentication with UIDAI and the same 
is being used for e-KYC authentication for 
seamless account opening.

	 •	 Bharat	 Aadhaar	 Seeding	 Enabler	 (BASE)	 –	
Your Bank has now integrated with NPCI to 
facilitate Aadhaar Seeding and De-seeding 
activities in self-service mode for Direct 
Benefit Transfer. Under this, customers 
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can carry out activities like check Aadhaar 
mapping status, mapping history, Aadhaar 
seeding and de-seeding in digital mode.

 •	 UPI	 Merchant	 Acquiring	 – Your Bank has 
completed certification with NPCI for UPI 
Merchant Acquiring and will soon be issuing 
QR codes/Sound Box directly to merchants.

	 •	 RTGS/NEFT	 Beneficiary	 Name	 lookup-	
Beneficiary name lookup service for NEFT and 
RTGS is made available in Internet Banking 
and Mobile Banking. Customers can now view 
beneficiary’s name before initiating RTGS/
NEFT thereby preventing the risk of wrong 
transfers.

 Your Bank is also acting as a Sponsor Bank to 
almost 20 small Co-operative Banks for providing 
digital channels like RTGS/NEFT, UPI, IMPS, NFS/
RUPAY etc to their customers.

12. INFORMATION SECURITY

 The Information Security Department (ISD) of our 
Bank is instrumental in building security culture 
at the Bank. While the Bank was already equipped 
with security controls like 24x7 cybersecurity 
monitoring, conduct of cybersecurity reviews 
and assessments at regular intervals in line 
with regulatory mandates, during FY 2024-
25, the Bank has enhanced its Cybersecurity 
Operations Center (CSOC) with several new 
features to have enhanced security monitoring. 
To further identify if there are any weaknesses 
within the Bank’s technical ecosystem, your Bank 
proactively performs RED Teaming Assessment 
and Penetration Testing and initiates remediation 
of all such aspects in true spirit, to ensure that 
our systems and infrastructure maintain security 
hygiene.

 Further, your Bank has dedicated Brand 
Monitoring arrangements in place to identify and 
respond to false publicity or misinformation and is 
able to take necessary action for the removal and 
discontinuation of such misleading information 
from social media platforms like Facebook & 

WhatsApp that may harm the trust of our valued 
customers.

 While the Bank undertakes various initiatives to 
make our customers aware about emerging risks 
within the space of cybersecurity, our Information 
Security Department in collaboration with our 
Staff Learning Center constantly emphasises 
on training and educating our Bank’s staff to 
ensure that customer data is handled with due 
care, keeping them at the heart of our operations. 
Your Bank has recently achieved its ISO 27001 
Certification for one of its operations, which is 
recognised worldwide for having Cybersecurity 
Assurance.

 The Bank also undertakes various Simulation 
Exercises for our staff members including 
conduct of Phishing Simulations to test the real-
time effectiveness of our Bank staff’s vigilance. 
Further trainings are conducted on a regular 
basis to ensure Confidentiality, Integrity & 
Availability (CIA) of Information & Cybersecurity. 
While our customers are updated from time to 
time about the Best Practices, Do’s and Don’ts 
of Information & Cybersecurity to safeguard 
them from falling prey to various cyber-attacks, 
scams and frauds, the Bank’s Information 
Security Department also ensures that the Bank’s 
staff is equally equipped with the necessary 
understanding to ensure Security is inculcated 
as a culture among People, Processes and  
Technology.

13. BRANCH EXPANSION

 The total branch strength of the Bank stood 
at 302 as on 31st March, 2024. During the year 
under review, your Bank opened two branches 
in Mumbai i.e. at Jankalyan Nagar, Malad(West) 
and Nallasopara (West) and one branch at 
Ambad in Nashik region. In a bid to expand its 
footprint in northern India, your Bank opened six 
new branches across the Delhi-NCR region. The 
newly opened branches are located in Gurugram, 
Faridabad, Model Town, Naraina, Noida Sector - 
62 and Karol Bagh.
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 With this expansion, your Bank continues to 
strengthen its overall branch network. The total 
number of branches thus increased from 302 
as on 31st March, 2024 to 311 as on 31st March, 
2025.

14.  ADVERTISING, ALLIANCES AND CORPORATE 
COMMUNICATIONS

 Your Bank, through its dedicated Advertising, 
Alliances and Corporate Communications (AACC) 
team, has always adopted crisp and dynamic 
communication strategies to ensure apt brand 
and product positioning to reach a wide array of 
audiences.

 During the year under review, the AACC team 
complemented the business efforts of the 
Bank by running promotional activities across 
various media channels like Print, TV, Outdoor 
and Digital. The Bank’s tagline - “Building Trust 
Across Generations…” emphasizes the faith that 
the customers have in the Bank over generations. 
The Bank also leveraged on Mumbai’s lifeline – 
the local trains – by highlighting its Fixed Deposit 
advertisement in the inside panels of the trains 
over Western, Central and Harbour lines. It carried 
out a digital campaign for Education Loans to 
improve the brand’s reach and positioning in 
addition to product promotion.

 During the year under review, your Bank 
has added another communication channel 
alongside SMS and Email channels - WhatsApp 
Marketing. Through this channel, your Bank 
wishes to encash upon the rich media and 
interactive content creation alternative offered 
by the WhatsApp channel to have personalised 
and highly engaging communication for  
customers.

 Your Bank conducted a Customer Meet in the 
Delhi and NCR regions to introduce its newly 
opened branches in the said region. This was done 
with the aim of building customer relationship & 
connect, and reinforcing brand awareness and 
positioning. The Bank also carried out a brand 
awareness campaign through Print and Radio in 
these regions.

15. SPECIAL CREDIT MONITORING CELL (SCMC)

 The Special Credit Monitoring Cell (SCMC) of your 
Bank is instrumental in monitoring commercial 
borrower accounts which are under stress. The 
SCMC reviews the Special Mention Accounts 
(SMA) at regular intervals and formulates 
corrective action plans. Nursing of such stressed 
accounts is done in co-ordination with the 
operating units to ensure the upgrade of such 
borrowers within a reasonable period.

 During the year under review, various monitoring 
reports were developed for monitoring and early 
identification of incipient stress in the accounts. 
With such close monitoring and timely corrective 
action plan, the SMAs have reduced considerably 
as on 31st March, 2025.

(Table No. 9)

Position of SMA accounts year-on-year basis is as 
under: -

(Rs. in crore)
Particulars Exposure as on 

31.3.2025
Exposure as on 

31.3.2024
SMA-2 192 486
SMA-1 511 521
Total 703 1,007

16. MOVEMENT OF NPAs

 Over the past few years, the gross NPA levels of 
your Bank have significantly reduced through 
concerted efforts such as monitoring of advances, 
and prompt and robust recovery actions. 
Various initiatives undertaken by the Bank for 
recovery of NPAs have yielded positive results 
and consequently, your Bank posted recovery of  
Rs. 504.53 crore from various sources  
as below:

	  Recovery of Rs. 190.54 crore in Gross NPAs 
from earlier years.

	  Recovery amounting to Rs. 219.52 crore from 
newly classified NPAs during the FY 2024-25.

	  Recovery in interest amounting to Rs. 12.69 
crore.
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	  Recovery of Rs. 30.73 crore in Prudentially 
written-off NPAs.

	  Recovery of Rs. 13.97 crore made from the 
assets previously assigned by the Bank to 
ARCs in the year 2014.

	  Assignment of a total pool comprising of 
various NPA accounts including the written- 
off portfolio having book value of Rs. 228.18 
crore to M/s J.C. Flowers Asset Reconstruction 
Pvt. Ltd. for a total consideration of Rs. 37.08 
crore on 100% upfront cash basis on Swiss 
challenge auction process.

 Hence, despite the addition of New NPAs of  
Rs. 287.29 crore, the total Gross NPAs of your Bank 
reduced considerably by Rs. 118.80 crore, from  
Rs. 937.49 crore to Rs. 818.69 crore.

 The ratio of Gross NPAs to Gross Advances 
reduced from 2.88% in FY 2023-24 to 2.25% in 
the FY 2024-25. The Net NPA ratio continued to 
be maintained at ZERO% for the third consecutive 
year in a row.

  Movement of NPAs and Provisions during the 
year were as under :

 (Table no. 10)

(Rs. in crore)
PARTICULARS AMOUNT
ADVANCES
 As on 31st March, 2025 36,332.80
GROSS NPAs
 As on 31st March, 2024 937.49
 (-)  Reduction during the year. 190.54
 (-)  Prudentially written-off during 

the year
107.41

 (-) Compromise settlement 0.33
 (-) Assigned to ARCIL 107.81
 (+) Additions during the year. 287.29
 As on 31st March, 2025 818.69
PROVISIONS
 As on 31st March, 2024 921.91
 As on 31st March, 2025 800.36
NET NPAs
 31st March, 2024 0.00%
 31st March, 2025 0.00%
PROVISION COVERAGE RATIO
 31st March, 2024 98.34%
 31st March, 2025 97.76%

 Provision Coverage Ratio:

 Your Bank follows a prudent policy for making 
provisions on NPAs as per regulatory IRAC norms. 
While strictly adhering to the regulatory norms, 
your Bank also makes additional provision, over 
and above the required amounts. This year, this 
additional provision is to the tune of Rs. 325.52 
crore, making it once again a Zero Net NPA Bank.

 Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR), which indicates 
the ratio of provisions made by the Bank against 
NPAs, as on 31st March, 2025 is at 97.76 % i.e. 
nearly 100%, which indicates that the entire Gross 
NPAs are fully provided for.

17. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CRAR)

 The CRAR of your Bank has improved from 17.28% 
as on 31st March, 2024 to 17.43% as on 31st 
March, 2025. The Capital Adequacy position of 
the Bank for FY 2024-25 vis-à-vis the preceding 
year is as below:

Table No.11:
(Rs. in crore)

Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024

Capital-Tier I

a. Share Capital (a) * 325.57 334.23

b. Reserves and Surplus

 Statutory Reserve 1,279.92 1,146.82

 Other Reserves  1,761.23 1,509.14

 Revaluation Reserves  323.10  292.76

 Profit and Loss Account  420.53  399.16

 Sub-Total (b)  3,784.78 3,347.88

 Gross Tier I Capital (a+b)  4,110.35 3,682.11

  Less: Intangible assets & 
losses

 219.84 268.03

Net Tier I Capital (A)  3,890.51 3,414.08

Capital-Tier II

General Provisions  304.28  287.59

Investment Fluctuation Reserve  500.35  450.35
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(Rs. in crore)

Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024

Subordinated Debts  1,452.83  1,198.31

Tier II Capital (B)  2,257.46  1,936.25

Total Capital Funds (A+B)  6,147.97  5,350.33

Risk Assets

i. Funded Risk Assets  31,717.15 27,751.15

ii. Non-funded Risk Assets  901.36  810.26

iii.  Risk Weighted Assets for 
market risk 

 2,648.83  2,398.51

Total Risk Weighted Assets 
(i+ii+iii)

 35,267.34  30,959.92

Capital Adequacy Ratio %  17.43 17.28

18. APPROPRIATIONS

  Your Bank proposes the following appropriations 
from the Net Profit for FY 2024-25.

Table No.12 :

(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Transfer to Reserve Fund (25%)  12,956.13  12,574.63
Contingency Reserve (10%)  5,182.46  5,029.86
Provision for Education Fund of 
N.C.U.I.(1%)

 518.25 502.98

Co-operative Rehabilitation, 
Reconstruction and 
Development Fund 

 100.00 100.00

Dividend on PNCPS @10.50%  142.50 571.67
Dividend on equity shares @ 15%  4,730.25  5,222.50
Provision for Ex-gratia to 
employees

 3,970.00  3,340.00

Members’ Welfare Fund  225.00  200.00
Provision for Staff Welfare  10.00 10.00
Provision for Public, Charitable & 
Co-operative Purposes (1%)

 518.25 502.98

Investment Fluctuation Reserve  1,000.00  5,000.00
Special Reserve  1,280.50  2,240.50
General Reserve  21,550.00  15,000.00
Balance to be c/f to the next year  83.57 71.42

Total  52,266.91  50,366.54

 Dividend on Equity Shares

 Your Board of Directors recommends a Dividend of 
15% for the year ended 31st March, 2025 on Equity 
Shares, as against 17.50% for the preceding year. 
Last year, the Dividend was increased by 2.5% 

owing to the fact that the Bank had crossed the 
milestone of Rs. 500 crore Profit for the first time 
in its history.

 	Dividend	on	Perpetual	Non	–	Cumulative	Preference	
Shares

 Your Board of Directors recommends a Dividend 
of 10.50% for the year ended 31st March, 2025 on 
Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares, 
similar as the preceding year.

 Members Welfare Fund

 Your Board of Directors recommends contribution 
of Rs. 225 lakh towards Members Welfare Fund. 
After this accretion, the total amount in this fund 
will be Rs. 1,816.64 lakh. During the year, 1008 
members availed reimbursement of expenses 
towards medical treatment and medical check-
up. Eight awards were granted to meritorious 
children of members.

 Ex-gratia to Employees

 We propose that an Ex-gratia payment of up to  
Rs. 39.70 crore be granted to our employees for 
the financial year ending 31st March, 2025, to be 
paid as per conditions of the Wage Agreement.

  Provision for Public Charitable and Co-operative 
Purposes

 As permitted under RBI Circular No. UBD. (PCB)/ 
BPD/Cir/43 dated 11th April, 2005, your Board 
recommends an appropriation of 1% of the Net 
Profit i.e. Rs. 518.25 lakh for public, charitable 
and co-operative purposes.

 Special Reserve

 In accordance with Section 36(1)(viii) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961, Urban Co-operative Banks 
are entitled to a deduction in respect of profits 
earned from eligible business i.e. profits earned 
from loans and advances granted to industries, 
infrastructure, agriculture and housing sectors. 
Twenty percent of such profits transferred to 
a Special Reserve are eligible for deduction 
from taxable income. Your Board, therefore, 
recommends an amount of Rs. 1,280.50 lakh 
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to be appropriated out of profits derived from 
the said eligible business towards Special  
Reserve.

19. AMENDMENT TO BANK’S BYE-LAW

 The proposed amendments during the year are:

 Amendment to Bye-law No. 55

 As per the existing Bye-law No. 55, for the 
candidates contesting for Directorship, there 
are ten seats for members within MMRDA area, 
four seats for members residing outside MMRDA 
area but within the State of Maharashtra and two 
seats for candidates residing outside the State of 
Maharashtra. Apart from the said sixteen seats, 
there is provision of three additional reserved seats 
i.e. two for women and one for Scheduled Castes 
(SC)/Scheduled Tribes (ST), taking the total number 
of seats to nineteen. 

 Most of the branches and business of the Bank is 
within the State of Maharashtra. More than 90% 
of the shareholders are from within the State of 
Maharashtra.  Hence, it is suggested to modify 
the geographical representation stipulated in our 
existing Bye-law for contesting elections for posts 
of Directors. The proposed amendment to Bye-law 
No. 55 will give increased opportunities to members 
residing in any part of the State of Maharashtra 
to be eligible for Fourteen seats of Directors, out 
of the total nineteen seats. The process for the 
remaining five seats i.e. two seats outside the State 
of Maharashtra, two seats for women and one for 
SC/ST remains unchanged.

 The revised Bye-law will facilitate physical presence 
of the Directors in the meetings of the Board/
various committee meetings, if they reside within 
the State of Maharashtra. It will also lead to higher 
participation, qualitative interactions, sharing of 
views and indepth deliberations on the topics 
pertaining to the agenda of meetings.

 The exact text of amendment of Bye-law No. 55 
will be circulated in the Annual General Meeting.

20. AWARDS

 Awards demonstrate an organisation’s 
commitment to its shareholders, customers, 
and employees. We are delighted to highlight the 
prestigious awards received by the Bank during 
the year, thereby recognizing our excellence in 
banking.

 Your Bank received the Leader’s Award at the 
All-India Urban Co-operative Banking Summit 
organized by Crest Infomedia.

 Your Bank’s CISO also received and award on 
behalf of the Bank for shaping the future of BFSI 
through transformative technology from ET Now 
Top 100 BFSI Tech Leaders.

21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY(CSR)

 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) has always 
been an integral part of your Bank’s commitment 
towards creating a positive impact on society, at 
large.

 During the year under review, your Bank focused 
on the healthcare segment, especially healthcare 
accessibility in rural areas. Primary Health Centres 
(PHCs) at Sindhudurg and Kolhapur Districts in 
Maharashtra focus on preventive care, maternal 
and child health, and disease diagnosis, catering 
to a wide rural and semi-urban population. Each 
PHC generally covers a population of 30,000 
in rural areas or 20,000 in tribal areas. The 
healthcare network of Kolhapur and Sindhudurg 
districts consists of 20 administrative blocks, 
with 112 PHCs playing a vital role in medical 
services. Your Bank donated Rs. 4,25,00,000/- 
to the Commissionerate of Health Services, 
Maharashtra State for 17 chosen Blocks viz. 
9 Blocks in Kolhapur District and 8 blocks in 
Sindhudurg District at Rs. 25,00,000/- per Block 
with a view to equip the blocks with advanced 
diagnostic tools for conducting medical tests 
thereby ensuring timely diagnosis of diseases.

 During the year under review, your Bank also 
donated Rs. 50 lakh to Prabhodhan Goregaon, 
a Charitable Trust and a registered NGO. 
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Prabhodhan Goregaon has been consistently 
engaged in socio cultural, educational and health-
related activities. It is especially committed to 
rendering appropriate medical services and 
medicines to needy patients, especially children, 
through their Thalassemia Centre, Blood Bank, 
Dialysis Centre, medical shops and Charitable 
Dispensary. The Trust has set up a voluminous 
library with about 20,000 books, a study room 
for post graduate students and MPSC/UPSC 
aspirants, a sports training centre, Joggers Park, 
Tennis Academy, Swimming Pool and Academy. 
The financial support from the Bank will be 
utilized for the expansion of the activities of the 
Trust aimed at making a difference to human life 
such as alleviation of suffering by offering health 
& medical services.

 Under the Runanubandh initiative of the Bank, 
donations amounting to Rs. 17.64 lakh were 
given to 132 institutions during the FY 2024-25.

 Your Bank thus continued with its CSR initiatives 
during the year, in line with its endeavor of making 
a meaningful difference in the lives of people.

22. OTHER DEVELOPMENTS

 Title Sponsor of Loksatta District Development 
Index - Your Bank, in association with leading 
daily Loksatta, presented the Loksatta District 
Development Index launched by the Hon’ble 
Chief Minister of Maharashtra. The Loksatta 
District Development Index is an initiative aimed 
at evaluating and promoting development across 
various districts in Maharashtra. The initiative 
recognizes and awards the best performing 
districts of Maharashtra that are driving 
progress and growth across the State. The Index 
assesses districts based on various parameters, 
including infrastructure development, industrial 
performance and social progress, and by 
highlighting areas of improvement, encourages 
districts to work towards better development 
outcomes.

 Loksatta	 Tarun	 Tejankit	 Puraskar	 –	 During the 
year under review, your Bank also co-sponsored 
the Loksatta Tarun Tejankit Puraskar. It is a 
prestigious Award that recognizes and celebrates 
outstanding contributions in various fields such 
as social services, arts and culture, science and 
technology, and community development. The 
Award aims to acknowledge and appreciate 
the efforts of promising and talented youth 
from all over Maharashtra who have made 
significant contributions in their respective  
domains.

23. IDEAL SHAREHOLDER

 Your Bank has constituted the prestigious 
‘Ideal Shareholder’ Award i.e. Adarsh Sabhasad 
Award which is conferred every year to a select 
shareholder, who has demonstrated exceptional 
loyalty towards the Bank and has contributed 
to the Bank’s growth and success. During the 
year under review, your Bank bestowed this 
prestigious honour on Shri Mansukhlal Meghji 
Dodhia, Founder – Dodhia Synthethics Ltd.

 Shri Mansukhlal Meghji Dodhia was born in 
Jamnagar on 4th November, 1950. As an 18 
year-old, he started his journey in a sizing 
department of Shah Sizing Works in Bhiwandi, 
Mumbai. With this experience, he started his 
own small business in 1972 by renting 8 looms 
in Bhiwandi. Visionary and determined, he 
founded Dodhia Synthetics Ltd., the flagship 
company of the Dodhia Group, in January 1987. 
Primarily engaged in manufacturing of various 
types of dyed and fancy specialty yarns, Dodhia 
Synthetics has grown rapidly to become one of 
the leading manufacturers of yarns in India with 
manufacturing plants at Kalyan MIDC, Silvassa 
and Surat. The Company’s quality management 
systems and customer-oriented approach have 
seen it successfully export specialised yarns 
to over 45 countries worldwide, encompassing 
suiting, shirting, saris, dress materials, 
furnishings, carpets, rugs and automotive fabrics 
among others. A socially and environmentally 
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conscious entity, the Group has also made waves 
for creating wealth out of waste by producing 
sustainable yarn out of recycled PET bottles!

 Saraswat Bank is proud to be associated with 
Shri Dodhia, his family and the Dodhia Group over 
the past twenty years and has honoured him with 
the ‘Adarsh Sabhasad’ (Ideal Shareholder) of the 
Year Award 2024-25.

24. COMPOSITION OF YOUR BANK’S BOARD

 The composition of the Board of your Bank 
is governed by the Multi-State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002 and the Bye-laws of the Bank. 
As on 31st March, 2025, there are 18 Directors on 
the Board in addition to the Managing Director. 
The Board includes eminent persons with 
professional expertise and experience in banking, 
finance and other fields.

 During the year under report, eighteen Board 
meetings were held. From October 2024 onwards, 
the Bank is holding one Board meeting per month.

 The changes in the composition of the Board 
during FY 2024-25 are listed below.

 Changes in the composition of the Board:

  Appointment of Shri S. K. Banerji as Vice- 
Chairman of the Bank

 Shri S. K. Banerji, Member, Board of Directors was 
appointed as Vice-Chairman of your Bank from 12th 
July, 2024.

 Shri Samir Kumar Banerji {B. Sc (Hons), D.B.M., 
L.L.M., F.I.I.B.F.} has been associated with your 
Bank for nearly five decades now. He has worked 
across various branches and departments handling 
pivotal positions in departments like Advertising/
Marketing, Administration, Share, Audit, Project of 
Vashi Building, Printing & Stationery, Operations 
& Accounts and Legal successfully. He is also the 
Chairman of the Board of Management of the Bank.

 He led the Bank as Managing Director from 2002 
to 2017. He has also been associated with an 
array of prime institutions like IBA (Managing 

Committee), Member of Executive Committee 
and Governing Council of Indian Institute of 
Banking and Finance (IIBF), Ex-Member of Legal 
Committee of Bombay Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry and Ex-Member appointed by Govt. 
of Maharashtra as Member representing Principal 
Employer on the Maharashtra Security Board.

  Co-option of Shri Arvind S. Mokashi on the Board 
of the Bank

 Shri Arvind S. Mokashi (B.Com, C.A.I.I.B.) joined 
the Board of Directors of Saraswat Bank on 
27th September, 2024. Shri Mokashi is a veteran 
banker having 40 years of experience in the largest 
Public Sector Bank, i.e. State Bank of India from 
where he retired as Chief General Manager on 30th 
June, 2021. He was instrumental in setting up 
and stabilising the ‘Credit Review Department’ of 
SBI which analyses underlying risk in ‘Corporate 
Credit’ proposals.

 He has domain expertise in Corporate Credit, SME 
Finance & Resolution of Stressed Assets. He is 
currently associated with India Debt Resolution 
Company Ltd. (known as Bad Bank) as a SBI 
Nominee Director and holds few Independent 
Directorships in other Companies. He is also a 
Member of the Board of Management of the Bank.

  Co-option of Shri Arun R. Bapat on the Board of 
the Bank

 Shri Arun R. Bapat {B.Sc. - Physics, L.L.B., 
C.A.I.I.B., CeISB (Certified Information System 
Banker)} joined the Board of Directors of 
Saraswat Bank on 29th November, 2024. Shri 
Bapat is a veteran banker with almost 40 years 
of experience at the largest Public Sector Bank, 
i.e. State Bank of India from where he retired as 
Deputy General Manager – heading the Core 
Banking Technical Operations Department – 
on 28th February, 2021. His experience with SBI 
includes Project Head for multiple development 
projects around Credit, Capital Adequacy 
(BASEL -II/III/IRB) and Data Quality. He has 
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also served as an external expert with NeSL 
(National E Governance Services Limited) 
and as a Chief Technology Officer at C-edge 
Technologies, a TCS-SBI joint venture company.

  
Co-option of Shri Anand Desai on the Board of the 
Bank 

 Shri Anand A. Desai (F.C.A.), a practising Chartered 
Accountant, joined the Board of Directors of 
Saraswat Bank on 30th May, 2025. Shri Desai is a 
Partner at Anand Desai and Associates and at N. 
M. Raiji & Co. His area of specialisation includes 
Indirect Taxation (Service Tax, GST), Direct Tax, 
Compliances, Litigation and Advisory, Banking 
and Construction Sector. He has been actively 
involved in implementation of GST for Banking 
sector and Real Estate sector. He has worked with 
various Nationalised and Co-operative Banks and 
in other sectors in the field of Direct and Indirect 
Taxation. He is associated with various charitable 
and social organisations in Maharashtra as an 
Auditor and Tax Advisor.

 Resignations from the Board

 Shri Sameer S. Shirodkar, Member, Board of 
Directors of the Bank tendered his resignation 
from the Board owing to personal reasons. His 
resignation was accepted by the Board in its 
Meeting held on 29th November, 2024.

 Shri Shashikant S. Sakhalkar, Member, Board of 
Directors and the then Vice-Chairman was asked 
to step down and he subsequently tendered his 
resignation from the Board. His resignation was 
accepted by the Board in its Meeting held on 12th 
July, 2024.

 Shri S. N. Sawaikar, Member, Board of Directors 
of the Bank expressed his inability to continue 
as a Board member due to his advanced age 
and tendered his resignation from the Board. 
His resignation was accepted by the Board in its 
Meeting held on 29th April, 2025.

 Board of Management (BoM)

 The Bank also has in place a Board of 
Management (BoM) comprising persons with 

specialised knowledge and practical expertise in 
banking to facilitate professional management 
and focussed attention to the banking activities.

 During the year under review, twenty-six 
meetings of the Board of Management were  
held.

 Shri Sameer S. Shirodkar, Member of the Board 
of Management of the Bank resigned from the 
Board of Management due to personal reasons on  
29th November, 2024.The BoM was subsequently 
re-constituted by including an additional external 
member, Mrs. Rashmi Prabhu. 

 Appointment of Mrs. Rashmi Prabhu on the Board 
of Management (BoM) of the Bank 

 Mrs. Rashmi Prabhu (M.Sc. Statistics – Pune 
University) is a well-versed banking professional 
with over thirty years of experience in the banking 
industry, twenty-three of which were with HDFC 
Bank Ltd. and seven with Bank of Punjab. She 
retired as Senior Vice President - HDFC Bank Ltd. 
in April 2023 and joined them as a Consultant 
for the period September 2023 to September 
2024, during which she successfully led projects 
on Government and Institutional Business for 
Maharashtra. As Senior Vice President with 
HDFC Bank, she built a successful franchise 
of Retail Branch Banking Business handling 
operations, audit, risk control, digital adaption 
and organizational transformation. She joined 
the Board of Management (BoM) on 29th April, 
2025.

 The current list of BoM members is as below:

Internal Members  
(from Board of Directors) 

External Expert Members

• Shri S. K. Banerji

  Chairman of the Board 
of Management ( BoM)

• Dr. V. Y. Tarale

•  Shri H. S. Chatterjee

• Shri A. S. Mokashi • Shri S. D. Naik

•  Mrs. Rashmi Prabhu
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 Loans to Directors

 No Director has borrowed any money from 
your Bank except against their fixed deposits 
as permitted by RBI. This is a healthy tradition 
in your Bank and has also been enshrined in 
Bye-law No. 55 and Bye-law No. 63 (c) many  
years ago.

 Working of Committees

 The Board has constituted Committees, which 
include Directors, to take informed decisions in 
the best interests of the Bank.

 During the year under review, the Audit, Accounts 
and NPA Management Committee of the Board 
was segregated into 3 different Committees 
viz. the Audit Committee, Finance/Accounts 
Committee and the NPA Management Committee 
while a separate Ethics Committee was also 
constituted.

 The number of Board Committees was thus 
increased from eight as on 31st March, 2024 to 
eleven as on 31st March, 2025. These include:

	 •	 Executive	and	HRD	Committee	of	the	Board

	 •	 Audit	Committee	of	the	Board

	 •	 Ethics	Committee	of	the	Board

	 •	 NPA	Management	Committee	of	the	Board

	 •	 Finance/Accounts	Committee

	 •	 Risk	Management	Committee

	 •	 Information	 Technology	 (IT)	 Strategy	
Committee

	 •	 Special	Committee	of	the	Board	for	Monitoring	
and Follow-up of cases of Fraud (SCBMF)

	 •	 Credit	Committee	of	the	Board

	 •	 Nomination	 and	 Remuneration	 Committee	
(NRC)

	 •	 Prevention	 of	 Sexual	 Harassment	 at	
Workplace (POSH) Committee

 The re-constitution of Committees will thus 
ensure specialised focus on key areas and enable 
more effective decision-making and governance.

 The various Committees and the scope of 
functions are as follows:

 Executive and HRD Committee:

 The Executive and HRD Committee looks 
into HR and training issues, formulation and 
implementation of action plan for sustaining/
improving the quality of the Bank’s human 
resources and welfare measures for employees 
at all levels. It is also involved in decision-making 
on all operational matters, except sanction of 
loans/advances. It further decides upon branch 
expansion, acquisition of premises on purchase or 
lease for branches/offices, approves expenditure 
and costs in relation thereto and also considers 
any other matter which requires urgent attention.

 The members of the Executive and HRD 
Committee of the Board include Shri S. K. Banerji, 
Shri K. V. Rangnekar and Dr (Smt.) A.P. Samant.

 Shri S. K. Banerji is the Chairman of the Executive 
and HRD Committee of the Board.

 Audit Committee of the Board:

 This Committee provides direction, oversees the 
total audit function of your Bank, reviews the 
internal inspection/audit function in the Bank, 
its quality and effectiveness in terms of follow-
up on internal inspection. It is also instrumental 
in ensuring compliance with the statutory audit/ 
concurrent audit and RBI inspection reports. The 
Committee approves the audited Balance Sheet, 
Profit and Loss Accounts, Notes to accounts and 
other financial statements of the Bank. It reviews 
instances, if any, of manual intervention in the 
System-based Asset Classification process 
and is responsible for omissions on the part of 
internal inspecting officials to detect serious 
irregularities, if any.
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 The members of the Audit Committee of the Board 
include Shri S. V. Saudagar, Shri K. D. Umrootkar 
and Shri L. R. Samant.

 Shri S. V. Saudagar is the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee of the Board.

 Ethics Committee of the Board:

 The Ethics Committee of the Board ensures that 
the ethical standards of integrity are upheld 
in the Bank. It is instrumental in ensuring that 
appropriate and effective internal control systems 
are in place and there is transparency and 
integrity of the Bank’s accounting and financial 
reporting systems, including independent audit, 
systems for risk management, financial and 
operational control and compliance with laws 
and relevant standards. It ensures transparent 
and fair dealing with intermediaries, undertakes 
merit-based employment decisions and monitors 
effectiveness of Bank’s governance practices, 
suggesting changes wherever required. It 
also oversees disclosure of information to 
shareholders and regulatory authorities.

 The members of the Ethics Committee of the 
Board include Shri K. D. Umrootkar, Shri Gautam 
Thakur and Shri A. S. Mokashi.

 Shri K. D. Umrootkar is the Chairman of the Ethics 
Committee of the Board.

 NPA Management Committee of the Board:

 The NPA Management Committee of the 
Board reviews the overdues position, recovery 
performance and NPA position of the Bank. 
It is instrumental in approving the One Time 
Settlement (OTS) cases and fixing of Reserve 
prices of assets of defaulters. It notes the 
position of and movement of Special Mention 
Accounts (SMAs) and flagged accounts. It is 
also instrumental in approving sale of assets, 
if any, to ARCs and other matters related to  
recovery/NPAs.

 The members of the NPA Management Committee 
of the Board include Shri A. S. Mokashi, Shri 
Gautam Thakur and Shri L. R. Samant.

 Shri A. S. Mokashi is the Chairman of the NPA 
Management Committee of the Board.

 Finance/Accounts Committee:

 The Finance/Accounts Committee undertakes 
periodic review of the accounting policies/ 
systems in the Bank. It is responsible for the Trial 
Balance and Profit and Loss Account of the Bank 
and approves the audited position of the financial 
statements of the Bank on half-yearly/yearly 
basis. It also periodically reviews the status of 
Delivery Channel products, credit card account 
codes and aggregation of account balances vis-
a-vis the general ledger balances at branch level/ 
other internal accounts. It also notes the status in 
respect of direct/indirect taxes and other matters 
related to Finance/Accounts.

 The members of the Finance/Accounts Committee 
of the Board include Shri A. G. Ambeskar, Shri M. 
B. Kadam and Shri S. V. Saudagar.

 Shri A. G. Ambeskar is the Chairman of the 
Finance/Accounts Committee of the Board. 

 Risk Management Committee:

 The Risk Management Committee is a 
Committee that has, as its sole and exclusive 
function, responsibility for the overview of the 
risk management policies and practices of the 
Bank’s operations, and mitigation of prevailing 
risks in line with the risk appetite of the Bank. 
It approves policies, strategies and methods 
for risk management and takes a cross-
business view, assuring a proper understanding 
is reached and actions are taken to meet the 
stated goals and objectives of risk management  
in the Bank.

 The members of the Risk Management Committee 
of the Board include Shri K. D. Umrootkar, Shri S. 
V. Saudagar and Shri L. R. Samant.

 Shri K. D. Umrootkar is the Chairman of the Risk 
Management Committee of the Board.
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 Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee:

 The Information Technology (IT) Strategy 
Committee is a Committee to approve IT 
strategy and policies, and to ensure that 
an effective IT organisational structure and 
strategic planning process is in place. Key 
focus areas of IT Governance include strategic 
alignment, value delivery, risk management, 
resource management and performance  
management.

 The members of the Information Technology (IT) 
Strategy Committee of the Board include Shri 
A. R. Bapat, Shri Gautam Thakur and Shri L. R. 
Samant.

 Shri A. R. Bapat is the Chairman of the Information 
Technology (IT) Strategy Committee of the Board.

  Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring 
and Follow-up of cases of Fraud (SCBMF):

 The Special Committee of the Board for 
Monitoring and Follow-up of cases of Fraud is 
a Committee to monitor and follow up various 
frauds/misappropriations in the Bank, oversee 
effectiveness of fraud risk management review 
and follow up the cases of fraud, including 
root cause analysis, and suggest mitigating 
measures for strengthening the internal controls, 
risk management framework and minimising 
the incidence of frauds. It also oversees the 
effectiveness of the framework for Early Warning 
Signals for detection of frauds.

 The members of the Special Committee of 
the Board for Monitoring and Follow-up of 
cases of Frauds include Shri Gautam Thakur,  
Shri K. V. Rangnekar, Shri S. M. Lotlikar and  
Shri K. D. Umrootkar.

 Shri Gautam Thakur is the Chairman of the 
Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring 
and Follow-up of cases of Frauds.

 Credit Committee

 The Credit Committee is a Committee for 
considering credit proposals viz. new/additional/
renewal/review of credit limits and/or request 
proposals of borrowers with individual credit 

exposures above Rs. 30 crore and group credit 
exposures above Rs. 60 crore. During the year 
under review, twenty-four meetings of the 
Committee were held.

 The members of the Credit Committee of the 
Board include Shri N. G. Pai, Shri. A. G. Ambeskar, 
Shri. H. M. Rathi, Shri. S. K. Banerji and Shri K. G. 
Masurkar.

 Shri N. G. Pai is the Chairman of the Credit 
Committee of the Board.

 Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC):

 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is 
a Committee formed at the Bank to undertake 
the process of appointment/reappointment/
termination and remuneration of Managing 
Director/Whole Time Director and all officials in 
the ‘Executive’ cadre of the Bank, from the rank of 
Assistant General Manager upto the rank of Joint 
Managing Director, Consultants and Advisors. 
The scope of NRC covers the entire employee life 
cycle of the ‘Executive’ and includes but is not 
limited to appointment, reappointment, transfer, 
performance assessment, remuneration, rewards 
and recognition, succession planning, exit/
termination of any official in the Executive cadre 
whether on permanent/contract or advisory 
basis.

 The members of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee of the Board include Shri L. R. Samant, 
Shri K. D. Umrootkar and Shri Gautam Thakur.

 Shri L. R. Samant is the Chairman of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the 
Board.

  Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace 
(POSH) Committee:

 The Prevention of Sexual Harassment at 
Workplace (POSH) Committee ensures that 
the guidelines under the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 are implemented in complete 
sense, such harassment is viewed as serious 
misconduct and steps are undertaken to punish 
the offender.
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 The members of the Committee for Prevention 
of Sexual Harassment at Workplace include Dr. 
(Mrs.) Anuradha P. Samant, Dr. (Mrs.) Sandhya 
A. Kamath and Mrs. Geeta S. Kulkarni. Mrs. Uma 
Pandit and Mrs. Shameem Syed are the External 
Members in the said Committee.

 Dr. (Mrs.) Anuradha P. Samant is the Chairperson 
of the Committee for Prevention of Sexual 
Harassment at Workplace.

25. MEMBERSHIP

 2,83,071 members of your Bank individually hold 
fifty and above fully-paid shares. The number of 
nominal members of the Bank stood at 1,40,658 
as on 31st March, 2025.

26. APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

 In line with the RBI Circular No. RBI/2021-22/25 
Ref No. DoS.CO.ARG/ SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-
22 dated 27th April, 2021 on broad requirements 
for appointment of Statutory Auditors for UCBs, 
your Bank has in place joint statutory audit by 
two audit firms.

 Your Board of Directors recommends the 
appointment of M/s Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered 
Accountants, 304/308/309, Udyog Mandir No. 
1,7-C, Bhagoji Keer Marg, Mahim, Mumbai – 
400 016 & M/s P. G. Bhagwat LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, Suite 102, Orchard, Dr. Pai Marg, 
Baner, Pune – 411 045 as the joint Statutory 
Auditors of the Bank for the FY 2025-26.

27. DISCLOSURES

 As per the disclosure norms stipulated by RBI, we 
hereby declare that insurance premium to Deposit 
Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation 
(DICGC) has been paid up to 31st March, 2025 and 
there are no arrears payable to DICGC.

28. OBITUARY

 We deeply mourn the passing away of some of the 
shareholders, former employees and employees 
of your Bank during the year under report.

29. GRATITUDE

 Your Board wishes to place on record the 
appreciation of the support which the Board of 
Directors and the Bank has received from all its 
shareholders and other stakeholders, including 
depositors, borrowers as also employees and 
thanks them profusely for the confidence and 
trust that they have reposed in the Board and 
your Bank. Your Board would also like to place 
on record the deep sense of gratitude to the 
authorities of the Reserve Bank of India, the Office 
of the Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies 
- New Delhi, the Office of the Commissioner for 
Co-operation and Registrar of Co-operative 
Societies, Maharashtra State, Pune, bankers, 
legal advisors and auditors for their valuable 
guidance, support and co-operation. The Board 
is also grateful to the Registrars of Co-operative 
Societies of the States of Karnataka, Goa, Gujarat, 
Madhya Pradesh, Delhi, Haryana and Uttar 
Pradesh.

 Your Board wishes to assure all shareholders 
that it is aware of its responsibility as the leading 
Bank in the Urban Co-operative Banking Sector  
and it will continue to strive towards attaining 
new heights in coming years through continued 
steadfast commitment and sustained efforts.

For and on behalf of the Board,

Gautam E. Thakur
Chairman

Mumbai: 12th June, 2025
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43 -  . ( )   -

     -
 , 

    -     
       .

.    

     - 
    . , 
 ,  , 
 -     
     
   .    
     
     . 

       
 ,     
   .    
 .      
   .  ..   
   ,   
        
   .

     ..  
       
.        
      .   
.  .

   -     
     . 
   .   
     .  
      .   
.   .

    .    
     

       
.       
 ,    .

       
       
 .     
    .

   -   :

        
    -   
 .   .

     .   . 
       
,      
    .   
.  .     , 
-     
 .      
    .   . 
     
       
      -
   .

   :

   -     
 (Consumer Price Index - CPI)  
    .  . 
      
. ,     
     .  
 . ,    
    -  .   
 .



    

44  -  . ( )   -

        
     
      
   .    
    .  .  
      
      
   (Neutral)  
   .   
      , 
   .

   -    
     
      
 .     
.      -
 (Advance Tax Outflows),  
     
      
     . 
     
      
      (Cash 
Reserve Ratio - CRR) .   
    .  .  
. ,     
  (Variable Rate Repo- VRR),  
  (Open Market Operations-
OMO)  -   (Dollar-
Rupee Swap Facility)   
     
.        
        
.  ,      
.

   -      
  (Gross Domestic Product 
- GDP) .   .  
      
    .   
-     .   
   . 

       
    (Current Account 
Deficit - CAD)   -  
   (GDP) .   
  . ,    
      
     .

      
(Foreign Portfolio Investment - FPI) 
   .   
 ,    
  ,    
   .

       
.    .  
    -  
  . 

      
  ,   (Indian 
Government Bonds - IGB)  
 ,    
,        
       
   .   . 
       
     ,  
       
       
 .  ,   .  . 
  .
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45 -  . ( )   -

        
   .   
      
     
      
 . ,  ,  
-     
       
  .  Sensex  Nifty 
 ,.  ,.   
 . ,   ,. 
 ,.  .

  :

   -    
   .   
  .     
     
 .   -  
      
   .     
   .  
      
  .

      
     ,  
   . ,  
     . 
  ,   
,       
   -   
  .    
 ,     
      
      
     .

  -     
   .  
.     .   
     
   .  . 
        
 .      .  
      .  
 .    
  -   
     , 
  ,   
 ,     
  -    
 .

       
     
   .      
 .     
      
       
.      (Cash 
Reserve Ratio-CRR) .   
.      
      
-      
  .    . 
      - 
     (Base 
Effect)     .   
       ’’ 
(Accomodative)  ’’ (Neutral) 
  .

        
      
.      



    

46  -  . ( )   -

     
  .  ,   
      . , 
  -    
      
       
      
,   .    
      
     .

 ,     
       
     ,  
 .

         
 .     
     
       
    . ,  
      
     
   . ,   
   (Net Interest Margin-
NIM)  .  ,   
-      
     
 . ,     
 .

.    -     
   

 •     .  ,  
 . ,.  .,. 
  .    
.  ,   .,. 
 .

 •     .  ,    
. , .    . ,.  
 .   .  , 
  . ,.  . 
      
 .      
. ,.     
 . ,.  .

 •    - .  ,  
 .,.  .,. 
  .    
.,.  .

 •        
-      
      
-    . , 
‘     (Consumer 
and Commercial Banking Group - 
CCBG)’      
 . CCBG     
.,.     
. 

 •        
- .  ,    
.,.  .,. 
  .    
.  ,   .,. 
 .

 •    (Wholesale)  
-    .  , 
  .,.  . 
  .  ,    
.,.  .

 •      .  , 
  . .  .  
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47 -  . ( )   -

,   . .    
. ,      
-   .  , 
  .  .  , 
  .  .

 • ,     
       
. ,.  ,   
    (Provision 
Coverage Ratio)     
 .

 •    . .   
 .

 •    (Own funds)  
. .   .  
   .  ,    
. ,.  .  ,    
. ,.  .

 •      (CRAR)  
.  ,   .   
.  ,   .  
.      .  
    .   .

.   
 (i)   :

  •  : 

    -  
  - (Schematic 
Loans)      
.      
 .

     -   
. ,     

-  . ,  
.    Schematic 
  ,    
.   .  -
  . . ,   
. .      
. .  .   
-    
 . ,   .

   ,   - 
.   .  , 
  . ,.   
.  ,   . ,. 
 .

 •  CCBG     :

        
(CCBG)     
-     
 (SBU)  .   
     
      
. ,    -
      
  . CCBG   
 ,   LAP, -
        
 .     
       
 ,  , 
     
     
  .   
 -    
      
 .



    

48  -  . ( )   -

   CCBG     
 ,   . 
  ,   . 
  .    
     
-  ,.   
      
   .    
 -  .

     -    
  ,    
 CCBG      
  .

   , CCBG  .   
 .      
     
    . 

 •       : 

         
     
 .      
     
     
.      
      
 .

 •      : 

        
     . 
    
 .   .   
  (TMPV)  .  
   (TPEM) 
   . , 

  .    
   - 
  .   
  - 
     
  .

  •   :

     -  ,, 
  (CASA)   
.  ,,    
,   .   
    .  
 .

  •    (Branch Sales 
Officers-BSO)    
 (Business Development 
Officers - BDO):

        
     
      
     . 
    (Walk-in-
Customers)    
    - 
  .

   ‘  ’   
 ‘  ’ 
   .    
,      
     
  .     
. ,     
.  .   -
, .     .  
     
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49 -  . ( )   -

(Third Party Business)  . 
    
     
    .

      : 
(Third Party Business):

  •   :

         
 ,      
   .

    . 

   

       (LIC)
      
(HDFC Life) 
     
    
  
    

        
(BAGIC) 
    

       
      
      
(BAGIC)

     
    -  
(    )  
    - 
(    )

 PNB Metlife  : 
 PNB Metlife     

      
   .    

       
      
 .

   -     
   . .  
 .

  :

     ,  
 ,    , 
   ,  
       
     . 
  . .    
   ,    
  . .   .

  :

   ‘    ’ 
     .  
.  ,    ,  
        
. .   .    
 . .    . 
      
    .    
  GPay, Phonepe   (UPI) 
        
  .

 : 

   -    , 
    .   
ASBA (Application Supported by Blocked 
Amount)      
(Equity)  . , ,, 
 (IPO)   .  



    

50  -  . ( )   -

  . .   
  .   -  
,     .

   (Priority Sector)  
       

-      
      .  
        
-   .

  . 
 -

  % .%
-  .% .%
  .% .%

•      (Customer 
Relations & Experience - CRE):

      ’ 
  ’    
      
  . ,  
      
   .    
       
       
 .      
 .

   -     
      
       
  . ’ ’  
    ,,  
    .

 ,     
      
   (Celebration of Trust)  

     
.

        
,     
      
    
.

 ii)    :

    -    
-  .  ,   
. ,.  . ,. 
  .    
.  ,    . ,.  
.   (LCBD)  
 . ,.    
. ,.  .

   . ,    
   . ,  
    .  
. ,  -  
    . ,  
    .

        ,  
, , -  
   .

       
        
      -
 :    
   .    
       -
    .  
  -   
 .
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51 -  . ( )   -

 iii)    :

         
     . 
       
   .  
    
     / 
      
 .

       
  . ,.   . 
      
 .    .  
   .  ,    
. ,.   .

        
      
    (Nostro) 
 .  ,   
     
(Correspondent Relationship)  
 .

        
  ,    
       
 . , . .    
     .

 iv)   :

       
   .   
      
   .   
     
       

      
   .   
       
    .

.    
   :
     ,  , 

, -   -  
     
       
      
.       
  .       
     .  
       
      
    .    
-      
     .

       
   -  
       
 .

.        
 
      , 

      
       . 
,    (Disaster 
Recovery-DR)      
   .   
     
       
 -    
. ,    



    

52  -  . ( )   -

     
  (Manual Process)   
      
 (Applications)  
 .    
      
       
.

       
 .   ,  
,   , , , 
,      
.      
      . 
       
   .

   -     
     
 .

 •     IMPS 

 •     

 •     Face Authentication.
 •      (Bharat Aadhar 

Seeding Enabler-BASE)

 •    /Sound box 
 UPI Merchant Acquiring.

 •        
- (RTGS-NEFT) 
  (Beneficiary)  
  .

 ,     (Sponsor 
Bank)       
, , , , 

/     
   .

.   

       
     
   .    
       
     
      
 . ,   -
       
(CSOC)      
     .  
      
    .

 ,    
      
      
    
      .  
’’  ’’    
     
  .

      
    .   
’ ’   ’  
’     
  . ,   
      
ISO      
  .

.  

 .  ,     
   . ,   
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53 -  . ( )   -

 ,  ()   
()  ,    .

 ,      
 -     
.   , ,  , 
,         
.

        
.  ,     .  , 
     .

.  ,      
 
   ‘    

’     
       
   .

 ,      
      .  
    
  , ,  
     
.  ‘Building Trust Across 
Generations’     
   .   
 ,      
    .  
     
      
.

 ,      
 WhatsApp    
  .     
  .    
      
  .

       (NCR) 
       
       
      
.       
 NCR      
 .

.   

    -  
      
    .   
      
  . .   
   .  - 
:

 •    . .   
 .

 •    -  . . 
   .

 •  . .   .

 •   - . .  
.

 •        
  . .   
.

 •  ...     
   -  
. .  .   
    .   
.

 ,   -  . . 
       
    . .  



    

54  -  . ( )   -

   . .  
 . .  .   
     . 
  .  .  
       
   .

   :

      
 (IRAC)    
       
.     
 . .    
 .    
      
 (Provision Coverage Ratio)   
.  ,    .    
    .   
        
.

. 

       . 
 .  ,   .  
 .

. -
   -     

      
   .

  . 
    (. )

- -

  (%) ,. ,.

  (%) ,. ,.

  (%) . .

    (. )

 ,   
 

. .

  (.%) 
( )

. .

  % 
( )

,. ,.

   ,. ,.

   . .

   . .

,    
  (%)

. .

-   ,. ,.

   ,. ,.

   ,. ,.

   . .

 ,. ,.

   :
 .  ,     

      
     .  
.     .  
 -      
     .  
   .

   :
 .  ,      

   .  
      .

   
    .    

     . 
         
. ,.   .   
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55 -  . ( )   -

       
      
 .

   :
 .  ,      

       
. .     
    .

 ,     
 :

     . UBD.
(PCB)/ BPD/ Cir/ .  ,  
      
 . .     
    .

   :
       

. ,.      
  .

.    
      

  .
  .   :
   .    

 MMRDA  
  , MMRDA  
     
      
  . ,       
       
 .

        
.      
  . ,   

     
   .  .    
     
   . , 
     , 
        . 
      .

  .      
     .

.   
      , 

     . 
       
   .

   ‘   - 
 ’  ‘ ’  
  .

 ,   ‘  
 ‘     BFSI 
 ‘   .

.   
      

      
   .   
       
     . 
      
  (Primary Health Centres - 
PHCs)      
 ()   . 
     -  
   , 
        
 .     
  ,    



    

56  -  . ( )   -

,   .  
        
   .   
        
        
 .    .   
       
   .   
       
.

       
     
 .  / ,  
      
    . ,  
      .  
  .     
    , , 
     .  
        
  .     
   ,  , , 
     , 
  ,     
       
      
 . ,    
 ,     , 
  /  
,   ,  ,  
      
 .    -
       
  .

    ‘’ 
    . . 
    .

       
      
  . 

.  
 ’’    : 
       

     
   ’’  
’   ’   
.      
   .   
     
  .    , 
 ,  ,   
      
.        
  .

    :
    ‘   

’  .    
    , -, 
-     
     .

.  
    ‘ ’   

 .       
       
   .    
.   ,  .  
     .

  .      
  .     .  
        
.        .  
       
       
  .
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57 -  . ( )   -

 .        
     .   
  .    
       
      . 
 ,      
  .

        
       
 , , ,  ,  
, ,     
  .  , , 
        
   .

   . ,     
       .

 .       -
  ’ ’     
.     .

.   
       

-  ,    
  . .  ,  
      
    . 
,        
  .

       
  .     
     .

   :
 . . .     

:
    . . .   

.  ,      
 . 

 .     B.Sc.(Hons.), DBM, 
LL.M, F.I.I.B.F.      
  .     
    . 
 /, , 
 , ,   , 
        
 .

          
.     .  
   (IBA-Managing 
Committee),      
 (IIBF)     
 ,      
      
      
 .

   .     
:

   .  (B.Com., C.A.I.I.B.) 
 .  ,     
   (Co-Opt)   
 . .     
       .  
.  ,       
‘  (Chief General 
Manager)’    .   
       
  .   ,  
    /  
    .   
’    . (India Debt 
Resolution Company Ltd)    
   .     
      
.



    

58  -  . ( )   -

 .  .     
:

 .  .  (B.Sc.-Physics, LL.B., 
C.A.I.I.B., CeISB - Certified Information 
System Banker)  .    
      
(Co-Opt)    .  
.         
   . .  ,   
    ’ (Deputy 
General Manager)-   
 ’    . 
  ,   (BASEL-
II/III/IRB)      
   . , NeSL 
(National e governance Services Ltd)  
-  -   (TCS-
SBI Joint Venture)    
  .

 .      :

 .   (F.C.A.)     
 .  ,      
  (Co-Opt)    
. .   .     
 . . .     . 
    ( , ), 
 ,  ,    
       
.        
    .   
       
       
 . ,     
    - 
   .

    :
   , .  . 

     
       
.  ,    . 

       
.  .     
      
  .    
.  ,    .

   , . . .  
      
     
    .  ,  
  .

   (Board of Management - 
BoM):

        
      
  .

       
.

   :
   , .  .  

     
  .  ,   
.  ,    
      (External 
Member)       
 . 

 .       
:

       . . 
()      
    .   
         
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59 -  . ( )   -

   .     
      
        
       
 .      
     
  .

        
    ,  
,  ,   
       
     .

     
.

    
�    . ..  
    (  ), 
� . . . 

      
 � . . .   
 � . . .   
 � . . .   
 � .  

  :

      
    .   
        
.      .  
  ()    .

. 
 .  ,      

      
,,      
 ,,  .

.   
   -    

 .   ,  , 
//,    , -,  
 , , -  . . . 
 ,  ,  , 

, .  , , -   
      .

.  
      . 31 , 

2025       
        
     .

. 
     , 

      , 
      .

. 
  ,      

       
 ,      
 .     
  ,    -  
,      , 
-    ,  
     , 
      . 
 , , , , 
,        
     .

        
,        
      
 .      
      
    .

    
  


, .  , 

:       
 .    .
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Independent Auditors’ report
to,
the Members,
saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.

RepoRt on the Audit of finAnciAl StAtementS 

opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial 
statements of saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited 
(“the Bank”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 
March 31, 2025, the profit and Loss Account, the Cash 
Flow statement for the year then ended and notes to 
the financial statements, including a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (the “financial statements”).

in our opinion, and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information 
required by the Banking regulation Act, 1949 (as 
applicable to Co-operative societies) as amended 
by the Banking regulation (Amendment) Act, 2020, 
the Multi state Co-operative societies Act, 2002, 
as amended, the Multi state Co-operative societies 
rules, 2002 made thereunder, the guidelines issued 
by the reserve Bank of india (“rBi”) and the Central 
registrar of Co-operative societies, in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
india:

i. in the case of the Balance sheet, of the state of 
affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2025;  

ii. in the case of the profit and Loss Account, of the 
profit for the year ended on that date; and 

iii. in the case of the Cash Flow statement, of the 
cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
standards on Auditing (“the sAs”) issued by the 
institute of Chartered Accountants of india (“the 
iCAi”). our responsibilities under those sAs are 
further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities 

for the audit of the financial statements” section 
of our report. We are independent of the Bank in 
accordance with the Code of ethics issued by the 
iCAi together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Multi-state Co-operative 
societies Act, 2002, as amended, and the rules made 
thereunder and the Banking regulation Act, 1949 (as 
applicable to Co-operative societies) as amended by 
the Banking regulation (Amendment) Act, 2020 and 
the guidelines issued by the reserve Bank of india, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of ethics issued by the iCAi. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

information other than the financial statements and 
auditors’ report thereon

the Bank’s management and Board of directors are 
responsible for the preparation of other information. 
the other information comprises the information 
included in the Bank’s Annual report including 
other explanatory information but does not include 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 
the Annual report is expected to be made available 
to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report including other 
explanatory information, if based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate 
the matter to those charged with governance. 
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Responsibilities of management and those charged 
with governance for the financial statements

the Bank’s management and Board of directors are 
responsible for the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of 
the Bank in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in india, including the Accounting 
standards issued by the iCAi, the provisions of the 
Banking regulation Act, 1949 (as applicable to  
Co-operative societies) as amended by the Banking 
regulation (Amendment) Act, 2020, the Multi state 
Co-operative societies Act, 2002, as amended, the 
Multi state Co-operative societies rules, 2002 made 
there under, the guidelines issued by the rBi and 
the Central registrar of Co-operative societies. this 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of assets of the Bank and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies, making judgements and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements that give true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

in preparing the financial statements, management 
and Board of directors are responsible for assessing 
the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

the Board of directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements 

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement whether due to fraud 
or error and to issue auditors’ report that includes 
our opinion. reasonable assurance is high level 
of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with sAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decision of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with sAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. the risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

ii. obtain an understanding of internal control 
relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Bank’s internal control. 

iii. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of 
management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. if we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
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to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

v. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

other matter

the financial statements of the Bank for the previous 
year ended March 31, 2024 were audited by M p 
Chitale & Co. Chartered Accountants, and Mukund M. 
Chitale & Co. Chartered Accountants, as joint statutory 
auditors and had expressed an unmodified opinion 
vide their report dated May 24, 2024 on such financial 
statements. this report has been relied upon by both 
the joint auditors for the purpose of the audit of the 
financial statements.

our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on other legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. the Balance sheet and the profit and Loss 
Account have been drawn up in Forms A and 
B respectively of the third schedule to the 
Banking regulation Act, 1949 and the Multi 

state Co-operative societies Act, 2002, the Multi 
state Co-operative societies rules, 2002 and in 
accordance with the guidelines issued by the rBi. 

2. As required by section 73(4) of the Multi state 
Co-operative societies Act, 2002, and the 
Banking regulation Act, 1949 (As applicable 
to Co-operative societies) as amended by the 
Banking regulation (Amendment) Act, 2020, we 
report that: 

 a. We have obtained all the information and 
explanations, which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit and have found to be 
satisfactory; 

 b. in our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law, have been kept by the Bank 
so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books and proper returns adequate for 
the purposes of our audit have been received 
from the branches/offices; 

 c. No separate audit of the branches is required 
to be conducted under the Multi state Co-
operative societies Act, 2002 and therefore no 
other auditor’s report has been received by us.

 d. As required by section 30(3) of the Banking 
regulation Act, 1949, we further report that 
the transactions of the Bank which came to 
our notice have been within the powers of the 
Bank;

 e. the Balance sheet, the profit and Loss 
Account and the Cash Flow statement dealt 
with by this report, are in agreement with the 
books of account and the returns;

 f. the profit and loss account shows a true 
balance of profit for the period covered by 
such account.

3. As per the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the books of 
account and other record, we report as under on 
the matters specified in clause (d) and (e) of rule 
27 (2) of the Multi state Co-operative societies 
rules, 2002:
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 a. in our opinion and according to the  
information and explanations given to us, we 
have not noticed any material impropriety or 
irregularity in the expenditure or in the money 
due to the Bank;

 b. in our opinion and according to information 
and explanations given to us, the guidelines 
issued by the rBi, to the extent applicable 
to the Bank, have generally been adhered to 
except for the matters mentioned in Note-
iii 5.1- “Notes forming part of financial 
statements”. the guidelines of National 
Bank for Agriculture and rural development 
(“NABArd”) are not applicable to the Bank 
since the Bank has neither accepted deposits 
nor received subsidy from NABArd.

4. As required by rule 27(3) of the Multi state 
Co-operative societies rules, 2002, as per the 
information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of books of accounts 
and other records, we report as under on the 
matters specified in clause (a) to (f) of the said 
rule:

 a. during the course of our audit, we have 
generally not come across transactions which 
appear to be contrary to the provisions of the 
Act, the rules or the Bye-Laws of the Bank. 

 b. during the course of our audit, we have 
not come across material and significant 
transactions which appear to be contrary to 
the guidelines issued by the reserve Bank of 
india. since the Bank has neither accepted 
deposits nor received subsidy from National 
Bank for Agriculture and rural development, 
our comments regarding transactions 
contrary to the guidelines issued by the said 
Bank are not called for. 

 c. Based on our examination of the books of 
account and other records and as per the 
information and explanations given to us, the 
money belonging to the Bank which appears 
to be bad or doubtful of recovery and reported 
in terms of clause (c) of rule 27(3) of the Multi 

state Co-operative societies rules, 2002 are 
detailed below (Advances and investments 
categorized as doubtful and loss assets as 
per prudential norms laid down by the reserve 
Bank of india are considered as doubtful of 
recovery): 

category principal outstanding as at
march 31, 2025

(Rs. in crores) 
doubtful Assets 482.08
Loss Assets 152.93
other Asset 38.33
total 673.34

 d. As per the information provided to us and to 
the best of our knowledge, the Bank has not 
given loans to the members of the Board 
except as stated in Note – iii 13(h) – “Notes 
forming part of financial statements”.

 e. in our opinion and according to information 
and explanations given to us, the guidelines 
issued by the rBi, to the extent applicable 
to the Bank, have generally been adhered to 
except for the matters mentioned in Note-
iii 5.1- “Notes forming part of financial 
statements”. the guidelines of NABArd are 
not applicable to the Bank since the Bank 
has neither accepted deposits nor received 
subsidy from NABArd.

 f. to the best of our knowledge, no other 
matters have been specified by the Central 
registrar of Co-operative societies, which 
require reporting under this rule.

for p G Bhagwat llp
Chartered Accountants
FrN: 101118W/W100682

for Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
FrN: 103264W

nachiket deo
partner
Membership No.: 117695
udiN: 25117695BMJNLH9799
date: April 29, 2025 
place: Mumbai

Rahul Joglekar
partner
Membership No.: 129389
udiN: 25129389BMJiQH5092
date: April 29, 2025
place: Mumbai
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Balance Sheet As At MArCH 31, 2025
(Amount in Rs.)

capital and liabilities Schedule current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

(1)  Capital 1  3,26,33,45,960  3,68,75,28,400 

(2)  reserve Fund & other reserves 2  54,98,82,37,736  51,30,95,70,278 

(3)  principal/ subsidiary state partnership  -    -   
 Fund Account

(4)  deposits & other Accounts 3  5,54,81,26,87,532  4,94,57,31,28,341 

(5)  Borrowings 4  22,31,73,06,284  18,26,72,20,167 

(6)  Bills for Collection Being Bills  49,69,57,36,536 53,34,04,36,255
 receivable as per Contra

(7)  securities receivable as per Contra
 i. repo  2,83,94,06,284 2,02,14,95,167
 ii. reverse repo  -   3,44,99,95,619

(8)  Branch Adjustments  -    -   

(9) overdue interest reserve on Loans & Advances (As per Contra)  4,01,60,13,630 1,06,85,96,233

(10) interest payable  3,56,14,682 3,43,69,361

(11) other Liabilities 5  21,72,60,54,362  21,40,79,72,894 

(12) profit & Loss 6  5,22,66,90,565  5,03,66,54,429 

total  7,18,92,10,93,571  6,54,19,69,67,144 

contingent liabilities : 14  57,36,63,13,463  43,33,57,74,998 

As per our report of even date
For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 103264W  

For p G Bhagwat llp
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 101118W / W100682   

sd/-
(Rahul Joglekar)
partner
Membership No. 129389 
Mumbai : April 29, 2025 

sd/-
(nachiket deo)
partner
Membership No. 117695
Mumbai : April 29, 2025 
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(Amount in Rs.)
property and Assets Schedule  current Year 

31.03.2025
previous Year

31.03.2024
(1) Cash 7  24,09,71,08,578  24,47,90,72,905 

(2) Balances with other Banks 8  50,70,39,68,461  25,45,53,50,621 

(3) Money at Call and short Notice  11,44,93,23,129  7,71,60,38,158 

(4) investments 9  1,77,03,05,56,143  1,77,88,50,48,846 

(5) investments out of principal/ subsidiary  -    -   
 state partnership Fund Account

(6) Advances  10  3,63,32,80,21,477  3,25,67,46,41,828 

(7) interest receivable
 i. on investments  5,02,28,00,631  3,72,83,81,296 
 ii.  on Loans & Advances pA  60,13,74,324  48,58,65,189 
 iii. on Loans & Advances (As per Contra)  4,01,60,13,630  1,06,85,96,233 

(8) Bills receivable Being Bills for Collection as per Contra  49,69,57,36,536  53,34,04,36,255 

(9)  securities receivable as per Contra
 i. repo  2,83,94,06,284  2,02,14,95,167 
 ii. reverse repo  -    3,44,99,95,619 

(10) Branch Adjustments  -    -   

(11) Fixed Assets 11  10,16,73,49,604  9,39,38,87,796 

(12) other Assets  12  19,22,01,54,437  18,81,63,75,958 

(13)  Non-Banking Assets Acquired in satisfaction of Claims  -    -   

(14) Computer software  13  74,92,80,337  68,17,81,273 

total  7,18,92,10,93,571  6,54,19,69,67,144 

sd/-
A. A. patil 

Managing director
& Ceo

sd/-
K. V. Rangnekar

director

sd/-
S. V. Saudagar

director

sd/-
S. K. Banerji 

 Vice Chairman

sd/-
G. e. thakur

Chairman

Mumbai : April 29, 2025
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profIt & loSS account For tHe yeAr eNded MArCH 31, 2025
(Amount in Rs.)

eXpendituRe  current Year
31.03.2025 

previous Year
31.03.2024

1) interest on deposits, Borrowings, etc. 30,68,43,83,296 25,30,33,83,671
2) salaries and Allowances, provident Fund 4,61,89,49,365 4,21,57,44,793
3) directors’ and local committee members’ fees and allowances 2,76,29,810 1,27,29,092
4) rent, taxes, insurance, Lighting, etc. 1,91,04,33,008 1,73,31,65,008
5) Law Charges 4,05,89,456 3,49,01,291
6) postage, telegram and telephone charges 7,14,03,323 7,08,37,560
7) Auditor’s fees 8,92,18,684 8,13,28,996
8) depreciation on and repair to property 92,79,36,656 84,73,01,690
9) stationery, printing and advertisement, etc. 27,19,57,517 27,91,16,262
10) Loss from sale of or dealing with non-banking assets  -    -   
11) other expenditure :
 i) repairs and Maintenance of assets 25,19,34,991 21,75,73,762
 ii) Banker's indemnity insurance 1,33,00,000 85,50,000
 iii) premium paid to diCGC 59,20,21,675 53,58,59,325
 iv) premium paid to eCGC 7,69,52,476 7,45,24,347
 v) Cheque processing Charges 70,44,844 77,33,704
 vi) Leased Line expenditure 8,12,73,902 7,60,85,397
 vii) travelling and Conveyance 4,84,17,816 4,27,44,599
 viii) security service Charges 50,01,75,592 46,40,74,910
 ix) Amortisation of investments 23,60,44,386 24,15,30,195
 x) professional Fees 27,77,74,606 19,95,12,201
 xi) expenses on psLC 75,94,95,198 58,54,33,850
 xii) Bank Charges 1,28,44,708 1,69,06,177
 xiii) digital Banking expenses 56,37,17,768 55,60,18,991
 xiv) Car expenses 1,99,80,695 1,75,49,567
 xv) Housekeeping Charges 5,41,73,482 5,10,28,982
 xvi) donations 4,88,89,000 3,51,63,000
 xvii) Members' Welfare expenses 2,16,39,384 1,93,32,727
 xviii) staff Welfare expenses 7,28,796 19,34,406
 xix) sundries 1,07,25,88,529 83,73,62,829

4,63,89,97,848 3,98,89,18,969
12) Bad debts/other Assets Written off 1,80,51,35,127 2,19,20,44,411
13) provisions :
 i) Bad And doubtful debts reserve 94,95,33,788 36,67,63,964
 ii) reserve for restructured Assets  -   44,71,000
 iii) Contingent provision Against standard Assets 16,69,54,000 8,90,00,000
 iv) Floating provision for Advances - refer Note 13(g)  -   1,25,00,00,000

1,11,64,87,788 1,71,02,34,964
14) profit before tax 6,93,78,60,593 7,01,64,41,290
15) income-tax expenses :
 i) Current tax 1,20,60,00,000 1,63,00,00,000
 ii) deferred tax 54,94,09,463  35,65,89,874 

1,75,54,09,463 1,98,65,89,874
16) Net profit after tax 5,18,24,51,130 5,02,98,51,416
 total 53,14,09,82,471 47,48,61,47,997
1) Net profit carried to Balance sheet 5,21,95,48,536 5,02,98,51,416
 total 5,21,95,48,536 5,02,98,51,416

As per our report of even date
For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 103264W  

For p G Bhagwat llp
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 101118W / W100682   

sd/-
(Rahul Joglekar)
partner
Membership No. 129389 
Mumbai : April 29, 2025 

sd/-
(nachiket deo)
partner
Membership No. 117695
Mumbai : April 29, 2025 
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(Amount in Rs.)
income current Year

31.03.2025 
previous Year

31.03.2024
1) interest & discount 44,91,34,05,315 39,60,44,94,562

2) Commission 1,36,15,80,103 95,58,35,883

3) exchange and Brokerage 37,26,65,577 39,76,03,902

4) profit on sale of securities (Net) 1,04,10,69,941 85,22,09,195

5) other receipts
 i) processing Fees 76,54,67,214 59,70,46,119
 ii) service Charges  91,87,34,407 88,34,11,503
 iii) profit on sale of Assets(Net) 32,62,407 17,44,792
 iv) digital Banking income 54,06,97,378 49,39,01,358
 v) Miscellaneous income 24,96,92,723 22,55,59,802
 vi) dividend    3,80,600  81,824 

2,47,82,34,729 2,20,17,45,398

6) excess provision of earlier years written back 4,12,01,838 5,57,11,646

7) Bad debts earlier written off, now recovered 43,71,87,357 36,40,51,846

8)  reversal of Bddr on sale to ArC 37,08,00,000 48,23,95,450

9)  excess provision for depreciation in investments 
reversed

32,75,754 21,16,03,516

10)  transfer from Bad and doubtful debts/other Assets 
reserve

1,80,51,35,127 2,19,20,44,411

11) provision towards a/c under Covid Framework reversed 29,54,13,730 7,89,59,188

12)  provision towards reserve for restructured Assets 
reversed

2,10,13,000  -   

13)  transfer from Contingent provision Against standard 
Assets

 -   8,94,93,000

 total 53,14,09,82,471 47,48,61,47,997
net profit after tax brought forward 5,18,24,51,130 5,02,98,51,416
1)  transfer from provision for public Charitable &  

Co -operative purpose 
3,51,63,000  -   

2) transfer from staff Welfare Fund 19,34,406  -   
 total 5,21,95,48,536 5,02,98,51,416

sd/-
A. A. patil 

Managing director
& Ceo

sd/-
K. V. Rangnekar

director

sd/-
S. V. Saudagar

director

sd/-
S. K. Banerji 

 Vice Chairman

sd/-
G. e. thakur

Chairman

Mumbai : April 29, 2025



Schedules forming part of Accounts

68 Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) Annual Report 2024-25

ScheduleS formIng part of accountS 
For tHe yeAr eNded MArCH 31, 2025
Schedule 1 - cApitAl

(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) Authorised capital :  10,00,00,00,000  10,00,00,00,000 
100,00,00,000 shares of rs. 10/- each
(previous year: 100,00,00,000 shares )
Subscribed capital :  3,20,17,51,960  3,14,30,83,400 
32,01,75,196 shares of rs. 10/- each
(previous year: 31,43,08,340 shares of rs. 10/- each)
Amount called up:  3,20,17,51,960  3,14,30,83,400 
32,01,75,196  shares of rs. 10/- each
(previous year: 31,43,08,340  shares of rs. 10/- each)
of the above held by :   
a) individuals*  3,20,17,51,960  3,14,30,83,400 
b) Co-operative institutions  -    -   
c)  state Government  -    -   

ii) preference Share capital  6,15,94,000  54,44,45,000 
61,59,400 preference shares of rs. 10/- each
(previous year: 5,44,44,500 preference shares of rs. 10/- each)
*under the item “individuals”  include shares held by the institutions other 
than co-operative institutions and state government are included as per 
the Banking regulation Act,1949.

total  3,26,33,45,960  3,68,75,28,400 

Schedule 2 - ReSeRVe fund & otheR ReSeRVeS
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) statutory reserve  12,79,92,37,609  11,46,81,93,120 
ii) Building Fund  2,52,90,93,933  2,52,90,93,933 
iii) dividend equalisation Fund  -    -   
iv) special Bad debts reserve  -    -   
v) Bad & doubtful debts reserve  8,38,80,73,156  9,61,71,31,227 
vi) Floating provision for Advances  1,25,00,00,000  1,25,00,00,000 
vii) investment Fluctuation reserve  5,00,35,00,710  4,50,35,00,710 
viii) other Funds and reserve:

a) restructured Assets reserve  10,65,03,000  12,75,16,000 
b) Contingency reserve  4,65,80,76,950  4,15,50,91,450 
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(Amount in rs.)
 current Year

31.03.2025
previous Year

31.03.2024
c) Contingent provision against standard Assets  1,68,97,00,000  1,52,27,46,000 
d) Members' Welfare Fund  15,91,63,666  13,91,63,666 
e) Net open Foreign Currency position reserve  2,00,00,000  2,00,00,000 
f) General reserve  7,72,66,17,652  5,93,27,45,978 
g) revaluation reserve  7,18,00,53,956  6,50,57,32,747 
h) special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of i.tax Act,1961  2,78,16,00,000  2,55,75,50,000 
i) provision for restructuring other loans  34,04,17,044  54,51,31,067 
j) provision for restructuring MsMe (Covid Framework)  12,86,84,416  21,93,84,123 
k) Contingent provision against depreciation in investments  -    32,75,754 
l) public Charitable & Co -operative Fund  21,19,84,979  19,68,49,431 
m) staff Welfare Fund  1,55,30,665  1,64,65,072 

total  54,98,82,37,736  51,30,95,70,278 

Schedule 3 - depoSitS & otheR AccountS
(Amount in rs.)

current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) fixed deposits :
a) individuals*  2,94,23,37,79,601  2,57,93,63,71,435 
b) Central Co-op. Banks  1,05,55,173  51,60,182 
c) other societies  1,14,05,17,64,213  88,10,52,12,532 

(i)  4,08,29,60,98,987  3,46,04,67,44,149 
ii) Savings Bank deposits :

a) individuals*  1,05,46,61,67,098  1,05,44,93,20,103 
b) Central Co-op. Banks  -    -   
c) other societies  7,00,50,10,681  7,76,20,68,195 

(ii)  1,12,47,11,77,779  1,13,21,13,88,298 
iii) current deposits :

a) individuals*  32,17,25,20,636  33,60,48,84,218 
b) Central Co-op.Banks  3,76,19,265  1,88,56,252 
c) other societies  1,83,52,70,865  1,69,12,55,424 

(iii)  34,04,54,10,766  35,31,49,95,894 
*under the item “individuals” deposits to institutions other than  
co-operative Banks and societies are included as per the Banking 
regulation Act,1949.

total (i+ii+iii) 5,54,81,26,87,532 4,94,57,31,28,341
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Schedule 4 - BoRRoWinGS
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) from the Reserve Bank of india / State / central co-op Bank  -    -   
a)  Short term loans, cash credits and overdrafts of which secured 

against -
 A) Government and other Approved securities
 B) other tangible securities
b) medium -term loans of which secured against-  -    -   
 A) Government and other approved securities
 B) other tangible securities
c) long term loans of which secured against-  -    -   
 A) Government and other approved securities
 B) other tangible securities

ii) From the state Bank of india
iii) From the state Government
iv) Loans from other sources (source and securities to be specified)

a) repo Borrowings  -    2,02,14,95,167 
b) repo Borrowing under treps (tripArty)  2,83,94,06,284  -   
c) Long term subordinated Bonds  19,47,79,00,000  16,24,57,25,000 

total  22,31,73,06,284  18,26,72,20,167 

Schedule 5 - otheR liABilitieS 
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) Bills payable     1,63,02,25,862  63,49,78,213 
ii) unclaimed dividend     27,45,38,868  25,50,05,684 
iii) provision  for  staff pension  47,20,45,081  45,70,90,345 
iv) discount received in advance on bills  3,10,84,324  4,29,83,056 
v) Credit balance in Bank Account  -    1,30,54,02,299 
vi) provision for staff Gratuity  2,74,26,415  5,18,01,684 
vii) provision for taxation  12,48,61,82,818  11,28,08,56,259 
viii) provision for Leave encashment  -    8,44,42,586 
ix) other payable  6,80,45,50,994  7,29,54,12,768

total  21,72,60,54,362  21,40,79,72,894 
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Schedule 6 - pRofit & loSS
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

profit as per last Balance sheet (a)  5,03,66,54,429  3,56,36,27,913 
Less : Appropriations of profit for the year 2023-24
 reserve Fund  1,25,74,63,000  87,92,38,500 
 dividend  52,22,50,000  41,16,35,000 
 dividend on preference shares  5,71,66,800  5,71,66,800 
 public Charitable & Co-operative purpose  5,02,98,550  3,51,69,550 
 provision for staff Welfare  10,00,000  10,00,000 
 Members' Welfare Fund  2,00,00,000  50,00,000 
 ex-gratia to employees  33,40,00,000  34,10,00,000 
 education fund  5,02,98,550  3,51,69,550 
 Contingency reserve  50,29,85,500  35,16,95,500 
 investment Fluctuation  reserve  50,00,00,000  50,00,00,000 
 special reserve  22,40,50,000  29,47,50,000 
 General  reserve  1,50,00,00,000  64,50,00,000 
 Co-operative rehabilitation, reconstruction and development Fund  1,00,00,000  -   

 (b)  5,02,95,12,400  3,55,68,24,900 
 (a)-(b)  71,42,029  68,03,013 

 Add : profit for the year as per profit & Loss Account  5,21,95,48,536  5,02,98,51,416 
total  5,22,66,90,565  5,03,66,54,429 

Schedule 7 - cASh 
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) Cash in hand  2,31,12,05,130  2,42,96,10,259 
ii) Cash with reserve Bank of india  21,66,21,66,007  21,90,59,74,361 
iii) Cash with state Bank of india  2,29,05,503  1,89,21,894 
iv) Cash with state Co-operative Banks  49,704  47,704 
v) Cash with Central Co-operative Banks  10,07,82,234  12,45,18,687 

total  24,09,71,08,578 24,47,90,72,905 



Schedules forming part of Accounts

72 Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) Annual Report 2024-25

Schedule 8 - BAlAnce With otheR BAnKS
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) Current deposits
  (including rs. 42.36 crore with Banks in Foreign Countries. (previous year:  

rs. 22.56 crore))

 3,67,20,61,685  3,97,23,87,337 

ii) savings Bank deposits  -    -   
iii) Fixed  deposits 
  (including rs. 32.57 crore pledged for securing funded/non-funded facilities 

and  treasury operations (p.y. rs. 33.02 crore))

 47,03,19,06,776  21,48,29,63,284 

total  50,70,39,68,461  25,45,53,50,621 

Schedule 9 - inVeStmentS
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) a) in central and State Government Securities (at book value)  1,25,23,89,00,736  1,29,17,22,04,635 
 Face Value - rs. 12469.81 crore (previous year rs. 12873.54 crore)    
 Market Value - rs. 12498.16 crore (previous year rs. 12577.81 crore)
  (including rs. 3620.93 crore pledged for treasury operations  

(p.y. rs. 2196.80 crore))
b)  Reserve fund investments
 in Central / state Govt. securities  12,79,97,69,384  11,46,86,80,373 
 Face Value - rs. 1283.50 crore (previous year rs. 1149.94 crore)
 Market Value - rs. 1255.52 crore (previous year rs. 1086.55 crore)
c) members’ Welfare fund investments
 in Central / state Govt. securities  15,93,99,590  13,93,96,532 
 Face Value - rs. 15.98 crore (previous year rs. 13.98 crore)
 Market Value - rs. 16.09 crore (previous year rs. 13.93 crore)

ii) other trustee securities  -    -   
iii) shares in Co-operative institutions (other than item (v) below)  22,58,518  22,58,518 
iv) Bonds  issued by public sector units  1,25,00,00,000  1,99,63,80,500 
v) other investments:

Bonds  issued by public sector Banks  60,00,00,000  60,00,00,000 
Bonds  issued by other institutions  5,33,26,87,500  2,73,78,32,750 
Bonds of All india Financial institutions  18,10,88,97,238  14,75,88,53,625 
shares of  Limited Company  15,30,04,306  15,30,04,306 
Certificate of deposit  11,19,95,23,327  15,67,51,60,167 
Commercial paper  2,18,61,15,544  1,18,12,77,440 

total  1,77,03,05,56,143  1,77,88,50,48,846 
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Schedule 10 - AdVAnceS
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) Short term loans, cash credit,
overdrafts & Bills discounted
i. of which secured against :
 a) Government & other approved securities  84,25,482  6,46,16,903 
 b) other tangible securities  1,30,64,06,29,981  1,21,78,22,18,020 
ii. personal Advances  1,91,48,14,335  2,17,94,51,873 

(i)  1,32,56,38,69,798  1,24,02,62,86,796 
of the Advances, amount due from individuals*  1,29,44,25,46,960  1,21,37,63,29,521 
of the Advances, amount overdue  65,26,80,189  1,09,75,31,003 
Considered Bad & doubtful of recovery  2,99,81,05,386  3,88,19,65,896 

ii) medium term Advances
i. of which secured against :
 a) Government & other approved securities  -    25,75,306 

 b) other tangible securities  38,42,57,25,182  36,28,93,20,257 
ii. personal Advances  54,20,30,102  1,06,84,61,708 

(ii)  38,96,77,55,284 37,36,03,57,271
of the Advances, amount due from individuals*  38,96,55,39,404  37,35,52,35,641 
of the Advances, amount overdue  9,40,53,724  13,33,33,770 
Considered Bad & doubtful of recovery  2,09,94,75,245  2,18,30,00,747 

iii) long term Advances
i. of which secured against :
 a) Government & other approved securities  -    71,36,669 
 b) other tangible securities  1,91,59,10,83,460  1,64,08,31,05,375 
ii. personal Advances  20,53,12,935  19,77,55,717 

(iii)  1,91,79,63,96,395  1,64,28,79,97,761 
of the Advances, amount due from individuals*  1,91,59,65,91,413  1,64,27,10,11,505 
of the Advances, amount overdue  27,77,58,124  41,04,25,017 
Considered Bad & doubtful of recovery  3,08,93,42,609  3,30,98,83,619 
*under the item “individuals” advances to institutions other than co-
operative Banks and societies are included as per the Banking regulation 
Act,1949.

total (i+ii+iii) 3,63,32,80,21,477 3,25,67,46,41,828
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Schedule 11 - fiXed ASSetS
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) pRemiSeS 
i) leASehold lAnd

Cost as at the beginning of the year  23,97,07,297  23,97,07,297 
Add : revaluation  4,20,27,143 

(a)  28,17,34,440  23,97,07,297 
less: Amortisation
Amortisation upto last year  (1,55,53,364)  (1,20,05,916)
Amortisation  for current year  (2,06,922)  (2,06,922)
Amortisation  on revalued Amount  (41,77,907)  (33,40,526)

(b)  (1,99,38,193)  (1,55,53,364)
total (a-b)  26,17,96,247  22,41,53,933 

ii) pRemiSeS (including freehold land)
Cost as at the beginning of the year  10,82,99,53,542  11,05,89,09,765 
Add: revaluation  89,70,48,380  -   
Add : Additions during the year  4,49,32,312  4,84,600 
Less: sales/Adjustment during the year  (4,02,46,418)  (22,94,40,824)

(a)  11,73,16,87,816  10,82,99,53,541 
less: depreciation
depreciation upto last year  (3,08,05,53,955)  (2,85,08,59,073)
depreciation for current year  (3,91,13,107)  (3,97,30,714)
depreciation on revalued Amount  (24,63,54,441)  (22,14,48,147)
depreciation on sales/Adjustment  25,47,581  3,14,83,978 

(b)  (3,36,34,73,922)  (3,08,05,53,956)
Add: premises under Redevelopment (c)  2,70,93,721  2,37,91,301 

total (a-b+c)  8,39,53,07,615  7,77,31,90,885 
iii) leASehold impRoVement 

Cost as at the begining of the year  9,16,79,632  7,14,29,313 
Add : Additions during the year  3,72,28,668  2,02,50,319 

(a)  12,89,08,300  9,16,79,632 
less: Amortisation
Amortisation upto last year  (6,35,74,735)  (5,77,54,055)
Amortisation for current year  (74,88,889)  (58,20,680)

(b)  (7,10,63,624)  (6,35,74,735)
total (a-b)  5,78,44,676  2,81,04,897 

ii) fuRnituRe & fiXtuRe
Cost as at the beginning of the year  74,95,41,100  71,52,53,246 
Add: Additions during the year  5,77,18,032  4,67,93,211 
Less : sold during the year (1,66,28,376) (1,25,05,357)

(a) 79,06,30,756 74,95,41,100 
Less : depreciation upto last year  (65,34,50,681)  (62,75,02,150)
depreciation for current period  (4,07,46,660)  (3,76,38,038)

                depreciation on sales  1,57,06,942  1,16,89,507 
(b)  (67,84,90,399)  (65,34,50,681)

total (a-b)  11,21,40,357  9,60,90,419 
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(Amount in rs.)
 current Year

31.03.2025
previous Year

31.03.2024
iii) otheR ASSetS

i)  plAnt & mAchineRY
 Cost as at the beginning of the year  52,91,68,146  49,97,93,820 
 Add: Additions during the year  7,04,09,332  4,72,33,105 
 Less : sold during the year  (2,42,11,097)  (1,78,58,779)

(a)  57,53,66,381  52,91,68,146 
 Less : depreciation upto last year  (43,01,96,022)  (40,77,43,971)
 depreciation for current year  (4,31,53,369)  (3,94,15,095)
 depreciation on sales  2,32,46,038  1,69,63,044 

(b)  (45,01,03,353)  (43,01,96,022)
total (a-b)  12,52,63,028  9,89,72,124 

ii)  computeRS 
 Cost as at the beginning of the year  1,15,13,60,987  1,02,54,97,687 
 Add: Additions during the year  22,24,14,408  14,00,85,624 
 Less : sold during the year/Adjustments  (11,56,05,107)  (1,42,22,324)

(a)  1,25,81,70,288  1,15,13,60,987 
 Less : depreciation upto last year  (92,66,10,054)  (77,30,30,530)
 depreciation for current year  (18,18,40,541)  (16,78,00,763)
 depreciation on sales-Adjustments  11,55,93,594  1,42,21,239 

(b)  (99,28,57,001)  (92,66,10,054)
total (a-b)  26,53,13,287  22,47,50,933 

iii) motoR cARS 
 Cost as at the beginning of the year  10,95,04,174  11,02,54,986 
 Add  : Additions during the year  19,26,518  -   
 Less : sold during the year  (11,16,726)  (7,50,812)

(a)  11,03,13,966  10,95,04,174 
 Less : depreciation upto last year  (9,66,28,335)  (9,17,72,644)
 depreciation for current year  (41,28,244)  (55,18,169)
 depreciation on sales  10,38,553  6,62,478 

(b)  (9,97,18,026)  (9,66,28,335)
total (a-b)  1,05,95,940  1,28,75,839 

iV) cApitAl WoRK-in-pRoGReSS (pRemiSeS)  93,90,88,454  93,57,48,766 
Grand total (i to iV)  10,16,73,49,604  9,39,38,87,796 
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Schedule 12 - otheR ASSetS
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) deposit for services  49,08,76,206  41,61,02,584 
ii) rent receivable  5,11,087  4,93,369 
iii) rent on Lockers in Arrears  48,84,700  32,47,020 
iv) stamps on Hand  7,45,802  16,80,098 
v) prepaid expenses  17,45,97,131  13,88,23,168 
vi) deferred tax Asset  1,44,91,44,944  1,99,85,54,407 
vii) income tax paid  12,77,57,80,648  11,46,53,59,874 
viii) Margin on Guarantee Fund (CCiL)  43,06,25,000  42,44,15,000 
ix) other dues  3,89,29,88,920  4,36,77,00,438 

total  19,22,01,54,437 18,81,63,75,958 

Schedule 13 - computeR SoftWARe
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) SoftWARe
 Cost as at the beginning of the year  1,67,65,51,885  1,36,87,54,550 
 Add  : Additions during the year  38,78,46,172  32,91,79,971 
 Less : deduction during the year  (13,37,117)  (2,13,82,636)

(a)  2,06,30,60,940  1,67,65,51,885 
 Less : Amortization upto last year  (1,10,07,27,296)  (79,28,65,945)
 Amortization for current year  (34,05,52,132)  (32,73,36,324)
 deduction during the year  3,64,669  1,94,74,968 

(b)  (1,44,09,14,759)  (1,10,07,27,301)
total (a-b)  62,21,46,181  57,58,24,587 

ii) cApitAl WoRK-in-pRoGReSS (SoftWARe)  12,71,34,156  10,59,56,686 
Grand total (i & ii)  74,92,80,337  68,17,81,273 

Schedule 14 - continGent liABilitieS
(Amount in rs.)

 current Year
31.03.2025

previous Year
31.03.2024

i) Letters  of Credit  8,53,03,87,534  6,83,02,92,356 
ii) Guarantees  6,79,98,25,958  6,64,77,56,196 
iii) Forward sale/purchase Contracts 40,18,61,48,416  28,14,55,39,607 
iv) unclaimed Liabilities under deAF scheme 1,84,99,51,555  1,71,21,86,839 

total 57,36,63,13,463  43,33,57,74,998 
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i. overview:

 1. Background:

  saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd was 
incorporated in 1918 and provides a complete 
suite of banking and financial services 
including retail banking, wholesale banking 
and treasury operations. the Bank is primarily 
governed by the Banking regulation Act, 
1949 as amended from time to time and the 
Multistate Co-operative societies Act, 2002 as 
amended from time to time and rules made 
thereunder.

 2. Basis of preparation:

  the financial statements have been 
prepared and presented under the historical 
cost convention on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with the generally 
accepted accounting principles in india, 
unless otherwise stated,  and comply with 
the statutory requirements prescribed 
under the Banking regulation Act,1949 as 
amended from time to time, the Multi state 
Co-operative societies Act, 2002 as amended 
from time to time and rules made thereunder, 
the circulars, notifications, guidelines and 
directives issued by the reserve Bank of 
india from time to time and the Accounting 
standards (As) issued by the institute of 
Chartered Accountants of india (iCAi) and 
current practices prevalent within the banking 
industry in india. Accounting policies applied 
have been consistent with the previous year 
except otherwise stated.

 3. use of estimates:

  the preparation of the financial statements 
in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles in india requires 
the Management to make estimates and 

noteS formIng part oF tHe BALANCe sHeet 
AS At mARch 31, 2025 And pRofit And loSS Account foR the YeAR ended mARch 31, 2025.

assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements, revenues, and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
the Management believes that the estimates 
used in the preparation of the financial 
statements are prudent and reasonable. Any 
revisions to the accounting estimates are 
recognized prospectively in the current and 
future periods.

ii. Significant Accounting policies:

 1. Accounting convention:

  the financial statements are drawn in 
accordance with the historical cost 
convention (as modified by revaluation of 
premises) and on “Going Concern” basis.

 2. foreign currency transactions:

  2.1 All outstanding forward and spot 
exchange contracts  are marked to 
market on a daily basis at exchange 
rates published by M/s. refinitiv and at 
FedAi notified rates for month-end. the 
exchange differences on all outstanding 
forward and spot exchange contracts 
including forward exchange contract 
which is not intended for trading or 
speculation purposes are recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss in the 
reporting period in which the exchange 
rates change. Any profit or loss arising 
on cancellation or renewal of such a 
forward exchange contract is recognized 
as income or as expense for the period. 
the premium or discount arising at the 
inception of such a forward exchange 
contract is amortised as expense or 
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income over the life of the contract. All 
outstanding forward exchange contracts 
including spot contracts are marked-to-
market (MtM) on daily basis at present 
Value (pV) by discounting the forward 
value till spot date and converting the 
foreign currency amount using the 
respective spot rate as published by M/s. 
refinitiv on a daily basis and spot rates 
notified by Foreign exchange dealers’ 
Association of india (FedAi) at month-
end. MtM gain/loss is accounted for 
appropriately in the profit & Loss account.

  2.2 Contingent Liabilities on account of 
forward exchange contracts, guarantees, 
acceptances, endorsements, and other 
obligations denominated in foreign 
currencies are disclosed at closing 
exchange rates published by M/s. 
refinitiv on daily basis and FedAi notified 
rates at month-end.

  2.3 the Bank has no branches outside india.

 3. investments:

  3.1 Categorization of investments:

   in accordance with guidelines issued by 
rBi, the Bank classifies its investment 
portfolio into the following three 
categories:

   i) ‘Held to Maturity’ - securities acquired 
by the Bank with the intention to hold 
till maturity.

   ii) ‘Held for trading’ - securities acquired 
by the Bank with the intention to trade.

   iii) ‘Available for sale’ – securities which 
do not fall within the above two 
categories are classified as ‘Available 
for sale’.

  3.2 Classification of investments:

   For the purpose of disclosure in the 
Balance sheet, investments are classified 
as required under the Banking regulation 

Act, 1949 and rBi guidelines as follows:

   Government securities, other Approved 
securities, shares of co-operative 
institutions, shares of limited companies, 
psu Bonds, Bonds of All india Financial 
institutions, security receipts and other 
investments.

  3.3 shifting of investments between 
categories:

   shifting of investments between different 
categories i.e., Held to Maturity, Held 
for trading and Available for sale is 
undertaken as per extant rBi guidelines. 
such transfer is done at the acquisition 
cost / book-value / market-value on 
the date of transfer, as per para no. 8 of 
Master direction – reserve Bank of india 
(Classification, Valuation and operation 
of investment portfolio of primary 
(urban) Co-operative Banks) directions, 
2023 dated 1st April 2023.

  3.4 Valuation of investments:

   (i) ‘Held to Maturity’ – these investments 
are carried at their acquisition cost 
less amortization. Any premium on 
acquisition is amortised over the 
period remaining to maturity.

   (ii) ‘Held for trading’ – the individual 
scrip in the HFt category is marked to 
market at monthly intervals or at more 
frequent intervals. the net resultant 
depreciation in each classification 
(as mentioned in para 3.2 above) 
is recognized in the profit and Loss 
Account. Net appreciation, if any, is 
ignored.

   (iii) ‘Available for sale’ – the individual 
scrip in the AFs category is marked 
to market at quarterly or at more 
frequent intervals. the net resultant 
depreciation in each classification 
(as mentioned in para 3.2 above) 
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is recognized in the profit and Loss 
Account. Net appreciation, if any, is 
ignored.

   (iv) Market value of Government 
securities (excluding treasury Bills) 
is determined based on the prices 
periodically declared by FBiL for 
valuation at year-end. in case of 
unquoted Government securities, 
market price or fair value is 
determined as per the rates published 
by FBiL.

   (v) Market value of other approved 
securities is determined based on the 
yield curve and spreads provided by 
FBiL / FiMMdA.

   (vi) urban Co-operative banks are 
prohibited from direct investment in 
equity shares. As regards, investment 
in shares of co-operative institutions, 
Bank is guided by the rBi Master 
direction – reserve Bank of india 
(Classification, Valuation and 
operation of investment portfolio of 
primary (urban) Co-operative Banks) 
directions, 2023 dated 1st April 2023.

   (vii) urban Co-operative Banks shall have 
the option to invest in equity shares 
of Market infrastructure Companies 
(MiCs) for acquiring memberships. 
the MiCs eligible for investments 
by uCBs are Clearing Corporation 
of india Ltd., National payments 
Corporation of india, society for 
Worldwide interbank Financial 
telecommunication (sWiFt) and 
in the equity shares of umbrella 
organization of uCB sector for 
acquiring membership.  these are 
valued at cost.

   (viii)  treasury Bills, Certificate of deposit 
& Commercial papers being 
discounted instruments, are valued 

at carrying cost which includes 
discount accrued over the period to 
maturity.

   (ix) in case of bonds & debentures where 
interest is not received regularly 
(i.e., overdue beyond 90 days), the 
valuation is in accordance with 
prudential norms as prescribed by 
rBi.

   (x) investments in quoted debt/money 
market Mutual Fund units are valued 
as per stock exchange quotations. 
investments in unquoted Mutual 
Fund units are valued on the basis of 
the latest re-purchase price declared 
by the Mutual Funds in respect of 
each particular scheme. in case of 
funds with a lock-in period, or where 
repurchase price/market quote is 
not available, units could be valued 
at Net Asset Value (NAV). if NAV is 
not available, then these could be 
valued at cost, till the end of the lock-
in period.

   (xi) security receipts –

    a) investment in security receipts 
(srs) are valued as per the 
NAV declared by the issuing 
Asset reconstruction Company 
(ArC) or net book value of loans 
transferred, whichever is lower.

    b) Further, in case of investment 
in srs issued against loans 
transferred by  the Bank  is more 
than 10 percent of all srs issued 
against the transferred asset, 
then the valuation of the srs in 
the books of the Bank  is lower of 
the following:

     1. value arrived at in terms of 
clause (xi) a) above; and

     2. face value of the srs reduced 
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by the notional provisioning 
rate applicable if the loans 
had continued on the books 
of the Bank.

   (xii) the Broken period interest on 
Government securities and approved 
securities is accounted for on accrual 
basis. Brokerage, commission, etc. 
pertaining to investments paid at the 
time of acquisition is charged to p&L 
Account.

   (xiii) interest on non-performing investments 
is not recognized in the profit and 
Loss Account until received.

  3.5 disposal of investments:

   investments classified under the HtM 
category: the Bank does not resort to sale 
of securities held in HtM category as per 
Master direction – reserve Bank of india 
(Classification, Valuation and operation 
of investment portfolio of primary 
(urban) Co-operative Banks) directions, 
2023 dated 1st April 2023. However, if due 
to liquidity stress, if securities from HtM 
portfolio are sold with prior approval of the 
Board of directors on a specific rationale, 
profit on sale of investments from HtM 
category is first taken to the profit and 
Loss account and, thereafter, the amount 
of such profit is appropriated to ‘Capital 
reserve’ from the net profit for the year 
after statutory appropriations. Loss on 
sale is recognized in the profit and Loss 
account in the year of sale.

   investments classified under the AFs and 
HFt categories: realized gains/losses 
are recognized in the profit and Loss 
Account

  3.6 Accounting for repo/ reverse repo 
transactions (including transactions 
under the Liquidity Adjustment Facility 
(LAF) / standing deposit Facility with the 
rBi):

   the securities sold and purchased under 
repo/ reverse repo are accounted as 
Collateralized Borrowing and Lending 
transactions. However, securities are 
transferred as in the case of normal 
outright sale/ purchase transactions and 
such movement of securities is reflected 
using the repo/ reverse repo accounts 
and contra entries. the above entries 
are reversed on the date of maturity of 
repo/ reverse repo transactions. Costs 
and revenue are accounted as interest 
expenditure/income. Balance in repo 
account is classified under schedule 
4 (Borrowings) and balance in reverse 
repo account is classified under Money at 
Call & short Notice. Liquidity Adjustment 
Facility (LAF) / standing deposit Facility 
transactions are accounted for as per rBi 
guidelines.

 4.  provisioning for Advances and overdue 
interest Reserve:

  4.1 the classification of advances into 
standard, sub-standard, doubtful and 
Loss assets as well as provision on non-
performing advances has been arrived at 
in accordance with the guidelines issued 
by rBi from time to time. in addition to this, 
a general provision on standard assets is 
made @ 0.40% of the outstanding amount 
on a portfolio basis except in case of 
direct advances to Agricultural and sMe 
sector @ 0.25%, advances to Commercial 
real estate @ 1% and Commercial real 
estate- residential House sector @ 
0.75%.

   in respect of restructured advances, 
including advances restructured 
under the CoVid regulatory package, 
adequate provisioning has been made 
in accordance with the rBi guidelines 
issued from time to time.
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  4.2 the overdue interest in respect of non-
performing advances is shown separately 
under “overdue interest reserve” as per 
the directives issued by rBi.

  4.3 As a prudent measure, the Bank shall set 
aside an amount by way of additional 
provision towards standard Assets to 
provide for unforeseen circumstances 
which might result in a standard 
Asset turning into NpA. this additional 
provision shall be in the range of 10% 
to 50% of the recovery in the bad debts 
written off account received above rs. 50 
crore during the year in a single advance 
account. this additional provision may 
be utilized towards any provisioning 
requirement for standard assets in future.

  4.4 Floating provision for Advances:

   the Bank shall create a Floating 
provision to increase resilience to 
withstand any kind of stress on the asset 
book of the Bank and also to mitigate 
the impact of provisioning requirements 
for contingencies under extraordinary 
circumstances, i.e., losses which do not 
arise in the normal course of business 
and are exceptional and non-recurring in 
nature.

   Floating provision shall be created if the 
net profit before tax but after making 
mandatory provisions and adhoc 
provisions, to reach net NpA percentage 
zero; and such arrived net profit before 
tax should be more than 50% over the 
comparable previous year’s figure.

   the maximum limit of Floating provisions 
to be created in any year not to exceed 
50% of the Net profit before tax for that 
year.

   the usage of the Floating provision for 
advances will be subject to approval of the 
Board of directors and the reserve Bank 
of india after the complete utilization of 
the adhoc provision for Bddr.

 5.  net profit or loss for the period, prior period 
items and changes in Accounting policies 
(AS 5):

  the net profit or loss for the period comprises 
the following components, each of which is 
disclosed on the face of the profit and loss 
account statement:

  (a) profit or loss from ordinary activities; and

  (b) extraordinary items.

  extraordinary items

  extraordinary items are disclosed in the profit 
and loss account statement as a part of net 
profit or loss for the period. the nature and 
the amount of each extraordinary item is 
separately disclosed in the notes to profit 
and loss account statement in a manner that 
its impact on current profit or loss can be 
perceived.

  prior period items

  the nature and amount of prior period items 
is separately disclosed in the profit and loss 
account statement in a manner that their 
impact on the current profit or loss can be 
perceived.

  Changes in Accounting estimates

  As a result of the uncertainties inherent in 
business activities, many financial statement 
items cannot be measured with precision 
but can only be estimated. the estimation 
process involves judgments based on the 
latest information available. estimates may 
be required, for example, of bad debts or the 
useful lives of depreciable assets. the use of 
reasonable estimates is an essential part of 
the preparation of financial statements and 
does not undermine their reliability.

  Changes in Accounting policies:

  Any change in an accounting policy which has 
a material effect is disclosed in the Notes to 
accounts. the impact of, and the adjustments 
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resulting from, such change, if material, have 
been disclosed in the financial statements of 
the period in which such change is made, to 
reflect the effect of such change. Where the 
effect of such change is not ascertainable, 
wholly or in part, the fact is appropriately 
indicated in the notes to accounts. if a 
change is made in the accounting policies 
which has no material effect on the financial 
statements for the current period, but which is 
reasonably expected to have a material effect 
in later periods, the fact of such change is 
appropriately disclosed in the period in which 
the change is adopted.

 6. Revenue Recognition (AS 9):

  6.1 interest income is recognized on an 
accrual basis in accordance with As–9, 
revenue recognition and rBi guidelines, 
except in case of interest income on non-
performing assets which is recognized on 
receipt basis as per income recognition 
and asset classification norms of rBi.

  6.2 Commission on guarantees and Letter of 
Credits (LCs) is recognized on a pro-rata 
basis over the period of the guarantee/LC.

  6.3 Locker rent is accounted on an upfront 
basis at annual rests.

  6.4 Annual fees on credit and debit cards are 
recognized as and when due from the 
customers.

  6.5 interest on Government securities, 
debentures and other fixed income 
securities   is recognized on an accrual 
basis. income on discounted instruments 
is recognised over the tenor of the 
instrument on a straight-line basis.

  6.6 other fees and commission income are 
recognized when due, where the Bank is 
reasonably certain of ultimate collection.

  6.7 dividend income is recognized on an 
accrual basis provided the dividend has 

been declared by the Corporate Body in its 
Annual General Meeting and the owner’s 
right to receive payment is established.

  6.8 exchange income is recognized on 
realization.

  6.9 income from distribution of insurance 
products is recognised on the basis of 
income received.

 7. Reward points

  the Bank grants reward points in respect of 
credit cards subject to certain conditions. 
the Bank estimates the probable redemption 
of such loyalty/reward points on credit cards 
based on historical study of the loyalty points 
redemption data. provision for the said reward 
points is then made based on this study.

 8. property, plant and equipment (AS 10):

  8.1 Computers, Furniture & Fixtures, plant 
& Machinery, Leasehold improvement, 
and Motor Cars are stated at cost less 
depreciation.

   premises (including Freehold Land): 
these are stated at the revalued amounts 
less depreciation.

   Leasehold land is stated at revalued 
amounts less amortization over the lease 
period.

  8.2 the Bank has framed its own policy for 
the revaluation of immovable properties, 
which is duly approved by its Board of 
directors. revaluations are carried out 
by obtaining expert valuation reports by 
using applicable methods of valuation at 
frequencies stipulated in the policy.

   the increase in Net Book Value of the 
asset due to revaluation is credited to 
the revaluation reserve Account without 
routing through the profit and Loss 
Account.
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   However, the increase is recognized in the 
profit and loss account to the extent that 
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the 
same asset previously recognized in the 
profit and loss account.

   Conversely, a decrease in the carrying 
amount of an asset arising on revaluation 
is charged to the profit & loss account. 
However, the decrease, if any, is debited 
directly to the revaluation reserve to the 
extent of any credit balance existing in 
the revaluation surplus in respect of that 
asset.

   depreciation on the revalued asset is 
charged to the profit and Loss account 
and an amount equivalent to the amount 
of depreciation on the revaluation is 
appropriated from the revaluation 
reserve to the General reserve.

  8.3 Cost includes incidental expenses 
incurred on acquisition of assets.

  8.4 depreciation rates:

   (i) plant & Machinery, Furniture & Fixtures 
and Motor Cars are depreciated on 
written down value method @ 30% 
p.a.

   (ii) premises (excluding Freehold Land) 
will be depreciated on straight 
line method based on useful 
life of the asset (useful life – 60 
years). revalued premises will be 
depreciated on straight line method 
over the residual / estimated life of 
the assets as assessed at the time of 
revaluation.

   (iii) Lease improvement costs are 
amortized over the period of lease.

   (iv) Leasehold Land is amortized over the 
period of lease.

   (v)  Computers are depreciated on 
straight line method @ 33.33%.

  8.5 depreciation on fixed assets purchased 
during the year is charged for the entire 
year if 180 days or more have elapsed 
since its purchase; otherwise, it is charged 
at 50% of the normal rate. No depreciation 
is charged on fixed assets sold or written 
off during the year.

  8.6 the additions to the Fixed Assets are 
net of Gst input tax Credit to the extent 
availed by the Bank.

 9. deposit for Services:

  the deposit for services like telephone, 
electricity, etc. paid to the concerned 
authorities is written off as expenditure in the 
year in which the relevant service connection 
is installed.

 10. employee Benefits (AS 15):

  10.1 Gratuity:

   the Bank provides gratuity to all 
employees. the benefit vests upon 
completion of five years of service and 
is in the form of lump sum payment to 
employees on resignation, retirement, 
death while in employment or on 
termination of employment, an amount 
equivalent to 15 days salary plus eligible 
allowances payable for each completed 
year of service, as per the payment of 
Gratuity Act, 1972. the Bank makes 
contributions to funds administered by 
trustees and managed by  Life insurance 
Corporation  of india.

   the defined gratuity benefit plans are 
valued by an independent actuary as 
at the Balance sheet date, using the 
projected unit credit method as per 
the requirement of As-15 “employee 
Benefits”, to determine the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation and the 
related service costs. under this method, 
the determination is based on actuarial 
calculations, which include assumptions 
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about demographics, early retirement, 
salary increases and interest rates. 
Actuarial gain or loss is recognized in the 
profit and loss account statement.

  10.2 provident fund:

   in accordance with law, all the employees 
of the Bank are entitled to receive 
benefits under the provident fund. every 
employee contributes an amount, on a 
monthly basis, at a determined rate. the 
Bank contributes an equal amount. this 
amount is transferred to the provident 
Fund account managed by the employees’ 
provident Fund trust.

   in the case of merged banks i.e., 
erstwhile Maratha Mandir Co-op. Bank 
Ltd., erstwhile Mandvi Co-op. Bank Ltd., 
erstwhile south indian Co-op. Bank 
Ltd., erstwhile Nashik peoples Co-op. 
Bank Ltd., erstwhile Annasaheb Karale 
Janata sahakari Bank Ltd., erstwhile 
Murgharajendra sahakari Bank Ltd., and 
erstwhile Kolhapur Maratha Co-op. Bank 
Ltd, the provident Fund contribution of 
employees of these merged banks and 
the employer’s contribution is transferred  
to the regional provident Fund 
Commissioner (rpFC) Bandra, Mumbai. 
Further pF contribution (employee and 
employer Both) of new recruits from 1st 
April-2024 is transferred to rpFC, Bandra.

   the Bank’s contribution to provident 
Fund is accounted for on the basis of 
contribution to the scheme.

  10.3 Leave encashment:

   in respect of leave encashment liability, 
the Bank has obtained insurance 
policies with four different insurance 
companies. the shortfall, if any between 
projected benefit obligation and the 
fair value of plan assets is provided for 
and recognized as expense in the profit 
and Loss Account. the liability of leave 

encashment is provided on the basis 
of actuarial valuation as at the Balance 
sheet date and considered as defined 
benefit scheme. the actuarial valuation 
is carried out as per projected unit credit 
method.

  10.4 pension:

   the liability towards staff pension is 
provided based on the actuarial valuation 
as at the Balance sheet date and 
considered as defined benefit scheme. 
the actuarial valuation is carried out as 
per projected unit credit method.

 11. Segment Reporting (AS 17):

  the Bank recognizes the Business segment 
as the primary reporting segment and 
Geographical segment as the secondary 
reporting segment, in accordance with rBi 
guidelines and in compliance with As 17.

  Business segment is classified into  
(a) treasury (b) Corporate and Wholesale 
Banking, (c) retail Banking and (d) other 
Banking operations.

  Geographic segments: the Bank operates 
only in india and hence the reporting consists 
only of domestic segment.

 12. Related party disclosures (AS 18):

  there are no related parties which require 
disclosure under As 18 other than the Key 
Management personnel.

 13. operating leases (AS 19):

  Lease rental obligations in respect of assets 
taken on operating lease are charged to profit 
and Loss Account on straight-line basis over 
the lease term.

 14. earnings per Share (AS 20):

  Basic earnings per share is computed by 
dividing the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year.
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 15. income-tax (AS 22):

  15.1  income tax expense is the aggregate 
amount of current tax liability and 
deferred tax recognized in the profit & 
loss account. Current year taxes are 
determined in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of income tax Act, 
1961 and considering the principles 
set out in income Computation and 
disclosure standards (‘iCds’) to the 
extent applicable.

  15.2  deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
recognized, subject to consideration 
of prudence, on timing difference, 
representing the difference between 
taxable income and accounting income 
that originated in one period and is 
capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods. deferred tax 
assets and Liabilities are measured 
using tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantially enacted 
by the Balance sheet date. the impact 
of changes in the deferred tax assets 
and liabilities is recognized in the profit 
and Loss Account. deferred tax assets 
are recognized and re-assessed at 
each reporting date, based upon the 
Management’s judgement as to whether 
realization is considered as reasonably 
certain.

  15.3  deferred tax assets are recognized 
on carry forward of unabsorbed 
depreciation and tax losses only if 
there is virtual certainty supported by 
convincing evidence that such deferred 
tax asset can be realized against future 
profits.

 16. intangible Assets (AS 26):

  intangible assets consist of acquisition, 
development, amendments / modifications / 
customization in software applications, tools 

developed by the Bank. the Bank follows 
the principle of recognition and amortization 
in respect of computer software which has 
been customized for the Bank’s use and is 
expected to be in use for some time as per 
the Accounting standard. Computer software 
is amortized over the licence period where 
defined. All other computer softwares are 
amortized equally over the period of three 
years.

  the computer software purchased during the 
year is amortized  for the entire year if 180 
days or more have elapsed since its purchase; 
otherwise, it is charged at 50% of the normal 
amortization.

 17. impairment of Assets (AS 28):

  the Bank assesses at each Balance sheet 
date whether there is any indication that an 
asset may be impaired. impairment loss, if 
any, is recognized in the statement of profit 
& Loss to the extent, the carrying amount 
of asset exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount.

 18.  provisions, contingent liabilities and 
contingent Assets (AS 29):

  A provision is recognized when the Bank 
has a present obligation as a result of past 
event where it is probable that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation, in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made. provisions are not 
discounted to its present value and are 
determined based on best estimate required 
to settle the obligation on the Balance sheet 
date. these are reviewed at each Balance 
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates.

  When there is a possible or present obligation 
in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of 
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure 
is made.
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  Contingent Assets are not recognized in the 
financial statements. However, contingent 
assets are assessed continually and if it is 
virtually certain that an inflow of economic 
benefits will arise, the asset and related 
income are recognized in the period in which 
the change occurs.

  Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when 
there is a possible obligation arising from 
a past event, the existence of which will be 
confirmed by occurrence or non-occurrence 

of one or more uncertain future events not 
within the control of the Bank or any present 
obligation arising from past event which is 
not recognized since it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the 
amount of such obligation cannot be made.

iii. notes to Accounts:

 disclosures as per reserve Bank of india’s Master 
direction on Financial statements- presentation 
and disclosures:

1. Regulatory capital

 1.1 composition of Regulatory capital: 

 (Rs. in crore)
Sr 
no.

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

i) paid up share capital and reserves. (net of deductions, if any) 3,890.51 3,414.08
ii) other tier 1 Capital 0.00 0.00
iii) tier 1 capital (i + ii) 3,890.51 3,414.08
iv) tier 2 capital 2,257.46 1,936.25
v) total capital (tier 1+ tier 2) 6,147.97 5,350.33
vi) total risk Weighted Assets (rWAs) 35,267.34 30,959.92
vii) paid-up share capital and reserves as percentage of rWAs 11.03% 11.03%
viii) tier 1 ratio (tier 1 capital as a percentage of rWAs) 11.03% 11.03%
ix) tier 2 ratio (tier 2 capital as a percentage of rWAs) 6.40% 6.25%
x) Capital to risk Weighted Assets ratio (CrAr) 

(total Capital as a percentage of rWAs)
17.43% 17.28%

xi) percentage of the shareholding of Government of india Nil Nil
xii) Amount of paid-up equity capital raised during the year 13.29 31.75
xiii) Amount of non-equity tier 1 Capital raised during the year, of which:

perpetual non-cumulative preference shares Nil Nil
perpetual debt instrument Nil Nil

xiv) Amount of tier 2 capital raised during the year, of which:
perpetual non-cumulative preference shares, Nil Nil
perpetual debt instruments Nil Nil
Long term subordinated Bonds 366.02 314.51

 1.2 draw down from Reserves:

  in accordance with the rBi guidelines, during the year an amount equivalent to the expense on donations  
Rs. 3.52 crore and staff Welfare expenses Rs. 0.19 crore debited to profit and loss account are drawn 
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down from the corresponding specific reserves namely public, Charitable and Co-operative purpose 
(donations) and staff Welfare Fund and shown ‘below the line’  in the profit & Loss a/c after arriving at the 
Net profit for the year.

 (Rs. in crore)

Sr 
no.

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1 public, Charitable and Co-operative purpose 3.52 Nil
2 provision for staff Welfare 0.19 Nil

total 3.71 nil

2. Asset liability management:

 Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as on 31.03.2025   

 (Rs. in crore)

 day 1 2 to 7 
days

8 to 14 
days

15 to 30 
days

31 days 
to 2 

months

over 2 
months 

and up to 
3 months

over 3 
months 

and up to 
6 months

over 6 
months 

and up to 
1 year

over 1 
year and 

up to 3 
years

over 3 
years and 

up to 5 
years 

over 5 
years

total

deposits 301.23 1,330.67 883.95 2435.14 4708.05 4574.45 9482.14 8529.63 22999.66 167.51 68.84 55481.27

Advances 157.21 609.36 634.49 605.23 986.70 989.36 863.79 1403.85 14978.53 4155.25 10,949.03 36332.80

investments - - - 124.43 421.78 1013.84 780.18 1267.41 2842.60 2331.84 8920.98 17703.06

Borrowings - 283.93 - - 1.50 50.94 126.87 65.49 312.70 - 1390.30 2231.73

Foreign Currency 

Assets*

156.38 1314.44 71.77 766.37 827.84 532.36 298.28 237.51 608.97 29.09 5377.64 10220.65

Foreign Currency 

Liabilities*

136.72 2002.58 58.30 724.62 765.11 497.36 269.99 237.50 183.12 0.99 5344.36 10220.65

 Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as on 31.03.2024

 (Rs. in crore)

 day 1 2 to 7 
days

8 to 14 
days

15 to 30 
days

31 days 
to 2 

months

over 2 
months 

and up to 
3 months

over 3 
months 

and up to 
6 months

over 6 
months 

and up to 
1 year

over 1 
year and 

up to 3 
years

over 3 
years and 

up to 5 
years 

over 5 
years

total

deposits 463.22 1234.69 708.82 1731.55 2084.53 2577.85 6277.11 7210.64 26746.84 391.55 80.52 49457.31

Advances 234.81 853.91 1059.80 514.33 718.31 671.61 893.80 1427.26 13329.59 3684.74 9179.29 32567.46

investments 0.00 56.97 159.70 283.07 427.76 1180.63 325.23 1690.82 3384.76 1269.46 9010.12 17788.50

Borrowings 0.11 212.62 9.54 12.62 9.27 0.79 0.00 0.00 557.49 0.00 1024.28 1826.72

Foreign Currency 
Assets*

151.87 562.99 62.20 523.58 683.14 580.06 337.08 294.59 682.33 51.56 5713.44 9642.84

Foreign Currency 
Liabilities*

3.86 1612.73 23.49 502.18 641.18 539.27 284.65 312.69 51.96 1.29 5669.54 9642.84

*Foreign Currency Assets and Liabilities include contra items viz. LC, BG and Bills for Collection/receivables which are shown 
under ‘over 5 years’ bucket.
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3. investments:

 3.1 composition of investment portfolio as at 31.03.2025:

(Rs. in crore)
investments in india 

Government 
Securities

other 
Approved 
Securities

Shares debentures 
and Bonds

Subsidiaries 
and/or joint 

ventures

others total 
investments 

in india
held to maturity
Gross 12,582.23 0.00 0.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,582.49
Less: provision for non-
performing investments 
(Npi)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net 12,582.23 0.00 0.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,582.49
Available for Sale
Gross 1,237.58 0.00 15.27 2,529.16 0.00 1,338.56 5,120.57
Less: provision for 
depreciation and Npi

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net 1,237.58 0.00 15.27 2,529.16 0.00 1,338.56 5,120.57
held for trading
Gross 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less: provision for 
depreciation and Npi

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
total investments 13,819.81 0.00 15.53 2,529.16 0.00 1,338.56 17,703.06
Less: provision for non-
performing investments

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Less: provision for 
depreciation and Npi

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net 13,819.81 0.00 15.53 2,529.16 0.00 1,338.56 17,703.06

  composition of investment portfolio as at 31.03.2024:

(Rs. in crore)
investments in india 

Government 
Securities

other 
Approved 
Securities

Shares debentures 
and Bonds

Subsidiaries 
and/or joint 

ventures

others total 
investments 

in india
held to maturity
Gross 11,224.41 0.00 0.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,224.67
Less: provision for non-
performing investments 
(Npi)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net 11,224.41 0.00 0.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,224.67
Available for Sale
Gross 2,853.62 0.00 15.27 2,009.31 0.00 1,685.64 6,563.84
Less: provision for 
depreciation and Npi

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.33 0.00 0.00 0.33

Net 2,853.62 0.00 15.27 2,008.98 0.00 1,685.64 6,563.51
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(Rs. in crore)
investments in india 

Government 
Securities

other 
Approved 
Securities

Shares debentures 
and Bonds

Subsidiaries 
and/or joint 

ventures

others total 
investments 

in india
held for trading
Gross 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less: provision for 
depreciation and Npi

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
total investments 14,078.03 0.00 15.53 2,009.31 0.00 1,685.64 17,788.51
Less: provision for non-
performing investments

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Less: provision for 
depreciation and Npi

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.33 0.00 0.00 0.33

Net 14,078.03 0.00 15.53 2,008.98 0.00 1,685.64 17,788.18

Bank has no investment outside india as on 31.03.2025 and 31.03.2024.

 3.2  movement of provisions for depreciation and investment fluctuation Reserve:

 (Rs. in crore)
particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
i) movement of provisions held towards depreciation on 

investments
a opening balance 0.33 21.49
b Add: provisions made during the year 0.00 1.49
c  Less: Write off/ write back of excess provisions during the 

year
0.33 22.65

d Closing balance 0.00 0.33
ii) movement of investment fluctuation Reserve

a opening balance 450.35 400.35
b Add: Amount transferred during the year 50.00 50.00
c Less: drawdown 0.00 0.00
d Closing balance 500.35 450.35

iii) closing balance in ifR as a percentage of closing balance of 
investments in AfS and hft/current category

9.77% 6.86%

 3.3 Sale and transfers to/from htm category:

  No sale and transfers to/from HtM category during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
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 3.4 non-SlR investment portfolio:

  i) Non-performing non-sLr investments:

 (Rs. in crore)

Sr. 
no.

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

a) opening Balance 0.00 0.00
b) Additions during the year since 1st April 0.00 0.00
c) reductions during the above period 0.00 0.00
d) Closing Balance 0.00 0.00
e) total provision held 0.00 0.00

  ii) issuer composition of non-sLr investments:

 (Rs. in crore)

Sr. 
no.

issuer Amount extent of 
private 

placements

extent of 
‘Below 

investment 
Grade’ 

Securities

extent of 
‘unrated’ 

Securities

extent of 
‘unlisted’ 

Securities

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
a) psus 125.00

(199.64)
125.00

(199.64)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
b) Fis* 1810.89

(1475.89)
1787.38

(1452.37)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
c) Banks 1514.02

(1752.06)
1514.02

 (1752.06)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
d) private Corporates 417.81

(267.37)
417.81

(267.37)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
e) others# 15.39

(15.39)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
15.39

(15.39)
15.39

(15.39)
f) provision held towards 

depreciation
0.00

(0.33)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
total 3883.11

(3710.35)
3844.21

(3671.44)
0.00

 (0.00)
15.39

(15.39)
15.39

(15.39)

   note: Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.

    *Commercial paper and Certiflcate of deposits are excluded from the listing stipulations due to the short term 
nature of the said instruments.

    # - other include shares these holdings are purely shares of permitted Co-operative institutions/ umbrella 
organization and Market infrastructure companies; hence are unlisted.
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 3.5 Repo transactions (in face value and market value terms):

(rs. in crores)
particulars minimum 

outstanding 
during the year

maximum 
outstanding 

during the year

daily average 
outstanding 

during the year

outstanding as 
on 31st march 

2025
fV mV fV mV fV mV fV mV

i. Securities sold under Repo

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 1160.79 1161.31 573.67 567.21 0.00 0.00

 b) Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 c) Any other securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ii. Securities purchased under Reverse Repo

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 371.38 373.45 10.72 10.30 0.00 0.00

 b) Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 c) Any other securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

i. Securities sold under RBi Repos (lAf):

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 603.95 597.14 160.72 158.67 0.00 0.00

 b) Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 c) Any other securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ii. Securities purchased under RBi Reverse Repos (lAf):

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 b) Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 c) Any other securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

i.  Securities sold under ccil tRepS Borrowing:

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 1385.18 1367.78 389.83 383.03 283.69 283.04

 b) Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ii. Securities purchased under tRepS lending:

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 235.00 234.06 4.56 4.54 0.00 0.00

 b) Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(rs. in crores)
particulars minimum 

outstanding 
during the year

maximum 
outstanding 

during the year

daily average 
outstanding 

during the year

outstanding as 
on 31st march 

2024
fV mV fV mV fV mV fV mV

i. Securities sold under Repo

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 1319.38 1255.62 397.93 381.91 200.00 199.03

 b) Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 c) Any other securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ii. Securities purchased under Reverse Repo

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 1318.05 1305.80 51.25 50.87 205.86 208.33

 b) Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 c) Any other securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
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(rs. in crores)
particulars minimum 

outstanding 
during the year

maximum 
outstanding 

during the year

daily average 
outstanding 

during the year

outstanding as 
on 31st march 

2024
fV mV fV mV fV mV fV mV

i. Securities sold under RBi Repos (lAf):

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 667.48 644.02 56.42 54.66 0.00 0.00

 b) Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 c) Any other securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ii. Securities purchased under RBi Reverse Repos (lAf):

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 b) Corporate   debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 c) Any other securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

i. Securities sold under ccil tRepS Borrowing

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 727.60 706.31 271.06 261.98 0.00 0.00

 b) Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ii. Securities purchased under tRepS lending

 a) Government securities 0.00 0.00 198.48 198.48 6.51 2.53 132.62 132.63

 b) Corporate   debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4. Asset quality:

 4.1 classification of advances and provisions held as on 31.03.2025 :

 (Rs. in crore)

Standard non-performing total
total 

Standard 
Advances

Sub-
Standard

doubtful loss total non-
performing 

Advances
Gross Standard Advances and npAs
opening Balance 31629.98 185.89 565.67 185.93 937.49 32567.46
Add: Additions during the year 287.29
Less: reductions during the year* 406.09
Closing balance 35514.11 183.69 482.08 152.93 818.69 36332.80
*reductions in Gross NpAs due to:
i. upgradation 24.51
ii.  recoveries (excluding recoveries 

from upgraded accounts)
166.03

iii. technical/ prudential Write-offs 107.41
iv.  Write-offs other than those under 

(iii) above including amount of 
loans transferred to ArC

108.15
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Standard non-performing total
total 

Standard 
Advances

Sub-
Standard

doubtful loss total non-
performing 

Advances
provisions (excluding floating 
provisions)
opening balance of provisions held 152.27 170.31 565.67 185.93 921.91 1074.18
Add: Fresh provisions made during 
the year

92.89

Less: excess provision reversed/  
Write-off loans

214.44

Closing balance of provisions held 168.97 165.35 482.08 152.93 800.36 969.33
net npAs
opening Balance 0.00
Add: Fresh additions during the year 194.40
Less: reductions during the year *194.40
Closing Balance 0.00
floating provisions

opening Balance 125.00
Add: Additional provisions made 
during the year

0.00

Less: Amount drawn down during the 
year

0.00

Closing balance of floating provisions 125.00
technical write-offs and the 
recoveries made thereon
opening balance of technical/ 
prudential written-off accounts 

1048.90

Add: technical/ prudential write-offs 
during the year

107.41

Less: recoveries made from previously 
technical/ prudential written-off/ 
Accounts Assigned to ArC/ Accounts 
closed under ots during the year

363.97

Closing balance 792.34

* this includes the amounts received from eCGC and held in ‘suspense’ account.
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  classification of advances and provisions held as on 31.03.2024:

 (rs. in crore)

Standard non-performing total
total 

Standard 
Advances

Sub-
Standard

doubtful loss total non-
performing 

Advances

Gross Standard Advances and 
npAs
opening Balance 29884.22 182.86 863.58 126.47 1172.90 31057.13
Add: Additions during the year 294.33
Less: reductions during the year* 529.74
Closing balance 31629.98 185.89 565.67 185.93 937.49 32567.46
*reductions in Gross NpAs due to:
i. upgradation 46.90
ii.  recoveries (excluding 

recoveries from upgraded 
accounts)

209.29

iii.  technical/ prudential  
Write-offs

31.39

iv.  Write-offs other than those 
under (iii) above including 
amount of loans transferred 
to ArC

242.16

provisions (excluding floating 
provisions)
opening balance of provisions 
held 

152.32 170.87 863.58 126.47 1160.92 1313.24

Add: Fresh provisions made 
during the year

27.70

Less: excess provision reversed/ 
Write-off loans

266.71

Closing balance of provisions held 152.27 170.31 565.57 185.93 921.91 1074.18
net npAs
opening Balance 0.00
Add: Fresh additions during the 
year 

266.62

Less: reductions during the year *266.62
Closing Balance 0.00
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Standard non-performing total
total 

Standard 
Advances

Sub-
Standard

doubtful loss total non-
performing 

Advances

floating provisions
opening Balance 0.00
Add: Additional provisions made 
during the year

125.00

Less: Amount drawn down during 
the year 

0.00

Closing balance of floating 
provisions 

125.00

technical write-offs and the 
recoveries made thereon
opening balance of technical/ 
prudential written-off accounts 

1251.80

Add: technical/ prudential write-
offs during the year 

31.39

Less: recoveries made from 
previously technical/ prudential 
written-off/ Accounts Assigned to 
ArC during the year 

234.29

Closing balance 1048.90

*this includes the amounts received from eCGC and held in ‘suspense’ account.

Ratios 
(in per cent)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Gross NpA to Gross Advances 2.25% 2.88%
Net NpA to Net Advances 0.00% 0.00%
provision coverage ratio 97.76% 98.34%

note: the provision Coverage ratio is calculated as a percentage of the Bad & doubtful debts reserve to the Gross Non-
performing Advance. the Floating provision for Advances of rs. 125 crores is not considered while arriving at the provision 
Coverage ratio.
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 4.2 Sector-wise Advances and Gross npAs:

(Rs. in crores)

Sr. 
no.

Sector current Year 31.03.2025 previous Year 31.03.2024
outstanding 

total 
Advances

Gross npAs % of Gross 
npAs to total 

Advances in 
that Sector

outstanding 
total 

Advances

Gross npAs % of Gross 
npAs to total 

Advances in 
that Sector

i) priority Sector
a)  Agriculture and allied 

activities
12.25 0.53 4.33 28.31 6.17 21.79

  Agriculture allied 
products

7.27 0.47 6.46 19.51 3.67 18.81

b)  Advances to industries 
sector eligible as priority 
sector lending

7917.33 158.46 2.00 7,320.78 183.91 2.51

 textile 1407.38 56.87 4.04 1284.83 69.70 5.42
c) Services 2469.92 124.03 5.02 2,549.16 110.59 4.34
 Hospitality 788.45 24.69 3.13 844.97 27.50 3.25
d) personal loans 2977.24 96.22 3.23 3,152.30 107.33 3.40
 Housing Loans 2754.90 39.20 1.42 2868.27 26.75 0.93
 Loan against property 5.06 0 0 28.54 0.05 0.18
Subtotal (i) 13376.74 379.24 2.84% 13,050.55 408.00 3.13%

ii) non-priority Sector 
a)  Agriculture and allied 

activities
31.38 21.02 66.97 37.73 24.45 64.80

  Agriculture allied 
products

31.21 21.02 67.35 30.39 24.45 80.45

b) industry 9502.37 198.72 2.09 8,602.72 209.35 2.43
 textile 641.02 3.54 0.55 586.09 9.88 1.69
c) Services 3253.30 42.07 1.29 2,648.89 99.25 3.75
 Hospitality 430.81 4.53 1.05 449.03 16.96 3.78
d) personal loans 10169.01 177.64 1.75 8,227.57 196.44 2.39
 Housing Loans 3530.71 31.18 0.88 2939.60 17.07 0.58
 Vehicle Loans 2171.08 6.71 0.31 1548.84 4.39 0.28
 Loan against property 1390.48 19.37 1.22 1092.78 10.81 0.84
Sub-total (ii) 22956.06 439.45 1.91% 19,516.91 529.49 2.71%
total (i + ii) 36332.80 818.69 2.25% 32,567.46 937.49 2.88%
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  4.3 particulars of resolution plan and restructuring:

   details of accounts subjected to restructuring

 (Rs. in crore)

Agriculture and 
allied activities

corporates 
(excluding 

mSme)

micro, Small 
and medium 
enterprises 

(mSme)

Retail (excluding 
agriculture and 

mSme)

total

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

standard
No. of Borrowers 0 0 4 4 17 18 0 0 21 22
Gross Amount 0.00 0.00 26.62 84.77 124.16 137.17 0.00 0.00 150.78 221.94
provision held 0.00 0.00 2.19 4.34 8.46 8.38 0.00 0.00 10.65 12.72

sub-standard

Number of 
Borrowers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Gross Amount 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
provision held 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

doubtful

Number of 
Borrowers

0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 2

Gross Amount 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.59 0.00 4.72 0.00 5.31
provision held 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.02 0.00 0.02 0.00 0.04

total

number of 
Borrowers

0.00 0.00 4 4 17 19 0 1 21 24

Gross Amount 0.00 0.00 26.62 84.77 124.16 137.76 0.00 4.72 150.78 227.25
provision held 0.00 0.00 2.19 4.34 8.46 8.40 0.00 0.02 10.65 12.76

 4.4 divergence in the asset classification and provisioning:

  in terms of the rBi guidelines, banks are required to disclose the divergence in asset classification and 
provisioning consequent to rBi’s annual supervisory process in their notes to accounts to the financial 
statements, wherever the additional provisioning assessed / additional gross NpAs identified by rBi 
exceeds the threshold specified by rBi. the threshold for provisioning is 5 per cent of the reported profit 
before provisions and contingencies for the reference period and that for additional gross NpAs is 15 per 
cent of the published incremental Gross NpAs for the reference period.

  there was no reportable divergence in asset classification and provisioning for NpAs for the year ended 
March 31, 2024, and March 31, 2023.
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 4.5 disclosure of transfer of loan exposures:

  details of transfer of loan exposure-in the case of stressed loans transferred or acquired:

 (Rs. in crore)
details of stressed loans transferred during the year 31.03.2025 (to be made separately for loans classified as npA 
and SmA)

to ARcs to permitted 
transferees

to other 
transferees 

(please specify)
No. of Accounts 171

Nil

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred 228.18
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans 
transferred

0.00

Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of 
transfer)

0.00

Aggregate Consideration 37.08
Additional consideration realized in respect of 
accounts transferred in earlier years.

13.97

details of loans acquired during the year
From sCBs, rrBs, 

uCBs, stCBs, 
dCCBs, AiFis, 

sFBs and NBFCs 
including HFCs

From ArCs

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans acquired
NilAggregate consideration paid

Weighted average residual tenor of loans acquired

  the amount of excess provision reversed to the profit & Loss account is rs. 37.08 crore.

  details of stressed loans transferred during the year 31.03.2024 (to be made separately for loans classified as npA 
and SmA)

to ARcs to permitted 
transferees

to other 
transferees 

(please specify)
No. of Accounts 368

Nil

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred 390.38
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans 
transferred

0.00

Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of 
transfer)

5.85

Aggregate Consideration 54.09
Additional consideration realized in respect of 
accounts transferred in earlier years.

20.06

details of loans acquired during the year
From sCBs, rrBs, 

uCBs, stCBs, 
dCCBs, AiFis, 

sFBs and NBFCs 
including HFCs

From ArCs

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans 
acquired

NilAggregate consideration paid
Weighted average residual tenor of loans 
acquired

  the amount of excess provision reversed to the profit & Loss account is Rs. 48.24 crore.
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 4.6 fraud accounts:

  details on the number and amount of frauds as well as the provisioning thereon:

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
No. of frauds reported 22 28
* Amount involved in fraud (rs. in crores) 9.28 33.34
Amount of provision made for such frauds (rs. in crores) 
(principal and interest)

7.45 29.46

Amount of unamortized provision debited from ‘other reserves’  
as at the end of the year/period (rs. in crores)

-- --

   *the amount involved in fraud is Nil (previous year rs. 4.01 Cr) where Bank is not required to account for any provi-
sion as frauds occurred due to errors or mistakes committed by respective customer.

  provision for amount involved in fraud is created to the extent of unrecovered portion.

 4.7 disclosure under Resolution framework for coVid-19-related Stress

  the Covid-19 impacted the entire world thus impacting india resulting in an adverse impact and volatility 
in global and indian markets and disruption in economic activity on account of lockdown measures, 
etc. However, the various pandemic measures – regulatory as well as social have lessened the adverse 
economic impact and the indian economy displayed resilience enabling normalization in various sectors 
of the economy. reserve Bank of india continued with its regulatory measures with the objective of 
alleviating the potential stress to individual borrowers and small businesses, and introduced the resolution 
Framework - 1.0, and resolution Framework -2.0.

  disclosure with respect to ‘respect of stressed Assets’ as per rBi Circular No. dor. No. Bp.BC /4 
/21.04/048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020:

 (Rs. in crore)
type of borrower exposure to 

accounts classified 
as standard 

subsequent to 
implementation of 

resolution plan- 
position as at the 

end of the previous 
year (A) i.e., 

31.03.2024#

of (A), aggregate 
debt that slipped 

into npA during the 
year 

of (A) amount 
written off during 

the year 

of (A) amount paid 
by the borrowers 

during the year

exposure to 
accounts classified 

as Standard 
consequent to 

implementation 
of resolution plan 

– position as at 
the end of the year 

i.e.31.03.2025#

personal Loans 172.25 3.34 0.00 37.50 134.00
Corporate persons* 280.83 0.00 0.00 121.02 159.81
of which MsMes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
others 32.30 0.16 0.00 7.45 24.69
total 485.38 3.50 0.00 165.97 318.50

* As defined in section 3(7) of the insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
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  Accounts restructured under resolution Framework 1.0 & 2.0 – resolution of Covid-19 related stress of 
Micro small and Medium enterprises (MsMe) Circular dor.No.Bp. BC/4/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 
6, 2020 and dor.str.reC.12/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 5, 2021

(Rs. in crores)
particulars no. of accounts 

restructured**
exposure as on 

31.03.2025 #
MsMe (rF 1.0) 52 97.16
MsMe (rF 2.0) 66 67.90

  **Number of accounts restructured reported in the disclosure above is reported at a borrower level.
  #exposure excludes facilities sanctioned and disbursed post restructuring.

5. exposures:

 5.1 exposure to real estate sector:
(Rs. in crore)

Sr. 
no.

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

i) direct exposure
a)  Residential mortgages
  Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property 

that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented. 
6696.18 6270.67

  of which, individual housing loans eligible for priority sector 
advances.

2876.97 3020.57

b)  commercial Real estate
  Lending secured by mortgages on Commercial real estates 

(office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial 
premises, multifamily residential buildings, multi tenanted 
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, 
land acquisition, development, and construction etc.

1707.33 1584.26

c)   investments in mortgage-Backed Securities (mBS) and other 
securitised exposures:

 i) residential Nil Nil
 ii) Commercial real estate Nil Nil

ii) indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing 
Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

Nil Nil

total exposure to Real estate Sector 8403.51 7854.93

  during the year, the Bank observed a breach in the regulatory exposure limits prescribed by the reserve 
Bank of india (rBi) in respect of Commercial real estate (Cre) advances. the total exposure under the 
Cre category exceeded the prudential norms as laid down under the extant rBi guidelines for urban  
Co-operative Banks by Rs. 78.97 Cr. (i.e. 0.24%).
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  the breach occurred in view of the rBi circular no. rBi/2024-25/118 dor.Cre.reC.62/07.10.002/ 
2024-25 dated February 24, 2025 on review and rationalization of prudential norms – uCBs which 
modified the basis of computation of Cre threshold, which led to the Bank’s Cre exposure crossing the 
prescribed threshold of 5% of the total Loans and Advances.

 5.2 exposure to capital market:
 (Rs. in crore)

Sr. 
no.

category 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible 
debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus 
of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt.

15.53 15.53

ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities 
or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including 
ipos / esops), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and 
units of equity oriented mutual funds; 

Nil Nil

iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible 
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual 
funds are taken as primary security; 

66.03 66.04

iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the 
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible 
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e., where 
the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / 
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 
does not fully cover the advances;

2.35 2.39

v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees 
issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

Nil Nil

vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares 
/ bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for 
meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies 
in anticipation of raising resources;

Nil Nil

vii) underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect 
of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible 
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds;

Nil Nil

viii) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; Nil Nil
ix) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and 

unregistered)
Nil Nil

total exposure to capital market 83.91 83.96

  a) Risk category-wise country exposure:
 (rs. in crores)

Risk category exposure (net) as 
at 31.03.2025

provision held as 
at 31.03.2025

exposure (net) as 
at 31.03.2024

provision held as 
at 31.03.2024

insignificant 375.53

Not applicable

461.12

Not applicable

Low 325.47 270.91
Moderately Low 16.13 121.15
Moderate 56.81 9.90
Moderately High 1.22 26.06
High 22.43 0.00
Very High 1.63 26.65
total 799.22 915.79
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  b) unsecured advances:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
total unsecured advances of the Bank 266.24 344.57
out of the above, amount of advances for which intangible securities 
such as charge over the rights, licenses, authority, etc. have been 
taken

NA NA

estimated value of such intangible securities nA nA

  c) factoring exposures:

   No factoring exposure of the Bank as on 31.03.2025.

  d) unhedged foreign currency exposure:

   Foreign exchange policy of the Bank covers the provisions related to monitoring and review of unhedged 
foreign currency exposure and related norms.

6. concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and npAs:

 a) concentration of deposits:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
total deposits of the twenty largest depositors 2961.21 2,574.54
% of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of the Bank 5.34% 5.21%

 b) concentration of advances*:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
total advances of the twenty largest borrowers 4,088.06 3,822.24
% of advances of twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the Bank 9.63% 10.09%

   *Advances computed are based on credit exposure i.e., funded, and non-funded limits including derivative exposures 
where applicable. the sanctioned limits or outstanding, whichever are higher, are reckoned. However, in the case of 
fully drawn term loans, where there is no scope for re-drawal of any portion of the sanctioned limit, the outstanding is 
reckoned as the credit exposure.

 c) concentration of exposures**:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
total exposure of the twenty largest borrowers/customers 4,088.06 3,822.24
percentage of exposures to the twenty largest borrowers/customers to 
the total exposures of the Bank or borrowers/customers

9.63% 10.09%

  **exposures computed as per applicable rBi regulations
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 d) concentration of npAs:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
total exposure of the top twenty NpA accounts 338.87 310.78
percentage of exposures to the twenty largest NpA exposures to total 
Gross NpAs

41.39% 33.15%

7. rBi has mandated urban Co-operative Banks vide Master Circular no. dor (pCB).Bpd.Cir 
No.10/13.05.000/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020, as revised vide circular dor.Cre.reC.28/07.10.002/2024-
25 dated July 25, 2024 and rBi/2024-25/118 dor.Cre.reC.62/07.10.002/2024-25 dated February 24, 2025, 
to have at least 40% of their aggregate *loans and advances comprising loans of not more than rs. 25.00 
lakh or 0.4% of their tier i Capital, whichever is higher, subject to a maximum of rs. 3 crore per borrower up to  
31st March 2025. the Bank’s present status is as below.

 (Rs. in crore)

Sr. no. particulars 2024-25
a. Aggregate of loans and advances (as per the above referred circulars not exceeding 0.4% 

of tier i Capital subject to maximum Rs. 3 crore)
18,106

b. Aggregate loans and advances (as per the above referred circulars) as per audited 
financial statement.

42,459

c. percentage of lending as per above (a/b) 42.64%

  *it is clarified that ‘loans’ for the purpose shall include all types of funded and non-funded exposures in the nature of credit.

8. derivatives:

 the Bank has not entered into any transactions of interest rate swaps in the current and previous years.

9. transfers to depositor education and Awareness fund (deA fund):

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
opening balance of amounts transferred to deA Fund 171.22 168.90
Add: - Amounts transferred to deA Fund during the year /period 16.55 14.00
Less: - Amount reimbursed by deA Fund towards claims 2.77 11.68
Closing balance of amounts transferred to deA Fund 185.00 171.22

  note: Closing balance of amount transferred to deA Fund, as disclosed above, is also included under ‘schedule 14 – 
Contingent Liabilities’.

10. disclosure of complaints

 a)  Summary information on complaints received by the Bank from customers and from the officers of 
Banking ombudsman

Sr.
no.

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

complaints received by the Bank from its customers
1. Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 22 3
2. Number of complaints received during the year /period 1185 718
3. Number of complaints disposed during the year /period 1188 699

3.1 of which, number of complaints rejected by the Bank - -
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Sr.
no.

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

4. Number of complaints pending at the end of the year/period 19 22
maintainable complaints received by the Bank from oBos

5. Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year (oBo) - -
Number of maintainable complaints received by the bank from 
oBos

205 216

5.1  of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the Bank 
by Bos (also includes complaints received in earlier years 
& resolved in favour of the Bank)

202 208

5.2  of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/
mediation/advisories issued by Bos

03 08

5.3  of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of 
Awards by Bos against the Bank

Nil Nil

6. Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time 
(other than those appealed)

N.A. N.A.

   note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Bo scheme 2006 and 
covered within the ambit of the scheme.

  As Bank has upgraded its Complaint portal, introducing a more efficient classification system potentially 
leading to an increase in reported complaints due to improved visibility and accessibility.

 b) top five grounds* of complaints received by the Bank from customers.

Grounds of complaints,  
(i.e., complaints relating to)

number of 
complaints 
pending at 

the beginning 
of the year 
i.e., as on 

31.03.2024

number of 
complaints 

received 
during the 

year i.e. during 
2024-25

number of 
complaints 

received during 
previous year 

(Apr,2023-
march,2024)

% increase/ 
decrease in 
the number 

of complaints 
received over the 

same period of 
previous year i.e. 

2023-24 

number of 
complaints 

pending 
at the end 

of the year 
i.e., as on 

31.03.2025

of 5, 
number of 

complaints 
pending 

beyond 30 
days

current year (31.03.2025)
Ground-1 Account opening/
difficulty in operation of 
accounts

7 397 255 56% increase 1 0

Ground-2- Loans & Advances 4 181 78 132% increase 12 0
Ground-3- AtM/debit Cards 3 125 45 178% increase 0 0
Ground-4- Mis-selling/para-
banking 

2 118 106 11% increase 4 0

Ground-5- internet/Mobile/
electronic Banking 

2 100 52 92% increase 0 0

others 4 264 182 45% increase 2 0
total 22 1185 718 65% increase 19 0
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  top five grounds* of complaints received by the Bank from customers.

Grounds of complaints,  
(i.e., complaints relating to)

number of 
complaints 
pending at 

the beginning 
of the year 
i.e., as on 

31.03.2023

number of 
complaints 

received 
during the 

year i.e. during 
2023-24

number of 
complaints 

received during 
previous year 

(Apr,2022-
march,2023)

% increase/ 
decrease in 
the number 

of complaints 
received over the 

same period of 
previous year i.e. 

2022-23

number of 
complaints 

pending 
at the end 

of the year 
i.e., as on 

31.03.2024

of 5, 
number of 

complaints 
pending 

beyond 30 
days

Ground-1- Account 
opening/difficulty in 
operation of accounts

1 255 87 193% increase 7 0

Ground-2- Loans & 
Advances

0 78 61 28% increase 4 1

Ground-3- AtM/debit 
Cards 

0 45 15 200% increase 3 0

Ground-4- Mis-selling/
para-banking 

1 106 106 0% increase 2 1

Ground-5- internet/Mobile/ 
electronic Banking

1 52 16 225% increase 2 0

others 0 182 92 98% increase 4 0
total 3 718 377 90% increase 22 2

*As per Master List for identifying grounds of complaints as provided in Appendix 1 to circular Cepd.Co.prd.Cir. 
No.01/13.01.013/2020-21 dated January 27, 2021, on ‘strengthening the Grievance redress Mechanism of Banks’.

1. AtM/debit Cards 2. Credit Cards 3.  internet/Mobile/
electronic Banking

4.  Account opening/ 
difficulty in operation of 
accounts

5. Mis-selling/para-banking 6.  recovery Agents/ 
direct sales Agents 

7.  pension and facilities 
for senior citizens/ 
differently abled

 8. Loans and advances

9.  Levy of charges without 
prior notice/ excessive 
charges/ foreclosure 
charges 

10. Cheques/ drafts/ bills 11.  Non-observance of Fair 
practices Code 

12.  exchange of coins, 
issuance/ acceptance 
of small denomination 
notes and coins

13.  Bank Guarantees/ 
Letter of Credit and 
documentary credits 

14. staff behavior 15.  Facilities for customers 
visiting the branch/ 
adherence to 
prescribed working 
hours by the branch, 
etc. 

16. others

11. disclosure of penalties imposed by Reserve Bank of india:

 there is no penalty imposed by the reserve Bank of india (rBi) during the F.y. 2024-2025.

 (previous year i.e. during F.y. 2023-24 a penalty of Rs. 23.00 lakh was levied for contravention of the provisions 
and the directions issued by rBi on ‘Loans and advances to directors, their relatives, and firms/concerns in 
which they are interested)
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12. disclosure requirement as per Accounting Standards (AS)

 12.1 A)  net profit or loss for the period, prior period items and changes in Accounting policies (AS 5):

   prior period items: during the year, there were no material prior period income / expenditure items.

  B) property, plant and equipment (AS 10)

   As per the revaluation policy of the Bank, Bank has revaluated immovable properties on 1st April 
2024 based on the valuation reports of the external independent valuers and closing balance 
of revaluation reserve as on 31st March 2025, (net of amount transferred to General reserve) is  
Rs. 718.01 crore.

 12.2 employee Benefits- AS 15:

  a. defined contribution plan

   Bank’s contribution to provident Fund – rs. 32.11 crore (previous year- Rs. 30.70 crore)

  b. defined Benefit plan

   i. Assumptions:

Sr. 
no.

particulars Gratuity (funded) pension (unfunded)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
i discount rate 6.83% 7.23% 7.07% 7.18%
ii expected return on plan Assets 6.83% 7.23% N.A. N.A.
iii salary escalation rate 4.00% 4.00% - -
iV Attrition rate 4.75% 4.75% 4.75% 4.75%
V Mortality rate during employment iALM  

(2012-14) 
urban

iALM  
(2012-14) 

urban

iALM  
(2012-14) 

urban

iALM  
(2012-14) 

urban
Vi Mortality rate After employment - - iiA (2012-15) iiA (2012-15)

   ii. table showing change in the present Value of defined Benefit obligation:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars Gratuity (funded) pension (unfunded)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
present value of obligation at the beginning 
of the period

140.28 150.76 45.69 41.32

interest cost 10.11 11.31 3.28 3.11
Current service cost 7.84 7.92 0.88 0.80
past service Cost – Vested Benefit incurred 
during the period

- - - 1.31

(Benefits paid directly by the employer) - (0.31) (3.38) (3.13)
(Benefits paid from the Fund) (18.13) (39.36) - -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligations-
due to Change in demographic 
Assumptions 

0.00 0.00 - -



Business Overview Statutory Report Financial Statements

107Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) Annual Report 2024-25

particulars Gratuity (funded) pension (unfunded)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligations-
due to Change in Financial Assumptions

3.71 2.16 0.83 1.50

Actuarial (Gains)/Loss on obligations-due 
to experience

4.33 7.80 (0.11) 0.78

present value of benefit obligation at the 
end of the period

148.13 140.28 47.20 45.69

   iii. table showing change in fair Value of plan Assets:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars Gratuity (funded) pension (unfunded)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 
of the period

140.28 146.88 -- --

expected return on plan Assets 10.11 11.02 -- --
Contributions by the employer 13.29 18.40 -- --
Benefits paid from the Fund (18.13) (39.36) -- --
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on plan Assets - 
due to experience

(0.15) 3.34 -- --

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 
period

145.39 140.28 -- --

    the plan assets are invested in the insurer managed fund which generally makes investment 
in secured securities. Hence, the expected rate of return considered is yield on the government 
securities which matches the average term of the obligation.

   iv. Amount recognized in Balance Sheet:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars Gratuity (funded) pension (unfunded)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(present value of obligation at the end of 
the period)

(148.13) (140.28) (47.20) (45.69)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 
period

145.39 140.28 - -

Funded status (surplus/ (deficit)) (2.74) 0.00 (47.20) (45.69)
Net (Liability)/Asset recognized in the 
Balance sheet

(2.74) 0.00 (47.20) (45.69)
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   v. expenses recognized in the Statement of profit or loss:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars Gratuity (funded) pension (unfunded)
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Current service cost 7.84 7.93 0.88 0.80
Net interest cost - 0.29 3.28 3.11
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss 8.19 6.61 0.72 2.28
past service Cost - Vested Benefit 
recognized during the period

- - - 1.31

expenses recognized in statement of profit 
or Loss

16.03 14.83 4.89 7.50

   vi. investments under plan Assets are as follows:

 (Rs. in crore)

category of Assets Gratuity (funded) pension (unfunded)
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

insurer Managed Funds 142.48 131.71 - -
other 2.91 8.57 - -
total 145.39 140.28 - -

   vii. Actual Return on plan Assets and expected contribution on Gratuity (funded) for next year:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 2025 2024

expected return on plan assets 10.11 11.02

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on plan Assets- due to experience (0.15) 3.34

Actual Return on plan Assets 9.96 14.36

expected contribution for next year 12.20 7.84

   viii. Amounts of Gratuity and pension for the current year and previous four years are as follows:

    1. Gratuity:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
(present Value of Benefit 
obligation at the end of the 
period)

(148.13) (140.28) (150.76) (145.73) (144.94) (146.12)

Fair Value of plan Assets at the 
end of the period

145.39 140.28 146.88 145.61 144.02 135.69

Funded status (surplus/ (deficit)) (2.74) 0.00 (3.87) (0.12) (0.92) (10.43)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on 
obligations - due to experience

4.33 7.80 (0.47) 4.55 2.24 7.16

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on plan 
Assets - due to experience

(0.15) 3.34 (4.24) 0.08 (0.11) (1.14)
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    2. pension:
 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
(present Value of Benefit 
obligation at the end of the 
period)

(47.20) (45.69) (41.32) (42.05) (42.95) (42.42)

Fair Value of plan Assets at the 
end of the period

- - - - - -

Funded status (surplus/ (deficit)) (47.20) (45.69) (41.32) (42.05) (42.95) (42.42)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on 
obligations - due to experience

(0.11) 0.78 (0.81) (0.21) 0.09 1.30

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on plan 
Assets - due to experience

- - - - - -

  c. other long-term employee Benefits:

   compensated absences

   the actuarial liability of compensated absences of accumulated privilege and sick leave of the 
employees of the Bank is given below:

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 2025 2024
privilege leave 64.92 65.94
sick leave (vested) 8.56 11.25
sick leave(non-vested) 3.78 3.31
total actuarial liability 77.26 80.50
Assumptions
discount rate
privilege leave 6.83% 7.23%
sick leave (vested) 6.73% 7.20%
sick leave (non-vested) 6.79% 7.22%
salary escalation rate
privilege leave 4.00% 4.00%
sick leave (vested) 0.00% 0.00%
sick leave (non-vested) 4.00% 4.00%

 12.3 Segment Reporting (AS-17):

  part A: Business Segment

  For the purpose of segment reporting, the reportable segments are identified as treasury, Corporate/
Wholesale Banking, retail Banking and other Banking Business, in accordance with the rBi guidelines. 
Brief description of activities of each segment and revenue attributable thereto is as under:

  1. the treasury portfolio comprises of entire investment portfolio.

  2. retail Banking includes exposures which fulfil the four criteria of orientation, product, granularity, and 
low value of individual exposures for retail exposures laid down in accordance with rBi guidelines. 
individual housing loans also form part of retail Banking segment for the purpose of reporting under 
As-17.

  3. Corporate / Wholesale Banking includes all advances to trusts, partnership firms, companies, and 
statutory bodies, which are not included under ‘retail Banking’.
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  4. other Banking Business includes all other banking operations not covered under ‘treasury, ‘Wholesale 
Banking’ and ‘retail Banking’ segments. it shall also include all other residual operations such as 
para banking transactions/activities.

 (Rs. in crore)

Business Segment treasury corporate/Wholsale 
Banking

Retail Banking other Banking Business total

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

revenue  1,643.22  1,298.58  1,305.43  1,275.55  2,002.59  1,792.03  113.29  76.99  5,064.53  4,443.15 

result  298.44  292.24  238.48  277.12  477.48  595.95  105.01  69.67  1,119.41  1,234.98 

unallocated expenses  383.03  448.56 

operating profit  736.38  786.42 

provisions  42.59  84.77 

exceptional items  -    -   

income taxes  175.54  198.66 

extraordinary profit/loss  -    -   

Net profit  518.25  502.99 

other information

segment assets  26,573.29  23,863.34  15,249.30  15,340.13  28,594.68  24,819.82  52.34  50.02  70,469.61  64,073.31 

unallocated assets  1,422.49  1,346.39 

total assets  71,892.10  65,419.70 

segment liabilities  24,694.03  22,203.55  14,170.87  14,273.16  26,572.47  23,093.50  48.64  46.54  65,486.01  59,616.75 

unallocated liabilities  1,248.62  1,128.09 

total liabilities  66,734.63  60,744.84

 part B: Geographic Segments

 the Bank operates only in india and hence the reporting consists only of domestic segment.

 12.4 Related party disclosures (AS18):

  Mrs. Arti Ajit patil, Managing director and Ceo of the Bank is a single party under the category Key 
Management personnel, no further details need to be disclosed in terms of rBi Circular dated 29th March 
2003.

 12.5 operating lease comprises leasing of office premises (AS 19):

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

future lease rental payable as at the end of the year/period:

- Not later than one year 82.09 72.33

- Later than one year and not later than five years 217.18 200.83

- Later than five years 22.95 26.64

total of minimum lease payments realization in the profit and Loss 
account for the year/period. 

90.35 85.93

total of future minimum sub-lease payment expected to be received 
under non-cancellable sub-lease

NiL NiL

sub-lease payments realization in the profit and Loss account for the 
year

NiL NiL
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 12.6 earnings per Share (epS) (AS 20):

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Net profit after taxation (Rs. in crore) 518.25 502.99
Weighted average No. of shares (Rs. in crore) 31.95 30.29
eps * (Rs. in actuals) 16.18 16.42

   *eps has been computed after reducing preference dividend of rs. 1.42 crore (previous year - rs. 5.72 crore) from 
Net profit after tax.

 12.7 major components of deferred tax (AS 22): 

 (Rs. in crore)

 deferred tax Asset 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
1 sec.43B 1.52 1.69
2 provision for Bddr (incl. other Assets) 211.13 242.06
3 Amortization of HtM securities 0.45 0.46
4 Vrs Compensation 4.40 4.87
5 provision for restructured Assets 2.68 3.21
6 provision for restructuring other loans and MsMe  

(Covid Framework)
11.81 19.24

7 others 3.68 3.10
Sub-total (A) 235.67 274.63
deferred tax liability

1 difference in WdV of fixed assets 9.42 10.59
2 special reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) 67.33 64.11
3 provision for Bad debts u/s 36(1) (viia) 13.98 -
4 others 0.03 0.08

Sub-total (B) 90.76 74.78
net deferred tax Asset (A)-(B) 144.91 199.85

  note: deferred tax Asset has been recognized to the extent Management is reasonably certain of its realization.

 12.8 details of computer Software –other than internally generated (AS 26):

  a. Amortization rates used @33.33% p.a. on straight line method. However, if useful life of software is 
more than 3 years, then the same is amortized over the license  period where defined.

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
opening Balance (at cost) as on April 1 167.65 136.87
Add: Additions during the year/period 38.78 32.92
Less: deductions during the year/period *   0.10 2.14
Sub-total (A) 206.34 167.65
Less: Amortization made:
opening Balance of Amortization 110.07 79.28
Add: Amortization during the year/period 34.05 32.74
Less: deductions during the year/period *   0.00 1.95
Sub-total (B) 144.13 110.07
net carrying amount as on march 31 (A)-(B) 62.21 57.58

   *includes obsolete software of Rs. 1.85 crore (31.03.2024).



Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet  

112 Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) Annual Report 2024-25

  b. Amount of commitments (net of advance)

   - for the acquisition of computer software – Rs. 33.37 crore (previous year - Rs. 52.76 crore) and 
for premises - Rs. 50.14 crore (previous year - Rs. 34.55 crore)

 12.9 claims against Bank not acknowledged as debts:

  this includes liability on account of income tax, service tax and other legal cases filed against the Bank. the 
Bank is a party to various legal proceedings in the normal course of business and has preferred appeals 
with the appropriate appellate authorities.

  Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from a past event, the 
existence of which will be confirmed by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not within the control of the Bank or any present obligation arising from past event which is not 
recognized since it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a 
reliable estimate of the amount of such obligation cannot be made.

  the income tax, service tax and other legal cases where there are no legal precedents are as follows:

  1. service tax Rs. 10.23 crore

  2. other legal cases Rs. 11.07 crore.

13. other disclosures:

 a) Business ratios:

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

i) interest income as a percentage to Working Funds 7.33% 7.18%

ii) Non-interest income as a percentage to Working Funds  0.93% 0.88%

iii) Cost of deposits 5.73% 5.28%

iv) Net interest Margin 2.58% 2.97%

v) operating profit as a percentage to Working Funds 1.20% 1.43%

vi) return on Assets 0.85% 0.91%

vii) Business per employee (Rs. in crore) 16.61 17.87

viii) profit* per employee (Rs. in crore) 0.10 0.11

  * Net profit After tax

 b) Bancassurance business:

  Commission income from Bank assurance business: 

 (Rs. in crore)

Sr. 
no.

nature of income 2024-25 2023-24

1. From selling Life insurance policies 78.78 43.75

2. From selling Non-Life insurance policies 12.20 7.97

3. From pradhan Mantri insurance schemes 0.01 0.01

 total 90.99 51.73
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 c) marketing and distribution:

  income from Mutual Fund business:

 (Rs. in crore)

nature of income 2024-25 2023-24
Mutual Fund income 3.83 2.90

 d) disclosures regarding priority Sector lending certificates (pSlcs):

  the Bank enters into transactions for the purchase of priority sector Lending Certificates (psLCs). in the 
case of a purchase transaction, the Bank buys the fulfilment of priority sector obligation through rBi trading 
platform. there is no transfer of risks or loan assets. the fee paid for purchase of the psLCs is recorded as 
other expenditure in profit and Loss Account.

  details of priority sector Lending Certificates (psLC) purchased by the Bank as per rBi circular Fidd.
Co.plan.BC.23/04.09.01/2015-16 dated 7th April, 2016, are set out below:

 (Rs. in crore)

Sr. 
no.

category 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1 psLC-small & Marginal Farmers 4,150.00 3,720.00
2 psLC-General 8,300.00 7,550.00
3 psLC-Micro enterprises 1,600.00 2,000.00

total 14,050.00 13,270.00

  details of psLCs sold by the Bank are set out below:

Sr. 
no.

category 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1 psLC-General nil 2871.50

 e) provisions and contingencies:

 (Rs. in crore)

provision debited to profit and loss Account 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
provision for Npi Nil Nil
provision towards NpA 57.87 (11.56)
Floating provision for Advances 0.00 125.00
provision made towards income tax 175.54 198.66
other provision and Contingencies (with details)
provision towards depreciation on investments (0.33) (21.16)
provision towards standard Assets 16.70 (0.05)
provision towards restructured Assets (2.10) 0.45
provision towards MsMe & Covid related stress restructuring (29.54) (7.90)

 f) pursuant to para 4.3 of ii. significant Accounting policies, the Bank has not made any additional provision 
on standard Assets during the year.
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 g) payment of diCGC insurance premium:

 (Rs. in crore)

Sr. 
no.

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

i) payment of diCGC insurance premium 59.20 53.58

ii) Arrears in payment of diCGC premium Nil Nil

 h) disclosure of facilities granted to directors and their relatives.

  the Bank has complied with the rBi guidelines and no secured and unsecured credit facilities have been 
extended to or on behalf of the directors and their relatives or to firms / companies / concerns in which 
the directors or their relatives are interested except for the following as on March 31,2025 – staff housing 
loan of rs. 1.18 crore and loan against tangible securities of rs. 0.09 crore to Managing director & Ceo, 
loans of rs. 0.36 crore  under the staff loan schemes and advances against term deposits of rs. 0.44 
crore to the relatives of the directors.

 i) payments under the micro, Small, medium enterprises development, Act 2006

  Based on and to the extent of the information received by the Bank from the suppliers during the period 
regarding their status under the Micro, small and Medium enterprises development Act, 2006 (MsMed 
Act), the total outstanding dues of Micro and small enterprises, which are outstanding for more than the 
stipulated period and other disclosures as per the Micro, small and Medium enterprises development Act, 
2006 (hereinafter referred to as “the MsMed Act”) are given below :

 (Rs. in crore)

particulars 31-mar-25

a) dues remaining unpaid to any supplier at the period end

- principal 1.95

- interest on the above* 0.00

b) interest paid in terms of section 16 of the MsMed Act along with the amount of payment 
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

- principal paid beyond the appointed date 8.99

- interest paid in terms of section 16 of the MsMed Act -

c) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on payments made beyond 
the appointed day during the year

0.08

d) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid* 0.00

e) Further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when 
the interest due as above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of 
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23

-

  * Actual amount is rs. 5,078/- which is rounded off in crores as Nil.
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14. market Risk in trading Book as on 31.03.2025:

 a) Qualitative disclosures

  Market risk is the risk that the value of investments may undergo change over a given time period, simply 
because of economic changes or other events that impact the financial markets. in other words, Market 
risk is calculated for both, adverse movement in the price of an individual security owing to factors related 
to the individual issuer as well as interest rate risk in the portfolio.

  Methodology: the Bank follows the standardized duration Approach for calculation of Market risk. the 
Bank manages the Market risk in the books on an ongoing basis and ensures that the capital requirement 
for Market risk is being maintained on a continuous basis. i.e., at the end of each month.

  the capital charge is applied to the market value of securities in the Bank’s trading book. Market Value is 
determined as per the extant rBi guidelines on valuation of investments.

  Minimum Capital requirement is worked out separately for

  1. ‘specific risk’ charge – for individual issuer related factors.

  2. ‘General Market risk’ – for interest rate risk in the portfolio.

  Scope: the portfolios covered under the said approach include:

  1. securities included under the Held for trading (HFt) category.

  2. securities included under the Available for sale (AFs) category.

  3. open Foreign exchange position Limits

  infrastructure / miS & Reporting (SBu treasury): the investment policy as approved by the Board of 
directors provides detailed guidelines for all operational procedures, settlements, valuations, and risk 
controls pertaining to the investments.

  A separate mid-office is also in place which acts as an intermediary, monitoring compliance of regulatory 
guidelines and of the Banks’ investment policy and undertakes reporting to higher management.

  parameters for risk measurement: risk Management and reporting is based on parameters such as 
Modified duration, Net open position Limits, Gap Limits, etc.

 b) Quantitative disclosure:

  (Rs. in crore)

particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

the Capital requirements for:

interest rate risk 308.91 278.87

equity position risk 3.55 3.55

Foreign exchange risk 5.40 5.40

  As per rBi circular dated 28th March 2023 - rBi/2022-23/189 dor.CAp.reC. No.109/09.18.201/2022-23, 
capital charge is calculated at 12% from March 2023 onwards.
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As per our report of even date
For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 103264W  

For p G Bhagwat llp
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 101118W / W100682   

sd/-
(Rahul Joglekar)
partner
Membership No. 129389 
Mumbai : April 29, 2025 

sd/-
(nachiket deo)
partner
Membership No. 117695
Mumbai : April 29, 2025 

sd/-
A. A. patil 

Managing director
& Ceo

sd/-
K. V. Rangnekar

director

sd/-
S. V. Saudagar

director

sd/-
S. K. Banerji 

 Vice Chairman

sd/-
G. e. thakur

Chairman

Mumbai : April 29, 2025 

15. the share Capital includes 767498 shares of Rs. 10/- each in respect of the persons who have not subscribed 
to additional shares to make their shareholding minimum of 50 shares as required under Bye-law No.6C and 
as a result, they are not entitled to their membership rights.

16. the Bank has taken Group Mediclaim policy covering its directors. the Bank has paid premium of Rs. 0.07 
crore on this account. (previous year - Rs. 0.03 crore)

17. in accordance with the approval granted by rBi on 19th december, 2024, the Bank has launched the Long term 
subordinated Bonds (LtsB) series X issue of Rs. 350 crore. the amount subscribed till 31st March 2025 is  
Rs. 280.53 crore. the same is considered as tier ii Capital.

18. previous year’s figures are regrouped or rearranged, wherever necessary, to conform to the layout of the 
accounts of the current year.
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caSh flow Statement For tHe yeAr eNded MArCH 31, 2025
        (Amount in rs.)
cASh floW fRom opeRAtinG ActiVitieS: current Year 31.03.2025 previous Year 31.03.2024
Net profit before tax as per p/L account 6,93,78,60,593  7,01,64,41,290 
Add: Adjustments for
depreciation on Assets  92,79,36,656  84,73,01,690 
Fixed assets written off  5,06,439  2,62,960 
Amortisation of investments  23,60,44,386  24,15,30,195 
provision for Bddr  94,95,33,788  36,67,63,964 
transfer from Bad and doubtful debts reserve & other Assets  1,80,51,35,126  2,19,20,44,411 
interest paid on Borrowings  2,27,36,47,400  1,85,95,28,873 
Floating provision for Advances   -    1,25,00,00,000 
Contingent provision against standard Assets  16,69,54,000  8,90,00,000 
reserve restructured Assets  -    6,35,97,57,795  44,71,000  6,85,09,03,093 
less:  13,29,76,18,388  13,86,73,44,383 
profit on sale of Assets  32,62,134  17,44,791 
reversal of Bddr on ArC sale  37,08,00,000  48,23,95,450 
reversal of Bddr  1,80,51,35,126  2,19,20,44,411 
reversal of reserve restructured Assets  2,10,13,000 0.00
provision towards a/c under Covid relief written back  29,54,13,730  7,89,59,187 
excess provision for depreciation in investments reversed  32,75,754  21,16,03,516 
excess provision of earlier years written back  4,12,01,838  5,57,11,646 
dividend received  3,80,600  81,824 
transfer from Contingent provision Against standard Assets  -    2,54,04,82,182  8,94,93,000  3,11,20,33,825 

 10,75,71,36,206  10,75,53,10,558 
Adjustments for
decrease/(increase) in investments  (21,38,23,86,851)  (35,84,30,89,411)
decrease/(increase) in Advances  (37,65,33,78,071)  (15,10,33,13,333)
decrease/(increase) in other Assets  (1,05,26,97,220)  (1,08,96,69,579)
increase/(decrease) in Funds  (1,69,08,71,044)  (2,12,69,24,053)
increase/(decrease) in deposits  60,23,95,59,190  49,55,55,35,352 
increase/(decrease) in other Liabilities  (1,25,86,29,671)  (2,79,84,03,667)  (1,03,49,08,701)  (5,64,23,69,725)
net cash generated from operating Activities before tax  7,95,87,32,539  5,11,29,40,834 
income tax paid (Net)  (1,31,10,94,216)  (1,49,00,00,000)
net cash generated from operating Activities after tax (A)  6,64,76,38,323  3,62,29,40,834 
cASh floW fRom inVeStinG ActiVitieS:
purchase of property, plant & equipment  (84,60,20,143)  (99,23,79,983)
sale proceeds of property, plant & equipment  47,31,873  32,82,836 
dividend received  3,80,600  81,824 
net cash generated from investing Activities                    (B)  (84,09,07,670)  (98,90,15,323)
cASh floW fRom finAncinG ActiVitieS:
proceeds from issue of share Capital  13,29,40,910  31,75,32,910 
refund of share Capital  (55,71,23,350)  (7,99,69,560)
proceeds from Borrowing  24,38,92,36,40,256  15,64,59,10,64,257 
repayment of Borrowing  (24,34,87,35,54,138) (15,68,44,05,08,961)
interest paid on Borrowings  (2,27,36,47,400)  (1,85,95,28,873)
dividend paid  (55,98,83,616)  (39,30,18,353)
net cash generated from financing Activities                   (c)  79,23,72,662  (5,86,44,28,580)
net increase in cash & cash equivalents                  (A+B+c)  6,59,91,03,315  (3,23,05,03,070)
cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  41,18,52,78,415 44,41,57,81,485 
cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year  47,78,43,81,730 41,18,52,78,415 
cash & cash equivalents current Year

31.03.2025
previous Year

31.03.2024
Cash  24,09,71,08,577  24,47,90,72,905 
Balance with other banks (excluding term deposits maturing beyond 
3 months)

 12,23,79,50,024  8,99,01,67,352 

Money at Call & short Notice  11,44,93,23,129  7,71,60,38,158 
 47,78,43,81,730  41,18,52,78,415 

1 Cash and Cash equivalents include highly liquid short term investments for short period in form of Cash, balances held in current accounts 
with other Banks(including term deposits maturing within 3 months) and Money at Call & short Notice.

2 Cash flow statement is prepared by using indirect method as mentioned in As 3.

As per our report of even date
For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 103264W  

For p G Bhagwat llp
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 101118W / W100682   

sd/-
(Rahul Joglekar)
partner
Membership No. 129389 
Mumbai : April 29, 2025 

sd/-
(nachiket deo)
partner
Membership No. 117695
Mumbai : April 29, 2025 

sd/-
A. A. patil 

Managing director
& Ceo

sd/-
K. V. Rangnekar

director

sd/-
S. V. Saudagar

director

sd/-
S. K. Banerji 

 Vice Chairman

sd/-
G. e. thakur

Chairman

Mumbai : April 29, 2025 
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inVolVement oF tHe sMALL MAN
ouR memBeRS

no. of Shares held no. of members percentage

50-51 58,586 20.69

52-250 50,266 17.76

251-1500  69,853 24.68

1501-2500 1,04,366  36.87

total  2,83,071 100.00

ouR depoSitoRS

no. of Accounts percentage

upto rs. 1,00,000 27,94,091 76.88

rs. 1,00,001 to rs. 5,00,000 6,49,419 17.87

rs. 5,00,001 to rs. 10,00,000 1,16,625 3.21

rs. 10,00,001 to rs. 15,00,000 32,527 0.89

rs. 15,00,001 to rs. 25,00,000                                                   19,714 0.54

rs. 25,00,001 to rs. 50,00,000 12,539 0.34

rs. 50,00,001 to rs. 1,00,00,000 5,246 0.14

Above rs. 1,00,00,000 4,726 0.13

total 36,34,887 100.00
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ouR BoRRoWeRS

no. of Accounts percentage

upto Rs. 1,00,000 49,740 31.32

Rs. 1,00,001 to Rs. 5,00,000 31,707 19.97

Rs. 5,00,001 to Rs. 10,00,000 24,163 15.22

Rs. 10,00,001 to Rs. 50,00,000 44,968 28.32

Rs. 50,00,001 to Rs. 1,00,00,000 4,607 2.90

Above Rs. 1,00,00,000 3,610 2.27

total 1,58,795 100.00
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progreSS - At A GLANCe (yeAr 1920-2025)
(rs. in lakh)

Year no. of 
members

paid-up 
capital

Reserve & 
other funds

deposits Advances total 
Businessno. of A/cs Amount no. of A/cs Amount

1920 190 0.06 - - 0.01 - 0.06 0.07
silver Jubilee
1943 1,698 1.25 *1.00 4,293 23.48 - 3.23 26.71
Golden Jubilee
1968 15,207 14.43 *18.82 41,703 565.33 2,718 247.80 813.13
diamond Jubilee
1978 39,104 76.91 130.40 1,44,520 3,189.41 10,557 1,373.30 4,562.71
1979 44,049 94.12 194.92 1,67,198 3,989.92 13,712 1,969.00 5,958.92
1980 50,694 120.60 261.94 1,93,033 4,911.84 18,603 3,025.17 7,937.01
1981 57,489 156.79 387.94 2,32,317 6,194.37 22,235 3,381.47 9,575.84
1982 64,240 192.63 488.99 2,75,121 8,106.71 24,591 5,106.81 13,213.52
1983 69,042 223.24 567.46 3,19,602 10,445.95 25,090 6,508.41 16,954.36
1984 75,977 262.24 624.58 3,58,366 12,991.46 26,728 7,676.78 20,668.24
1985 83,162 312.79 693.10 3,19,528 15,849.76 29,922 8,971.03 24,820.79
1986 90,606 366.09 840.96 4,18,708 19,373.40 33,177 11,322.06 30,695.46
1987 97,071 409.37 974.48 4,49,286 22,914.72 36,379 13,550.34 36,465.06
1988 1,02,384 462.70 1,184.18 4,75,335 28,451.01 37,747 16,163.43 44,614.44
1989 1,10,269 531.51 1,446.63 5,02,284 31,038.07 43,484 19,233.62 50,271.69
1990 1,21,740 630.21 1,952.28 5,44,548 37,447.63 51,428 23,709.05 61,156.68
1991 1,27,646 706.07 2,893.61 5,97,496 45,541.01 54,405 26,051.59 71,592.60
1992# 1,30,074 760.90 4,120.52 6,48,424 51,451.77 53,226 28,473.76 79,925.53
platinum Jubilee
1993 1,29,284 820.94 4,778.02 7,11,219 63,211.46 54,151 34,424.40 97,635.86
1994 1,30,758 902.32 4,924.41 7,79,212 79,233.15 61,263 45,837.00 1,25,070.15
1995 1,31,569 986.22 6,295.41 8,45,341 91,120.13 73,138 59,682.67 1,50,802.80
1996 1,32,046 1,049.29 9,145.06 8,97,713 1,08,930.40 77,154 71,324.70 1,80,255.10
1997 1,32,909 1,157.12 12,575.32 9,14,713 1,38,141.97 79,654 88,087.80 2,26,229.77
1998 1,34,061 1,291.49 15,810.05 9,47,833 1,68,035.59 82,429 1,13,907.47 2,81,943.06
1999 1,36,007 1,519.43 19,458.27 10,00,141 2,03,181.86 84,531 1,38,380.24 3,41,562.10
2000 1,42,031 2,035.28 24,410.99 10,84,261 2,37,951.84 87,642 1,70,310.76 4,08,262.60
2001 **83,272 2,443.81 31,236.00 11,09,969 2,81,776.31 75,006 1,80,542.56 4,62,318.87
2002 **85,636 2,709.00 39,795.96 12,17,662 3,37,767.21 75,381 2,04,339.78 5,42,106.99
2003 **89,117 3,044.44 47,841.14 12,99,736 3,66,059.68 73,308 2,22,359.50 5,88,419.18
2004 **94,044 3,457.77 55,587.75 12,29,976 4,05,270.26 77,917 2,61,675.60 6,66,945.86
2005 **1,00,581 4,156.48 70,162.39 11,80,900 4,78,614.38 85,312 3,24,722.93 8,03,337.31
2006 **1,06,264 4,896.57 82,198.60 14,00,757 6,20,428.65 1,00,115 4,60,898.62 10,81,327.27
2007 **1,23,169 6,877.24 97,362.05 18,11,635 8,92,494.33 1,16,687 6,37,045.87 15,29,540.20
2008 **1,26,174 7,120.97 1,05,973.67 21,92,673 11,43,081.93 1,22,626 7,44,830.67 18,87,912.60
2009 **1,29,741 7,749.67 1,09,671.08 25,02,655 12,91,884.64 1,27,769 8,11,040.59 21,02,925.23
2010 **1,34,417 8,623.11 1,18,413.65 24,39,699 14,26,672.86 2,75,479 9,25,035.47 23,51,708.33
2011 **1,62,560 10,283.24 1,37,375.92 25,59,939 15,80,096.07 1,11,991 11,51,199.23 27,31,295.30
2012 **1,68,529 11,691.66 1,59,877.47 29,32,606 19,25,270.98 1,12,196 13,95,270.49 33,20,541.47
2013 **1,72,282 12,690.93 1,83,440.27 31,86,120 21,14,433.16 1,04,923 15,02,341.51 36,16,774.67
2014 **1,75,242 16,768.78 1,97,412.18 35,59,404 23,93,951.03 97,364 15,47,005.02 39,40,956.05
2015 **1,78,747 18,930.10 2,05,757.04 39,15,156 27,17,084.05 96,718 17,79,812.40 44,96,896.45
2016 **1,82,008 20,275.76 2,16,839.75 41,59,753 31,49,584.33 95,376 20,36,611.50 51,86,195.83
2017 **1,88,249 21,522.60 2,46,967.82 43,18,903 33,73,741.87 97,092 21,53,607.14 55,27,349.01
Centenary year
2018 **1,99,616 23,674.57 2,63,228.49 41,98,064 35,05,665.84 1,02,326 23,46,911.29 58,52,577.13
2019 **2,13,836 26,396.89 2,97,341.24 41,57,976 36,01,487.01 1,09,004 25,79,749.27 61,81,236.28
2020 **2,25,245 28,599.00 3,23,605.42 35,12,260 38,08,349.30 1,28,084 25,33,864.01 63,42,213.31
2021 **2,37,262 30,481.63 3,63,251.52 35,09,274 40,85,530.14 1,36,201 26,24,170.05 67,09,700.19
2022 **2,46,663 32,309.09 3,87,629.56 33,66,150 42,87,053.40 1,51,745 28,70,249.50 71,57,302.90
2023 **2,58,926 34,499.65 4,41,399.40 34,23,023 44,50,175.93 1,61,976 31,05,713.28 75,55,889.21
2024 **2,69,147  $33,500.18 4,78,386.62 35,54,446 49,45,731.28 1,57,961 32,56,746.42 82,02,477.70
2025 **2,83,071 ^32,633.46 5,15,857.96 36,34,887 55,48,126.88 1,58,795 36,33,280.21 91,81,407.09

* including interest reserve
** shareholders holding shares 50 and above
# Financial year: Change of Bank’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)
$ this does not include perpetual Non-Cumulative preference shares (pNCps) of rs. 3375.10 lakhs which falls for redemption.
^ Call option for redemption of pNCps was exercised by the Bank.
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(rs. in lakh)
Year investments Working  

capital
net profit dividend  

Amount
dividend (%) no. of  

Branches
1920 - 0.07 0.02 - - 1
silver Jubilee
1943 19.95 26.15 0.15 0.07 6.25 2
Golden Jubilee
1968 290.37 623.05 2.52 1.30 9.00 9
diamond Jubilee
1978 1,951.06 3,611.75 26.09 8.30 12.00 24
1979 2,188.60 4,535.81 30.52 10.25 12.00 26
1980 2,188.62 5,901.83 35.11 12.40 12.00 30
1981 3,182.74 7,728.06 51.16 16.50 12.00 34
1982 3,434.15 9,991.28 65.09 20.75 12.00 35
1983 4,275.89 15,767.14 70.57 24.75 12.00 37
1984 5,640.36 15,581.07 59.79 28.50 12.00 39
1985 7,040.29 19,311.54 69.94 33.90 12.00 41
1986 8,796.67 24,213.61 118.76 40.00 12.00 41
1987 10,231.78 26,570.23 145.47 46.02 12.00 42
1988 13,120.54 32,802.00 165.75 51.19 12.00 42
1989 9,231.86 36,532.31 196.01 58.07 12.00 42
1990 10,119.16 44,464.08 301.40 69.25 12.00 45
1991 13,092.37 55,242.28 430.46 78.90 12.00 47
1992# 17,560.62 64,032.95 468.33 81.75 15.00 50
platinum Jubilee
1993 31,022.23 84,821.62 633.50 116.45 18.00 50
1994 34,974.74 1,06,411.84 679.96 126.40 15.00 52
1995 35,185.80 1,30,031.69 742.66 140.00 15.00 56
1996 42,042.27 1,61,866.40 865.54 151.00 15.00 58
1997 53,534.87 1,96,927.69 1,100.00 204.00 18.00 59
1998 63,459.20 2,47,374.86 1,239.01 185.00 15.00 61
1999 85,431.42 3,12,590.57 1,423.97 228.00 15.00 63
2000 95,639.19 2,95,608.33 1,734.09 314.90 18.00 69
2001 1,25,554.41 3,41,061.54 2,341.54 390.00 20.00 72
2002 1,65,198.50 4,06,281.05 2,600.00 492.05 20.00 75
2003 1,77,262.65 4,38,696.89 2,935.85 408.03 18.00 76
2004 1,56,615.16 4,93,749.72 6,225.26 553.47 18.00 75
2005 2,05,289.40 5,90,348.41 7,037.88 659.52 18.00 75
2006 1,98,977.97 7,63,100.74 10,120.29 789.99 18.00 86
2007 2,60,989.72 10,74,547.13 15,517.92 1,138.42 18.00 105
2008 4,35,006.22 13,87,410.43 20,226.06 1,285.00 20.00 153
2009 4,79,150.75 15,62,281.73 21,079.23 1,489.13 20.00 175
2010 5,32,139.11 17,07,105.88 11,967.42 1,590.62 20.00 200
2011 5,25,376.69 19,18,937.24 21,226.72 1,847.16 20.00 216
2012 5,62,698.78 22,43,562.49 23,556.92 2,181.58 20.00 226
2013 6,44,403.06 24,79,080.40 11,209.11 1,213.10 10.00 229
2014 7,80,474.21 28,13,279.55 14,709.37 1,292.80 10.00 267
2015 7,73,511.53 31,37,109.58 19,017.71 2,019.29 15.00 267
2016 9,38,847.77 35,94,150.08 21,119.15 2,139.02 15.00 283
2017 8,87,279.19 38,44,221.27 23,405.32 4,573.29 30.00 282
Centenary year
2018 9,56,797.41 40,52,029.80 24,067.53 2,972.70 17.50 281
2019 11,01,369.00 42,91,512.10 29,128.52 3,370.31 17.50 284
2020 13,12,903.35 44,70,056.72 25,079.48 0.00 0.00 284
2021 14,02,070.71 47,66,982.94 27,024.48 4,670.00 20.00 283
2022 15,21,608.84 50,92,293.46 27,502.24 5,088.46 20.00 283
2023 15,84,084.31 53,53,900.52 35,169.53 4,116.35 15.00 289
2024 17,78,850.49 58,58,121.57 50,298.51 5,222.50 17.50 302
2025 17,70,305.56 65,37,407.38 51,824.51 4,730.25  15.00 311
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amendment to Bye-LAWs
pRopoSed Amendment to BYe lAWS 

Bye 
law 
no.

text in existing Bye-laws proposed Amendment text after Amendment Remarks

55 Candidates for seats on the 
Board of directors shall be 
nominated in the following 
manner:-

1) Candidates for ten 
seats from amongst 
the members of the 
society residing in and 
or carrying on business 
and or engaged in gainful 
occupation within limits 
of Mumbai Metropolitan 
regional development 
Authority.

2) Candidates for four 
seats from amongst the 
members of the society 
residing in areas outside 
the limits of Mumbai 
Metropolitan regional 
development Authority 
but within the state of 
Maharashtra.

3) Candidates for two 
seats from amongst the 
members of the society 
residing in a state or 
states other than the state 
of Maharashtra or union 
territories in the union of 
india, where the Bank has 
or may have its Branches. 

4) Candidates for two 
reserved seats for 
Women from amongst the 
members of the society 
residing in any state or 
union territories in the 
union of india, where the 
Bank has or may have its 
Branches. 

5) Candidates for one 
reserved seat for 
scheduled Castes or 
scheduled tribes from 
amongst the members of 
the society residing in any 
state or union territories 
in the union of india, where 
the Bank has or may have 
its Branches.

Candidates for seats on the 
Board of directors shall be 
nominated in the following 
manner:-

1) Candidates for Fourteen 
seats from amongst 
the members of the 
society residing in and 
or carrying on business 
and or engaged in gainful 
occupation within limits of 
state of Maharashtra.

2) Candidates for two 
seats from amongst the 
members of the society 
residing in and or carrying 
on business and or engaged 
in gainful occupation 
outside the limits of state 
of Maharashtra but within 
the area of operation of the 
Bank. 

3) Candidates for two 
reserved seats for 
Women from amongst the 
members of the society 
residing in any state or 
union territories in the 
union of india, where the 
Bank has or may have its 
Branches. 

4) Candidates for one 
reserved seat for 
scheduled Castes or 
scheduled tribes from 
amongst the members of 
the society residing in any 
state or union territories 
in the union of india, where 
the Bank has or may have 
its Branches.

Candidates for seats on the 
Board of directors shall be 
nominated in the following 
manner:-

1) Candidates for Fourteen 
seats from amongst 
the members of the 
society residing in and 
or carrying on business 
and or engaged in gainful 
occupation within limits of 
state of Maharashtra.

2) Candidates for two 
seats from amongst the 
members of the society 
residing in and or carrying 
on business and or engaged 
in gainful occupation 
outside the limits of state 
of Maharashtra but within 
the area of operation of the 
Bank. 

3) Candidates for two 
reserved seats for 
Women from amongst the 
members of the society 
residing in any state or 
union territories in the 
union of india, where the 
Bank has or may have its 
Branches. 

4) Candidates for one 
reserved seat for 
scheduled Castes or 
scheduled tribes from 
amongst the members of 
the society residing in any 
state or union territories 
in the union of india, where 
the Bank has or may have 
its Branches.

since most of the branches and 
business of the Bank are within 
the state of Maharashtra, also 
out of total 2,85,607 members 
of the bank, 2,60,305 members 
are from Maharashtra; the 
proposed amendment will 
facilitate physical presence of 
the directors in the Meetings 
of the Board as well as various 
Committees of the Board, if 
they reside within the state of 
Maharashtra. 

this will lead to higher 
participation, qualitative 
interactions, sharing of views 
and in-depth deliberations on 
the topics pertaining to the 
agenda of the Meetings.

the proposed amendment will 
provide increased opportunities 
to the members residing in 
any part of Maharashtra to 
represent themselves from this 
geographical area.
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Sr. 
no.

name of the Branch tel. no.

mumBAi
1 Andheri (east) 8657028802/03/04/05
2 Andheri (east), J B Nagar 8657017715/16/17
3 Andheri (east), Marol 8657024313/14/15
4 Andheri (east), MidC 8657052815/16/17
5 Andheri (east), pump House 8657017712/13/14
6 Andheri (east), saki Naka 8652731742/43/44
7 Andheri (West), Veera desai road 9136138514, 9136478542, 9136962526
8 Andheri (West), Barfiwala road 8657564617/18
9 Andheri (West), Lokhandwala 8657043711/08/12
10 Antop Hill 8657062807/08
11 Ballard estate (022) 22631114, 22621115
12 Bandra (east), Bandra Kurla Complex (022) 35253506-07-02
13 Bandra (east), Chetana College 8657453804/05/06
14 Bandra (West), National Library (022) 62399815, 62399810
15 Bhandup (West), L.B.s. Marg 8657010848/49/50
16 Borivali (east), Carter road 8652259603/604/605
17 Borivali (West), shimpoli 8657024304/05/06
18 Borivali (West), Chandavarkar road 8657053601/02/03/04/05
19 Borivali (West), i C Colony 8657007204/05/06
20 Borivali (West), sai Baba Nagar (022) 28090029/30
21 Borivali Nancy Colony 8657016822/21/20
22 Carnac Bunder, Vyapar Bhavan (022) 23481265/66
23 Chembur (West), sion trombay road 8657037901/2/3
24 Chembur (West), tilak Nagar 8657034301/02/03
25 Chembur (east), Collector’s Colony. 8657043701/2/3
26 Chhatrapati shivaji terminus (Cst) (022) 22061122, 22071121
27 Colaba 8657050270/71/72
28 dadar (east), dadasaheb phalke road (022) 24163144, 24161145, 24161144
29 dadar (east), Hindu Colony 7021380611/1272
30 dadar (West), Gadkari Chowk 8657560840/41/42
31 dadar (West), Madhukendra off. N C Kelkar road (022) 24221180, 24310885,24302190
32 dadar (West), portuguese Church 8657020405 /06/07
33 dahisar (east), Maratha Colony 8657564607/8/9
34 dahisar (West) 8657024301/02/03
35 dharavi, r p Nagar 8657043704/5/6
36 Fort, d N road (022) 22043006, 22047972, 22885005
37 Gamdevi 8657020411/12/13
38 Ghatkopar (east), opp Ghatkopar railway station 8657560843/44/45

State-wISe / regIon-wISe BrANCH NetWorK
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39 Ghatkopar (West), Barvenagar 022-25113189
40 Ghatkopar (West), L.B.s. Marg 8657037912/13/14
41 Ghatkopar (West), Maneklal estate (022) 25166663/64
42 Girgaon, s V sovani path (022) 23841162/163/164/165
43 Goregaon (east), Hub 8657038901/02/03
44 Goregaon (east), Nagri Niwara 9702002043 / 9619009012
45 Goregaon (east), Walawalkar Wadi 8657038909/10/11
46 Goregaon (West) 8108101360/61/62
47 Goregaon (West), Link road 8657024307/ 08/ 09
48 Govandi 8657019510/11/12
49 Jogeshwari (east), Majaswadi 8657856901/02/03
50 Jogeshwari HFs rd 8657050273/74/75
51 Juhu, N s road No.13 8657784806/7/8/9/10
52 Kalbadevi (022) 22079406 - 07
53 Kandivali (east), thakur Complex (022) 28546881, 28546883
54 Kandivali (east), thakur Village 8976774796 , 8976774795 , 8108615257 , 

8108616084, 9594290951
55 Kandivali (West), dahanukarwadi 68327542, 68421200, 68420555
56 Kandivali (West), Gie - Govt. indl. estate 8657560849/50/51
57 "Kandivali  (West),  Junction  of  s  V  road  &  Jamnadas 

Adukia road"
8657019504/05/06

58 Kandivali (West), M.G.road 8828825334, 8828825335
59 Kandivali (West), Charkop 8657019501/02
60 Khar (West), pali Hill 8657038906/7/8
61 Khar, Linking road 8657784812/13/14
62 Kurla east, Nehru Nagar 8657020408/09/10
63 Lower parel, N M Joshi Marg 8657863911/912
64 Mahim, sitaladevi temple road 8657052811/12/13
65 Malad (east) 8657037906/7/8
66 Malad (West), orlem 9152012403/04/05
67 Malad (West), Link road 8652731755/56/54
68 Malad (West), Mamletdar Wadi (022) 69137700/01
69 Malad Janakalyan Nagar 8657035104/06
70 Masjid Bunder 8657784821/22-23
71 Matunga (east), telang road 8657039608/609/10
72 Mazgaon (022) 23707475/76
73 Mulund (east), L t road 8657038207 / 08 / 09
74 Mulund (West), M G road 8657035223/24/25
75 Mulund (West), rrt road 8657007215/16/17
76 Mulund (West), Veena Nagar 8657010851/52/53
77 Mulund (West), sarvoday Nagar 8169457068/69/70/71
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78 Mumbai Central (022) 49630878, 49630870
79 overseas Marine Lines (022) 49205656, 22096019
80 parel (West), M d College 8652731737/38/39/40/41
81 powai, Hiranandani (022) 25701726, 25702268
82 powai, opp. i.i.t. 8657062801/2/3
83 prabhadevi, opp ravindra Natya Mandir (022) 24223780, 24228328, 24223782
84 santacruz (east) 8657039611/12/13/14
85 santacruz (east), Kalina 8652731732/33/34/35/36
86 santacruz (West), station road 8657007210/11/12
87 sion (West), swami Vallabhadas road 8657053606/607/608
88 sMe Lower parel (022) 69068801/4/5
89 sMe - Vikhroli L.B.s Marg 69940001/2/3
90 sMe - Vileparle, dr. N.s. phadke Marg (022) 69569999/9912/9913
91 Vidyavihar (West) 86327524/27/34
92 Vikhroli (east), Behind Vikhroli Bus depot 8657023510/11/14
93 Vikhroli (West), station road 8828805610/11/12
94 Vile parle (east), Nehru road 8657034311/12/13/14/15
95 Vile parle (West), Besant road 86527317147/48/49
96 Wadala, r A Kidwai road (022) 24183696
97 Worli, dr. A. B. road (022) 24221209/10/ 24314265

thAne diStRict
98 Ambernath (east) (0251) 2609292, 2609797
99 Badlapur (east) Branch  8657038205/06
100 Bhayander (West) dr. Ambekar Marg 8657038210/8657038211/8657038212
101 Bhayander (east) 8657019507/08/09
102 Bhiwandi , Gauri pada (02522) 230060/61
103 dombivali (east), Bhagat singh road (0251) 2990152/0143
104 dombivali (West), M G Cross Marg 8657015204/05/06
105 dombivali MidC 8657052821
106 Kalwa, station road 8657010854/55/56
107 Kalyan (east), Kolshewadi 8657015201/02/03
108 Kalyan (West), shil road (0251) 2971661/62
109 Kalyan, Khadakpada 8657863905 /06 /07
110 Kalyan, (West), Murbad road (0251) 2200081, 2205037
111 Mira road, royal Complex 8657052808/7/9
112 thane (West), panchpakhadi 8828805613/14/15
113 thane (east), Kopri (022) 25325016/23
114 thane (West), Brahmand 8976958599/600
115 thane (West), Hiranandani 8657062804/05
116 thane (West), Jambhali Naka 8828805616/17/18
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117 thane (West), Kasarvadvali (022) 49687559 / 49687507
118 thane (West), Khopat 8828852818/19/20
119 thane (West), Naupada 8828805606 /07 / 08
120 thane (West), Vartak Nagar 8657056311/12
121 thane (West), Vijay Nagari 8657856991/ 92 /93
122 thane (West), Wagle estate 8657007218/19/20
123 titwala (east) 8657023501/02/03
124 ulhasnagar (0251) 2732716/17

nAVi mumBAi
125 Airoli, sector – 7 (022) 27602656/55
126 ApMC, Vashi (022) 27831160/61
127 CBd Belapur, sector - 11 (022) 27560083/84
128 Ghansoli 8657050276/86
129 Koparkhairane, sector - 20 (022) 27551328/29
130 Nerul (east), sector - 21 8657564613/12/10
131 Nerul (West), sector - 4 (022) 27729922/3657
132 sanpada, sector - 4 8657784818/16/17
133 seawoods 8657062813/14
134 turbhe (022) 27842234/35
135 Vashi, sector -12 8657035227/28/29
136 Vashi, sector -17 (022) 27890192, 27893188,  27898195

pAlGhAR
137 Boisar, Ameya park 8087694666/ 8983094566
138 palghar, Kacheri road 8657019513/14/15
139 Vasai (east), Vasai Nallasopara Link road 8087056054/55
140 Vasai (West) 8657560838/39/37
141 Virar (east), Bazar Ward 8657856907/09
142 Virar (West), Agashi road 7276055161, 7276083276
143 Virar (West), Arnala (0250) 2588311
144 Nallasopara  8657035107/8657035108/8657035109

pune
145 Akurdi (020) 27662133/2157/2087
146 Aundh (020) 25890332/31, 25886169
147 Baner road (020) 27292957
148 Bavdhan (020) 22951512/2434
149 Bhosari (020) 29530543/44
150 Bhusari Colony, Kothrud (020) 29525291/92
151 Bibwewadi (020) 24231467, 24213217
152 Budhwar peth (020) 24462131, 24455226
153 Chakan (02135) 249331/30
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154 Chinchwad (020) 27351313/1414
155 dahanukar Colony (020) 25462500/9648
156 Fergusson College road (020) 25652491/92
157 Fatima Nagar (020) 26861046, 26860181
158 Ganesh Khind road (020) 25582249,9975236161
159 Ganesh Nagar (020) 25435066/77
160 Hadapsar 8657035101, 8657035102,8657035103
161 Hinjewadi (020) 22933567/66
162 Karve road (020) 69013467, 69013468, 69013469
163 Katraj (020) 24364847/48
164 Keshav Nagar 8657037909/10/11
165 Kharadi 020-27014026 
166 Kondhava (020) 26831073/74
167 Koregaon park 8657020417/18/19
168 Moshi 8657560848/47/46
169 Narayan peth (020) 24465178/205
170 Narhe (020) 24390115/14
171 pashan (020) 25870092/0492
172 paud road (020) 25449122/29
173 pimple Nilakh (020) 48647070/9090
174 pimple saudagar (020) 27206600/01
175 pimpri (020) 27474671/5856, 27477757
176 punawale 8657023507/08/09
177 rajguru Nagar (02135) 223377/88
178 ranjangaon (02138)299007
179 ravet 8657052824/25/26
180 sahakar Nagar (020) 24221211/1411
181 shivane 8828805601/2/3
182 sinhagad road 8657038912/13/14
183 sMe - pune (020) 41422200/11-14
184 somwar peth (020) 26063721
185 talegaon (02114) 224004/5
186 thermax Chowk 8657020414/15/16
187 tilak road (020) 24444257/8941
188 undri (020) 26909075/83
189 Vamnicom (020) 25701220
190 Viman Nagar (020) 26630226/27
191 Vishrantwadi (020) 26696172/73, 9420528162
192 Wagholi 8087001175
193 Wakad (020) 29705755/66
194 Warje (020) 25215154/55

AhilYAnAGAR
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195 MidC (0241) 2777602/03
196 savedi road (0241) 2341121/20

nAGpuR
197 Chhapru Nagar (0712) 2730266/60
198 Gandhibaug (0712) 2721769, 2722694, 2725157
199 Hingana road (07104) 237022/26
200 Kalamana Market (0712) 2680325/544
201 pratap Nagar (0712) 2243260
202 Wardha road (0712) 2252903/04, 2250046

AKolA
203 Akola (0724) 2436611

chhAtRApAti SAmBhAJinAGAR
204 CidCo (0240) 2243006/07/020
205 Gajanan Maharaj temple (0240) 2243012/13
206 Khadkeshwar (0240) 2243000/01/19
207 MGM, Medical College (0240) 2243008/ 2368373
208 Mit- Hospital (0240) 2243027/009
209 station road (0240) 2243011/23/10/ 2243031
210 t V Centre, AurANGABAd (0240) 2243028/29
211 Waluj (0240) 2243005/04/21

SolApuR
212 solapur (0217) 2727225-26/ 2320514

RAiGAd
213 Alibaug (02141) 225951-53
214 Kamothe, sector - 7 8657007207/08/09
215 Khanda Colony, New panvel (022) 27453183/84
216 Kharghar, sector - 7 (022) 27746911/22
217 Mahad (02145) 223822/23
218 New panvel 8657023504/05/06
219 pen (02143) 255584/85
220 panvel, M.C.C.H (022) 27467944/45
221 panvel, s.N.road 8657052819/20
222 roha (02194) 232352/53
223 uran, Karanja road 8657564614/15/16
224 ulwe 9833918247

JAlGAon
225 Baliram peth - Jalgaon (0257) 2233613/14
226 Jalgaon (0257) 2234382/83

SAtARA
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227 Karad (02164) 225505/07
228 satara (02162) 227355, 227455

nAShiK
229 CidCo (0253) 2390432
230 Gangapur road (0253) 2314538/39
231 Jail road (0253) 2416430
232 Mahatma Nagar (0253) 2357461, 2360434
233 Main road (0253) 2502220/21
234 Musalgaon (02551) 240752
235 sharanpur (0253) 2581293, 2317677
236 Ambad MidC (0253) 8657035094/95/96

RAtnAGiRi
237 Chiplun (02355) 257138, 255201
238 Lanja (02351) 230195/96
239 Lavel (02356) 299097
240 rajapur (02353) 232344/45
241 ratnagiri (02352) 223690/91

SindhuduRG
242 devgad (02364) 261828/29
243 Kankavli - rameshwar plaza (02367) 230241/42
244 Kudal (02362) 221150/51
245 Malvan (02365) 252114/45
246 sawantwadi (02363) 274413/14
247 Vaibhavwadi (02367) 237585/86
248 Vengurla (02366) 262509/10, 262104

SAnGli
249 Mahavirnagar (0233) 2624267, 2622106,2621917
250 shastri Chowk (0233) 2332294
251 Miraj Laxmi Market (0233) 2223138
252 shivaji Nagar (0233) 2375899
253 Kupwad (0233) 2346878
254 Vita (02347) 276230

KolhApuR
255 ichalkarnji (0230) 2432597
256 Mahapalika (0231) 2644208
257 Mangalwar peth (0231) 2621319/20
258 New shahupuri (0231) 2651753/54
259 rajarampuri (0231) 2521681/550, 2527012,2521682

GuJARAt
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AhmedABAd
260 Anand Nagar (079) 29609351/52
261 Bapu Nagar (079) 22777754 / 55
262 C.G.road (079) 26401387/ 88/26420313
263 Ghatlodia (079) 27402740/41
264 isanpur (079) 25810004/5
265 Mani Nagar (079) 25461004/5
266 Naranpura (079) 27492958/3026

VAdodARA
267 Karelibaug (0265) 2481299/49
268 Fatehganj (0265) 2750586/7
269 Manjalpur (0265) 2643506/7
270 Alkapuri (0265) 2329001/2

SuRAt
271 Adajan (0261) 2780168/186
272 ring road - surat (0261) 2335230, 2335231
273 Varachha road - surat (0261) 2552092/93/94, 2562090

VApi
274 Vapi (0260) 2425663/64

KARnAtAKA
BelGAum

275 samadevi (0831) 2420433, 2403468
276 tilakwadi (0831) 2468544/630

huBli
277 Hubli (0836) 2256015, 2356468

BenGAluRu
278 Banashankari (080) 26763781, 26763815
279 Chamrajpeth (080) 26601213, 26600050
280 Gandhinagar (080) 22341151/2
281 Jayanagar (080) 26532275/6
282 Koramangala (080) 25502275, 25502276
283 Malleshwaram (080) 23466656/7

dAVAnGeRe
284 davangere (08192) 233452/53

dhARWAd
285 dharwad (0836) 2443396/97

mAnGAloRe
286 Bhavanthi street (0824) 2440636/7
287 Chilimbi (0824) 2452143/4
288 M.G.road (0824) 2495671/2

mYSoRe
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289 Mysore (0821) 2542266, 2544666
tumKuR

290 tumkur (0816) 2277667/68
udupi

291 udupi (0820) 2526010, 2529010
GoA

292 Bicholim (0832) 2360460
293 Mapusa (0832) 2264064/268
294 Margao (0832) 2732321,  2732594
295 panjim (0832) 2228023, 2425662/210
296 ponda (0832) 2318556/726
297 porvorim (0832) 2412502/03
298 sanvordem (0832) 2654044/2650244
299 sMe - Goa (0832) 2437021/22/23
300 sankhali (0832) 2365677/78
301 Vasco (0832) 2515170, 2515553

mAdhYA pRAdeSh
302 indore (rNt Marg) (0731) 2528791-94/96
303 indore, Annapurna road (0731) 2473232/243233

delhi
304 Connaught place 011-23412100,  23414100
305 Lajpat Nagar 011-26422100,  42643016-20, 26423100
306 Model town 8657051901/ 02/03/04/05/06/07/08
307 Naraina 8657453820/21/22/23/24/25
308 Karol Baugh 011-65035555

uttAR pRAdeSh
309 Noida 011-65215555

hARYAnA
310 Faridabad 8657453810/11/12/13/14/15
311 Gurugram 0124-6591555



note
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